COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Tom Ridge
Governor

Prepared By:

Office of the Budget
Robert A. Bittenbender, Secretary

Comptroller Operations
Harvey C. Eckert, Deputy Secretary



Commenwealth of Pennsylvania
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,1998

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Title Page
Table of Contents
Budget Secretary’s Letter of Transmittal
Deputy Secretary’s Letter of Transmittal
Certificate of Achievement
Organization and Officials Chart
Office of the Budget - Comptroller Operations

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report
General Purpose Financial Statements:

Combined Balance Sheet—All Fund Types, Account Groups and Discretely Presented
+ COMIPONENT TIILS L.vveececmriarsissrisessrrsnisrsesessrrsss s st ses e e E s et b PR b s R s s s
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented

CotnPORENE TS .cv.eererectsiosessmsmsmse e seesssssesass s cssssassnssssnsnas sesnas e eeetreeeee e s s emeeneieat
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Unreserved/

Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—

General and Budgeted Special Revenne Funds.......co s et
Combined Staternent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Eamnings/

Fund Balances—All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely

Presented Component UNIS ......ivcureruessecteierinsisssstas st sssnn et et s sas s e
Combined Statement of Cash Flows—All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely

Presented COmPONEnt ULILS ....ccruiueurerercmer e sssissss st bt st s
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets—Pension Trust Fund ..o,
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets—Investment Trust Fund ......cocoviriinninnrinnes reeeer e
Combined Balance Sheet—Discretely Presented Component ULItS.......cninimrer s,
Combining Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units...............
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

Govemnmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units .. .
Combining Balance Sheet-—Proprietary Funds—Discretely Presented Component Umts
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings —

Proprietary Funds —Discretely Presented Component URES ...
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds—Discretely Presented

COMPONETE TIIILS 1.vuvincuirmiuiesiaeeesens s sstsbss s ssas s et s d TR TR0 e b s
Combining Staternent of Changes in Plan Net Assets — Pension Trust Fund Discretely

Presented Component UD.........cooiimiminiisssnsr e tss sttt sss s s s en s st st
Combining Balance Sheet—College and University Funds—Discretely Presented

COMPONEINE UL .....corueceeruicrsescmsesessresassessnsssrssss s ssens s ch s b5 e RE s Er 0380222020
Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances—College and University Funds—

Discretely Presented Component UDIE .......cermiesemeesemsmmt st i
Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances—College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit ........covvvrvreeeevan.
Notes t0 FInancial STATEINEIIES ....cccerrerrrrereerronereercer e sosnesassess e st b s e £ea s see s sassaba s shaa s a bt ab b4 e neasnsnnaes

Combining Financial Statements and Schedules:
Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds—DeSCIIPHOM . ..uowu murueriersresecueceisss st snmm s s st st
Combining Balance Sheet—=Special Revenue Funds. ... vt
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Special Revenue FUDAS ...ttt tnss b s st st
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Unreserved/
Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—
Budgeted Special Revenue FUDAS ...ttt st s

g
1]
]

i
viii
xvil
xviii
Xix

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17

18
19
20
© 21
22

23
24

75
76

77

78




Debt Service Funds

Debt Service FUnAs—DescriPion. ....ccocvreesreincsecerrsseressserersresesremssssssss resssmssssessssssssessersssmssserronssseresnsasns
Combining Balance Sheet—Debt Service Funds.........ocovcernnnnrecennnrsnrs s vsssns s s e

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

DDt SEIVICE FUIIAS . .vvveersieereesiersrerrrernesssssressrssnesasnssssnmreermreren s emmeeeeeesssbsseeboantasssesarsntssssesssnsnsansnressssnnees

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds—IDescriPtion .......co.eicircierniereerertenrmssssrmessseeserssssersssesesrsssssiermrssenss ssssassssssnses
Combining Balance Sheet—Capital Projects FUnds ......cccovenvrienererrminssec e vseesesevmsssssssssssies

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

Capital Projects FUNAS........cocoeieieee e nreeeerns e s s smes et res st sas st st e st et ea e st enteavareresmsanns

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds—DesCription ... ..o oot ecemciessts st abesasas s st s b s s n s s et
Combining Balance Sheet—Enterprise FUnds ... s

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings—

ENteTPTiSe FUNAS c..cveveeceerrreereererriererernesneresnisissssestsessesssermsmrere smssmses e sesaesoesacsermeeseais obsmers s bissssssansnsssnn
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Enterprise Funds............ccccooiiimmr s

Interral Service Funds

Internal Service FUnds—DeSCIIPHON c.c.reerieirecesc e e s as s sssas e nssssass e s v e s sesanacs
Combining Balance Sheet—Internal Service Funds .....coooeeecrrceviciniccceeens eeresararaesncs prasaeseacanes

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings—-

Internal Service FUnds... ..ot s e b e e
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Internal Service Funds........ooeeeeemeeenensennnnisnnesnerreccs

Trust and Agency Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—DesCriPlOT oo e ree ettt ccs b bss st sas s st sa s s b et sa s s e
Combining Balance Sheet-—Trust and Agency Funds ...ttt csssiscioans
Combining Balance Sheet-—Expendable Trust FUNAS ....c.ovee oot mscsssiss e

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

Expendable Trust FUNAS.......cccc e srereeiensenetesseseesassssseressossnsssrossoessesmcsass rmsmsancsss sesassencensos
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities—Agency Funds.......ccovvenvninncccccins

General Fixed Assets Account Group

General Fixed Assets Account Group—Deseription ....cuceiiivvininrscses e sreesnss et saa s snses

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed ASSEIS ..o icooeiereer et es sttt esse s a s senstaas s sanas
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by FURCHON.....cc.iveeininiictrciereiee e e enes
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by FUNCHON.....cccvvreerervreeeranrorenessmresresesressme s scraecessenns
STATISTICAL SECTION
Table
Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function—All Governmental Fund Types ................. 1
Net Bonded Debt Per Capita....covevecvererrrerersreesserssesssensssesesssmssssasesssssessmssssaseasssssnsssesssasessasessasses 2
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Requirements for General Obligation Bonded Debt to Total
General Fund EXPEnQItiUTES .......eooreeeeiiee e etecesceseemessresesesesss e sesase e sosansasams e ssasesasasesssassasansens 3
Computation of Legal Debt Margin ...ttt s sns s 4
Schedule of Revenue Bond COVETAZE ......coviviiirieic e ceieiessineiin s sessssssesn s ssiassssnsse s smanns 5
Annual Estimates of the Resident Population—Pennsylvania Compared to the United States..... 6
State Banking Institutions Demand Deposits and Time and Savings Deposits .......cceiinninnn, 7
Resident Employment, Unemployment and Unemployment Rate—Pennsyivania Compared
10 the UnDited StAtes .....ccoviv it sssses s st nr s s see s e emess s st emnns 8
Total Personal Income and Per Capita Personal Income—Pennsylvania Compared to the
L4 B (= OO 9
Thirty Largest Nongovernmental EMPIOYETLS .....ccvovoiviiniiiniininivsrsssssss s esesressmes e res e seenans 10
List of Major Corporations that Maintain their Corporate Headquarters in the
COMMORWEAIN. ..ottt st ces s st s s st et e s e st st s g s s sn s anss s s rmmnnnanss 11
Miscellaneous StAtISTICS .....vvmiie et i st et ses s st s v sa s e s esne e sseme e geas e e nanme e 12

i

86
&7

88

90
9

92
93

96
97

98
99

102
103
104

105
106

110
110
111
111

115
116
117
118
118

120
121

122
123



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

iv




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA '
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1998

ROBERT A. BITTENBENDER
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the Citizens of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania displays our
continned commitment to sound and effective fiscal management and to complete financial reporting based on
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This CAFR, which includes the Commonwealth’s independently
audited general purpose financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, will provide you and
the financial community with all the information required to filly assess the Commonwealth’s financial position,
results of operations and the management of its financial resources.

The continuation of increased national economic growth, now the third longest uninterrupted period since the
end of World War II, contributes to positive economic growth in Pennsylvania. The growth, and Pennsylvania’s
improved competitive position in the national economy, have brought record levels of employment to Pennsylvania
and reduced unemployment rates at or below the national average. In June.-1998, the seasonally adjusted
unemployment rate for Pennsylvania was 4.9 percent, a nine-year low. Gains in ernployment have helped contribute
to higher personal income in Pennsylvania. Seasonally adjusted personal income in Pennsylvania was estimated to
have increased by 5.4 percent between the first calendar quarters of 1997 and 1998. The gain helped to raise
Pennsylvania personal income tax collections by 8.5 percent for fiscal year 1997-98 over the previous fiscal year.
While the national economy is expected to continue to move forward, the pace of that advance is expected to be
slower and the gains for Pennsylvania are expected to be smaller. These expectations are based on the belief that the
national economy is becoming increasingly fragile. No recession in the United States is expected in the near future;
however, the Commeonwealth has been using its Tecent strong fiscal performance to increase its reserves and to fund
targeted tax cuts that should enhance future stability and growth for the Commonwealth and its cifizens.

On the budgetary basis, the Commonwealth’s General Fund ended the 1997-98 fiscal year with a $488.7 million
unreserved/undesignated fund balance prior to reserving $223.3 million for transfer to the Tax Stabilization Reserve
(Rainy Day) Fund. Therefore, the unreserved/undesignated fund balance, after transfer, on the budgetary basis and
GAAP basis were $265.4 and $497.6, respectively, With the 1997-98 transfer, the balance in the Tax Stabilization
Reserve Fund increased to $657.3 million. A similar increase in the available balance of the Tax Stabilization
Reserve Fund and of the unreserved/undesignated fund balance in fiscal year 1996-97 were two of the major reasons
why two bond rating agencies increased the Commonwealth’s general obligation bond rating in October 1997. This
increase was the first since 1986 and the first time since 1968 that all bond ratings were in the “AA” category. (A
third rating agency increased the Commonwealth’s general obligation bond rating after the close of the 1997-1998
fiscal year).

Economic development continues to be a long-term commitment of the Commonwealth as evidenced by the
significant amount of funds appropriated for loans and grants to employers. Among these loans and grants was $40
million transferred from the General Fund to the Ben Franklin/Industrial Resource Centers Partnership to creaie jobs
through the development and application of technology and advanced production techniques. Also, $20 million of
loans and grants for infrastructure development of industrial sites were made from the General Fund. The Machinery
and Equipment Loan Fund provided $16 million in low interest loans and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority provided $100 million in loans to local industrial development agencies to stimulate economic activity.
The Opportunity Grants Program, funded by the General Fund, provided $35 million for grants to attract and retain
businesses. Team PA, in conjunction with the Business Resource Center and the Business Retention Program,
provided $3.5 million along with additional funds from private partners to work with businesses to resolve issues,
create jobs, and retain jobs in Pennsylvania. The Small Business First Fund, which is supported by the General
Fund, sireamlined loans for small businesses and disbursed more than $23 million in low interest loans.



~ General Fund tax cuts enacted during the 1997-98 fiscal year will save Pennsylvania taxpayers an estimated
$170.6 million through an expansion of the personal income tax exemption for low-income taxpayers, an exemption
from sales tax for computer services, a research and development tax credit and other tax changes.

Pennsylvania is also working to create jobs in other ways. Recognizing that success begins with a well-trained
work force, the Commonwealth provided funding from the General Fund for customized job training and supported
the opportunity to capitalize on the global marketplace to operate and expand Pennsylvania's international trade in
the amounts of $18 million and $5.2 million, respectively. Marketing Pennsylvania as a tourist destination and
business place was funded at $14 million. :

The Commonwealth continned its commitment to its communities by providing $15.6 million from the General
Fund for the Housing and Redevelopment Program to rebuild neighborhoods and to rehabilitate low-income
housing. Additional funds were provided to expand local efforts to promote tourism. The Commumity Development
Bank was established with $15 million from the General Fund and is expected to receive over $30 million in private
funds. It will provide capital for community development lending to support the needs of small businesses and
nonprofit organizations.

Education is essential to Pennsylvania’s future. The General Fund provided nearly $3.5 billion to our public
schools through the Basic Education Funding program. Total funding for basic education was nearly $5.9 billion,
including funding for special education, pupil transportation, teacher retirement and social security, and special
programs to address the needs of economically and educationally challenged students. In addition, nearly $1.6
billion was provided for higher education institutions and students. : :

" The Commonwealth continued the three-year technology initiative known as Project Link to Learn. This
initiative will help bring global computer resources into Pennsylvania's classrooms and allow schools to participate
in advances in computing and communications. Over $43 million in second-year funding was provided for the
acquisition of computers and network conmections in our public schools. This brings the two-year total investment to
over $82 million. This three-year initiative will provide for the development of the community-based Pennsylvania
Education Network.

In addition, $10.4 million was provided for a new program in which schools that improve their academic
performance will be rewarded with additional funding.

The Department of Corrections opened a 1,096 bed correctional facility in southeastern Pennsylvania and plans
were finalized during 1997-98 for an increase of over 1,000 additional beds at other State correctional institutions.

The Commonwealth continued its comprehensive welfare reform program based on individual and family self-
sufficiency. The program incorporates the changes made by Congress in passage of the Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act and those changes authorized by the General Assembly in Act 35 of 1996.
The program provides time limited cash assistance for families and other support to enable individuals to get and
keep a job. Federal support includes two block grants: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families and Child Care
Development. State and Federal expenditures for these programs and Medical Assistance amounted to $7.6 billion in
the 1997-98 fiscal year. Approximately 42 percent of the total cost of assistance to the economically needy are
funded by the General Fund, with the balance provided by the Federal government. A Medical Assistance
Intergovernmental Transfer provided additional funds totaling $737 million during the 1997-98 fiscal year.

During the 1997-1998 fiscal year several major laws were enacted that created new programs or modified
existing programs. The following summarizes some of these changes:

—  Act 1997-45A made various appropriations and authorized release of funds for a new Community
Development Bank Grent and Loan Program to assist community development financial institutions
acquire Federal and State accreditation and provide loans through these community development banks to
revitalize distressed communities and buildings.
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— Act 1997-58 enacted changes to comply with Federal requirements on child support enforcement and
welfare reform.

— Act 1997-60 authorized the transfer of the Harrisburg International Airport and Capital City Airport from
the Commonwealth to the Susquehanna Area Regional Airport Authority.

— Act 1998-41 provided for a limited early retirement provision for both State and public school employees
which allows persons with 30 years of service to retire with no reduction in benefits during certain time
periods.

— Act 1998-45 amended the Tax Reform Code to expand the tax forgiveness provisions (“poverty
exemption™) for individuals, reduce the Capital Stock and Franchise Tax rate by .5 mills to 12.25 mills,
extend the net operating loss recovery period from 3 years to 10 years, increase the Job Creation Tax Credit
cap by $5 million to $20 million, and create a research and development tax credit of $15 million per year
through December 31, 2003. These changes are all effective for tax years beginning on or after January 1,
1998, and will save taxpayers an estimated $170.6 million annually. Other changes to the Tax Reform
Code were also included in this Act. .

— Act 1998-46 amended the Public School Code to make numercus changes to the payment of basic
education funding, special education, pupil transportation and community colleges, and provide for the
administration of the Philadelphia School District by the Commonwealth upon declaration by the Secretary
of Education that the school district is distressed.

—  Act 1998-50 provided for local tax reform which allows school districts to change their local tax structure
from property tax to income tax based if amthorized by local referendum and enables local taxing
authorities to exclude a fixed doflar amount of the assessed value of each homestead property from
taxation.

— Act 1998-53 amended the Fiscal Code to expand the investment aﬁthority of the State Treasurer by
providing the “prudent person” standard for investments and eliminating the current legal list of allowable
Investments.

~  Act 1998-57 enacted the Procurement Code to codify and streamline policies and procedures for the
procurement of goods, services and construction.

— Act 1998-68 amended the Insurance Company Law of 1921 by adding a chapter on Quality Health Care
Accountability and Protection which defines responsibilities of managed care plans, utilization review
entities and the Department of Health, and by expanding the Children’s Health Care Insurance Program to
provide health insurance coverage for eligible uninsured children and bring the program into compliance
with Title XXI of the Social Security Act.

— Act 1998-88 enacted a cost-of-living adjustment for annuitants of the State and Public School Retirement
Systems beginning Juty 1, 1998.

In summary, the general purpose financial statements show that commitment to fiscal discipline has resulted n
continued financial improvements, allowed the Commonwealth to lower taxes and to continue funding programs
that provide equity in education, enhance economic development and meet critical human service needs.

Sincerely,

ot B S l—

Robert A. Bittenbender

Secretary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1998

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Bittenbender:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. This report, which includes the General
Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS), was prepared by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations, pursuant to the
power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget by
Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984,

The financial statements contained in. this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They were
jointly audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Emst & Young LLP, a nationally
recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors’ Report is included in this financial report.

I believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as measured
by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor, the Members of
the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain a full understanding of the Commonwealth’s
operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of the presentatlon
including 2ll disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylivania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating results by
fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules; certain
narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social and
demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

‘For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) is a primary government. The
primary government, or PG, includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of the
Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations that are not
legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented component
units. Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would cause the
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability include appointment
of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization
or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered.
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Based upon the financial accountability criteria, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the Notes
to Financial Staternents, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units, except the
State Employes’” Retirement System, which is included in the Commonwealth’s primary government as 2 blended component
unit:

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership —Governmental Fund

Tnsurance Fraud Prevention Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund

Public School Employes’ Retirement System—Fiduciary Fund

State Employes’ Retirement System-—Pension Trust Fund

Stafe Public School Building Authority—Governmental Fund

State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACC OUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their
specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exereised at the agency level
by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure
categories include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed charges.
An encumbrance system is used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels. '

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issned are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve that part of an
appropriation until the actual liabilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do not
exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that unencumbered
appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the new fiscal year.
Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the mew fiscal year. They are reported in the Commonwealth’s
governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance. Funds reserved for
appropriations carried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time any remaining
balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise extended for some
other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance carried forward from
one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated itern.

Accounting records of most departments under the Goverpor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations.
Separate accounfing systems are maintained by the Depariment of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liquor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Tndustry, Office of Employment Security, for the
payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor General, and
the Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, maintain separate accounting systems.

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary basis by fund, agency and
appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment requisitions
and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and expenditures
are adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions are
executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and that the
financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the
Department of Revenue’s records of cash receipts.
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THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPES)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GPFS i
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary
basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on the
medified accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The
College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting guidance
and reporting practices applicable to governmental colleges and universities, as outlined in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, udits of Colleges and Universities, and pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. :

In measuring financial position and operating results on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as compared to the
budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available to finance current
obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are generally reported when goods and services are received
and a liability incurred, rather than when cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPFS as of 2
fiscal year end include amounts that actually will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial datz at the time the financial
. statemnents are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of credits and refunds, and accounts payable and
‘accrued expenditures for which a liability has been incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

A continuing trend of economic growth in the national economy has helped Pennsylvania achieve significant economic
benefits. As of June 1998, the unemployment rate in Pennsylvania was below the national average and 1.0 percent below the
June 1997 rate. The number of Pennsylvanians unemployed was among the lowest of the past decade. Jobs in Pennsylvania

‘increased by over 56 thousand during the year ended June 30, 1998. Both the goods and the services producing sectors of
the economy produced increased jobs. The gains in employment in Pennsylvania and a robust stock market contributed to a
5.3 percent gain in Pennsylvania personal income for the year ended June 30, 1998. While not equal to the 6.1 percent
national gain, growth in Pennsylvania was above the increase for the Middle Atlantic States (NY, NJ, PA). As is the case in
other areas, the lack of enough competent, trained workers places a constraint on further employment gains. The shortage in
Pennsylvania is compounded by the very slow growth in population, particularly in the working-age cohorts.

For the past several fiscal years, national gross domestic product (adjusted for inflation) has increased by more than 3
. percent per year. Gains of this magnitude were above the increases assumed in budget revenue estimates. Consequently, the
higher than anticipated level of economic activity produced tax revenues above budget estimates. It is not anticipated that
the national economy will continue to produce gains in the 1998-99 fiscal year similar to those of the preceding fiscal years.
Likewise, there is no expectation for Pennsylvania tax revenues in fiscal year 1998-99 to grow similar to those years.
Economic data for the second and third quarters of 1998 support the projection for slower economic growth ahead.

Deteriorating economic conditions in foreign countries, particularly ‘in Russia and in the countries. in Asia, are
threatening to spread to the remainder of the world. The effects of weak economic conditions in foreign economies are
partially responsible for the current slowing in the U.S. gross domestic product. Declining commodity prices and instability
in the value of foreign currencies could cause global and financial turmoil. A volatile domestic stock market has ended the
expectation for significant further immediate advance in stock prices, but there is no expectation that the stock market will

_lead to a U.S. recession this year. While most risks to the forecast are consideréd to be on the downside, it is anticipated that
modest economic growth will continue in the U.S. and inflation will not accelerate through the remainder of the 1998-99
fiscal year. Pennsylvania is expected to continue to mirror national economic trends.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal point of any assessment of Pennsylvania’s financial
position. Tt accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere
and for the major portion of Commonwealth expenditures, Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and sales
and use taxes, constitute approximately 62.9 percent of the General Fund budgetary basis revenues. Major fund expenditures
are for general government, protection of persons and property, public health and welfare, public education, conservation of
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natural Tesources, ¢conomic development, transportation and debt service on all obligations except those incurred for
highway or other special revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated within its adopted
General Fund budget, as amended, is presented in the “Combined Statement of Revemies, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis),” included in the GPFS.

Budgerary Basis: At June 30, 1998, the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary
basis) of $265.4 million in the General Fund. This compares to a budgetary basis fund balance of $402.3 million, as restated,
at June 30, 1997. The budgetary basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 was the result of revenue
collections totaling $26,818.4 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $26,835.0 million, less other net financing
uses totaling $120.3 million. Included in the $26,835.0 million appropriation authorizations are $119.4 million of state
supplemental appropriations and $197.6 million in Federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the fiscal year.

The following table shows the General Fund’s actual year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and increases or
decreases (expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/

Undesignated Increase
At June 30 Fund Balance (Decrease)

1994 $ 3022 3 87.3

1995 (Restated) 437.0 134.8
1996 (Restated) 158.5 (278.5)

1997 (Restated) 402.3 245.1
1998 2654 (136.9)

Modified Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1998 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $1,958.9
million, an increase of $594.0 million from the $1,364.9 million fund balance at June 30, 1997. Total assets increased by
$705.1 million to $4,973.6 million. Liabilities increased $111.1 million to $3,014.7 million. These changes and others are
refiected in the General Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows.

General Fund

Summary Comparative Balance Sheet (GAAF Basis)
{Amounts in Millions)

Increase
June 30,1998  June 30, 1997 {Decrease)

Assets
Cash and termporary IMvestments ........ccoocceeeiiveeneiritiresraenens $2,693.0 $1,7799 $ 9131
Receivables, Det oo 970.5 941.0 29.5
Due from other funds/component units/governments.............. 1,072.0 1,184.3 (1123)
FOOd StAIMP COUPOIS vreervererrennererresnercrmsomesicamsasamsamsssemssaeesssstinn 238.0 358.6 (120.6)
OMHET A8SIS cuerrerreererrct s rc e e e e sbec s s ssss s sa e s s | 4.7 {(4.6)
TOtal ASSELS....ccsceirermrrenre s s seemrimes e s e e et sb et vt snan 3 4973.6 $ 42685 § 7051
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities.........cccoccveena $ 1,973.8 $ 1,920.5 $§ 533
Due to other funds/component units/governments ..........vcvevere 774.4 602.2 172.2
DELEITEd TEVEIUE «..oeeeeeeereeereeeeeeeristee e seesssestessensssserasaneennennes 2665 3209 (114.4)
Total LIgbilties. ... vecieeeeceeeeeremeree sttt sisss s sasssssesananans 3,014.7 2.903.6 111.1
Fund Balance
RESETVED 1.voverriiieereeeree e ees s srsss s s ss s nsa s e s emes 317.3 3452 (27.9)
Unreserved:
DeSIZnated ........ceccerrererermrererersresrerrocssureresscnsacerceraeritsasssares 1,144.0 8324 3116
Undesignated .......coveveemeriinnirieieessen ettt sssssns e 497.6 187.3 3103
Total Fund Balance ... essseesseesessesssesanes 19589 13649 594.0
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance .........ovcveemeieeeee i, 349736 § 4.268.5 § 705.1
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GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, which includes the
Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. These funds account for most general operating
revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1998 increased by $875.8 million to $3,791.8 million
from a $2,916.0 million balance, as restated, at the beginning of the fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund balances at
June 30, 1998 amount to $659.0 million as comnpared to a $699.2 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance a year ago.
Comparative summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (amounts in millions)
follow. :

General Governmental Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt Service
and Capital Projects Funds totaled $33,503 million. This represents a 4.5 percent increase over the previous year. Taxes
constituted 56.8 percent of general governmental revenues; intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds, constituted

28.9 percent. '

Fiscal Years Ended
: | ) I Increase

Revenue Source June 30, 1998 June 30. 1997 (Decrease)
XS e cueatrereeesreeaeestrsnsanesnssnessmsreestessantesassseenassnsassensseraseressnernenes $ 19,044 § 18,168 $ 876
Licenses and fees ......cccevivrveerennrereens et ee e e e emenreee e 1,004 804 200
INteTEOVETIINENIAL. ... ieerereseseenserseicrneeesnesscernasesssmsssesesrannenere 9,669 9,499 170
Charges for sales and Services ....oaueerrcresrcre e 1,698 1,517 181
InVESIMENt INCOTME ... ccucvereertirireeierssee s b sssassevensesaresessssreensanirens 226 175 51
LOUETY TECEIPES ....cucureeresrersrarssesersernsssrrnsressrssssessassasassastesresannc 1,684 1,723 (39)
Lease rental principal and interest ..........oovoeeeeeeveececeeeeee i, 2 i 2 -
OHRET .o ee et et aecaba e s rba s bs e b bannt e s aansngnnre s 176 185 (9)

TOtAl REVEIUES .ooeeeeeeceeiei s ceiee e tec s e e s ss s rasaserss s s e rasasnanes § 33503 h 32.073 § 1430

Licenses and fees increased $200 million primarily because of a 50 percent increase in motor vehicle registration fees.

. Tax revenue increased $876 million due primarily to an increase in employment and an improvement in the economic
condition of the Commonwealth.

r——' Fiscal Years Ended —|
Increase

Taxes by Type June 30, 1998 June 30. 1997 (Decrease)
PErsonal IMCOIIE ... ..coecureeetiitieteteteseene s cesaseassesis ranssssessasans $ 6,017 $ 35,606 5 411
8ales AN USE ..o e 6,228 6,198 30
COTPOTATION ..o vvsesrerrrresrerrrenssrsrresssesrsnsssessenesmssesassnesesesssssesnsssennas 3,725 3,612 : 113
LAiquid fUels. ..o e 784 ' 762 22
L1011y T USSRt 2,290 1.990 300

Total Tax REVEIIIE .. ..ccriereieiririerinseeiesersstcnssrssssarssnsssssnessasesans 3 19.044 £ 18,168 3 876
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General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects Funds totaled $32,293 million, an increase of $1,496 million over the previous year. Of the total
amount expended, public health and welfare accounted for 44.4 percent, public education for 23.9 percent and transportation
for 10.0 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended :

. ] Increase
Expenditure Function June 30, 1998 June 30. 1997 {Decrease)
General OVEIMIMNENL. ....c.cocereeemeeeemrmrne e eeesssstassssnasnansn $ 2,587 $ 2,469 3 118
Protection of persons and ProPerty ......coeccveverieerirssesssesrnsssane 2,613 2,462 151
Public health and wWelfare.........ccccovevievnerresinsmrescesemne s ssasenrnenns 14,342 13,507 435
Public AUCAEOM. .....ovverireenrivsrrerneerersmereraressseresaranrrescaenssrenseiassos 7,715 7,397 318
Conservation of natural reSOUICES. ... ccevereeeeesersrsrnssassensnieas 396 360 27
Economic development and assistance.........ccerverrercrverevrerecana 339 300 39
TTANSPOTIAHON. ....cvevruesreereeeceeemcerseassesnrneses s erecemsmemmrarasseeessrisesisens 3,243 2,913 330
Capital OBIAY ..o et s _ 360 254 106
Debt service:

Principal TEtITEMENT . ...vcvuvinvnisieismnrssrn i eresnsnsencssnmscanossas 435 438 {(3)
Interest and fiscal Charges.......coeeveverevvcnn s _ 263 ____ 288 (259
Total expenditires. ......cooreevnri et s s $ 32293 3 30,797 $ 1496

Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $435 million or 3.1 percent over the previous fiscal year.
Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance
comprise a portion of the public health and welfare expenditure increase.

Expenditures for transportation increased by $330 million or 11.3 percent over the previous fiscal year, due mainly to an
increased effort to repair and maintain a greater number of road miles during this fiscal year.

Expenditures for public education increased $318 million or 4.3 percent primarily because of increased allocations to
school districts, colleges and universities. ‘

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS— GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The discretely presented component unit governmental fund type includes the Penmsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority, the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership, the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority and the State Public School
Building Authority. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1998 increased $281million to $626 million from a $345
million balance, as restated, at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Revenues of the component unit governmental funds totaled $300.0 million at June 30, 1998. Lease rental principal and
interest revenue of $241.2 million represents 80.4 percent of total revenues.

Expenditures of the component unit governmental funds totaled $609.0 million at June 30, 1998. Of the total amount
expended, debt service principal and interest expenditures were $286.5 million or 47.0 percent of total expenditures and
capital outlay was $275.3 million or 45.2 percent.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the
electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed one
and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five fiscal
years. The certified constitutional debt limit at August 26, 1998 was $35.7 billion. Qutstanding capital project debt at August
26, 1998 amounted to $3.7 billion.

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate approved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1998 was $4,841 million. Total debt service
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transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998
amounted to $762.5 million.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances
amounting to $721.5 million, an increase of $289.7 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $431.8 million during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. This forecast reflects the need to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, highway bridges, mass transportation and water supply systems. Debt principal
retirements of $443.7 million are forecast during fiscal 1999. The table that follows shows total outstanding long-term
indebtedness for general obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most recent fiscal years.

Outstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1992 - $ 4,874
1993 5,041
1994 5,100
1995 . 5,041
1996 5,062
1997 4,842
1998 4,841

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds® estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including Federal
funds, are expected to increase by 3.0 percent and 4.1 percent, respectively. Although the 1998-99 fiscal year executive
budget includes the issuance of $560 million of tax anticipation notes, the Commonwealth currently has no plans to issue any
notes for this fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial paper issuances (expressed in millions) during
the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund tax anticipation notes were not issued for the perjods
shown and are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issued

Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of

Issue Ended of the General Fund

June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1995 $ 600 4
1996 500 3
1997 550 3
1998 225 1
1999 (Estimated) 560 3

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit Commonwealth monies, excluding
certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Amounts deposited are not
required to be segregated by fund.
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Tn addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest Commonwealth monies that are in excess of daily needs of
the various Commonwealth Funds. Virtually all excess amounts are invested i the Treasury Short-Term Investment Pool
(STIP). The STIP includes the following types of investments, with related weighted average maturity and percent of total
STIP investments, at June 30, 1998:

Weighted Average
Maturity
Investment Type {days) Percent
Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or EQUVAlent) ......covueeccecnennciaens 14 8.5
United States Treasury and Agency Oblgations ......oeevrmeissnsisisnen i 301 10.9
REPUICHASE AZTECINEIS. covvvvuermssvssssanecsssrssersantsirssssas s s sttt 5 75.0
Certificates 0f DEPOSIL ..ovcrecciresrerertsrsssrmseasitsen s stsss sttt s b b e 65 1.9
Corporate Bonds and NOTES ......ceweereeserecerssinssmmmsnssssrmssssssrss st cassns 1,730 0.4
BT oo eeeeeeesesusreeeeetssessrasanssasasemmembabo e aE sE e s A AP SRR SRS RS e R e ep S a s s 106 33

100.0

Total STIP investments amounted to over $6.1 billion at June 30, 1998. Al STIP investments are reporied as
temporary investments by participating Funds. The STI? earned $269 million during the fiscal year, at an average yield of
5.67 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983. The
Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits and tort liabilities, including automobile, employe
and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage is
obtained for property losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence, to a Jimit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage for
property losses Jess than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
prograrm.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds. Completed projects and
construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group. Construction in progress at June 30, 1998 amounted to $403 million. Authorized but unissued general
obligation bonds at June 30, 1998 totaled $22.7 billion.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan prograins for
economic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth
enterprise funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1998 of $244.5 million, which represents an increase of $117.4
million from the $127.1 million, as restated, of retained earnings reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and an investment trust fund, reported total
fund balance of $25,047 million, compared to $21,997 million, as restated, in the previous year. Total fund balances of the
expendable trust funds increased by $226 million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $3,198 million at
June 30, 1998. The State Employes” Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $21,312 million,
an increase of $2,820 million from the previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits. The
INVEST Program for Local Governments, the investment trust fund, reported a fund balance of $537 million at December
31, 1997 it’s fiscal year ended. Inaccordance with GASB Statement 31, effective January 1, 1997 the INVEST Program was
reclassified from an Agency fund type to an Investment Trust fund type and reported a balance of $454 million.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turnpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
earnings at June 30, 1998, totaling $1,916 million, which represents an increase of $13 million from the $1,903 million, as
restated, of retained earnings reported the previous year.

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported 2
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fund balance of $44,857 million at June 30, 1998, which represents a $5,460 million increase over the $39,397 million fund
balance, as restated, in the previous fiscal year. ‘

The total fund equity for the College and University funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education, a
discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1998 was $430 million, compared to $355 million at June 30, 1997.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June 30,
1998 amounted to $4,508 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not-recognized for the
Commonwealth’s general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors® Report submitted herewith, was performed jointly by
the Department of the Auditor General and the independent public accounting firm of Emst & Young LLP. It was performed
pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code of 1929 and
in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after their
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audiis of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. This represenis the twelfth consecutive year the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award,

To merit a certificate of achieverment, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal
‘year ended June 30, 1998 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealth agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment to you to maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

Vsl

Harvey C. Eckert
Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget
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Sl FRNST&YOUNG LLP

x Central Pennsylvania

S Practice
BEPEEIS Commerce Court, Suite 200
Department of the Auditor General 2601 Market Place
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’ Harrisburg, PA 17110-9359

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120-0018

Independent Auditors® Report

The Honorable Tom Ridge, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. = These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial
statements of certain component units, which represent 79 percent of total assets of the Trust and
Agency Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, and 100 percent of the
discretely presented component units. The financial statements of these component units were
audited by other auditors, including Emnst & Young LLP acting separately, whose reports thereon
have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for those component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Ernst &
Young LLP has audited separately 3 percent of total assets and 4 percent of total revenues of the
discretely presented component units.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
.as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about
Year 2000 Issues, requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the year 2000 issue. The
Commonwealth has included such disclosures in Note T. Because of the unprecedented nature of
the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully
determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence exists




to support the Commonwealth’s disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue made in Note T.
Further, we do not provide assurance that the Commonwealth is or will be year 2000 ready, that
the Commonwealth’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or part, or that
parties with which the Commonwealth does business will be year 2000 ready.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined
to be necessary had we been able to examine evidence regarding year 2000 disclosures, based on
our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania at June 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B, the Commonwealth adopted GASB Statement # 31, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools”.

Our aundit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if
any, as might have been determined to be necessary had our auditing procedures not been limited
as explained in the third preceding paragraph, based on our audit and the reports of other
anditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial
statemnents taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and,
therefore, express no opinion thereon.

Wﬁ%% WfMLLP

November 13, 1998
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

. CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and

Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA !

(Expressed in Thousands) S
Total Total
Fiduciary (Memorandum (Memorandum o
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only) . ’ Only)
Special Pebt Capital Expendable Primary Component Reporting
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Goverament Units Entity
REVENUES:
Taxes $17,201,195 § 1,800,268 § - 5 42,272 % 5287  § 19,049,022 3 - 5 19,049,022
Unemployment $XeS. ..o - - - - 1,513,110 1,513,110 - 1,513,110
License and fees 170,129 833,921 - - 58,592 1,062,642 - 1,062,642
Intergovernmental 8,766,562 202,175 - 670 46,563 9,715,970 807 . 9,716,777
Charges for sales and services.. £,440,807 208,343 - 48,783 - 1,697,933 10,440 1,708,373
Investment income 119,981 88,998 5,412 11,414 195,946 421,751 22,331 444,082 |
Lottery TEVENueS.ummrmerisisieses - 1,684,015 - - - 1,684,015 - 1,684,015 D
Lease rental principal and interest.............. - - 2,159 - - 2,159 241,195 243,354 i
Other. 105,283 68,393 2,199 6 301 176,184 25,266 201,450
TOTAL REVENUES .oceevssssrmmenssenenons 27,803,957 5,586,115 — 970 103,145 _ 1,819,799 35322,786 300039 35622825 oo
EXPENDITURES: - O
Current: ..
General govermment. 1,108,098 1,477,925 - 506 5,434 2,591,963 - 2,591,963
Protection of persons and property... 2,590,304 15,749 - 6,968 75,052 2,688,073 8,040 2,696,113 |
Public health and welfare 13,648,551 692,988 - - 1,504,122 15,845,661 - 15,845,661 Pl
Public education................ 7,713,683 760 - - - 7,714,443 4,007 7,718,450 .
Conservation of natural resources. 127,543 230,723 - 37,321 - 396,087 - 396,087
Economic development and assistance........ 296,189 8,246 - 34,549 - 338,984 35,192 374,176
TTANSPOMRLOLL. - omomomeecememecess s sesnsmimsrir e s 371,65% 2,743,767 - 127,908 - 3,243,334 - 3,243,334 '
Capital Qutlay. .o e 10,309 23,552 - 325877 - 360,238 275,289 635,527
Debt service:
Principal retirement ... - ' - 435,050 - 9,683 444,773 128,093 572,366
Interest and fiscal charges.. 6,353 - 256,994 9 - 263,356 158,425 421,781
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......cccooneeee. 25,873,189 5,193,710 692,084 533,638 1,594,291 33,886,912 609,046 34,495,958
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES .... 1,930,768 392,405 (682,314) (430,493) 225,508 1,435,874 {309,007) 1,126,867 .
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds. - - - 415,135 - 415,135 434,265 849,400
Refunding bond praceeds...... . - - - - - - 300,84C 300,340
Operating transfers in—Note H 103,662 297,748 777,641 - - 1,179,051 513,069 1,692,120
Operating transfers out—Note H. (664,276) (446,271) {15,704) - - (1,126,251} (513,069) (1,639,320)
QOperating transfers from primary
government—Note Hurvveeereeeeciins - - - - - - 39,700 39,700
Operating transfers to component
units—Note H. (760,758) - - - - (760,758) - {760,758)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent..... - - - - - - (184,776) (184,776)
Capital lease and installment purchase
obligation 519 4,731 - - - 3,250 - 5,250
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) .oovcsvesssrssssssasmmmensnnns (1,320,853 (143,792) 761,937 415,135 - (287,573) 590,029 302,456 J
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES.... 609,915 248,613 79,623 (15,358) 225,508 1,148,301 281,022 1,429,323 :
FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED, ;
JULY 1, 1997 — NOTE C..coeermivrrenenens 1,367,966 1,354,679 116,028 77,364 2,972,080 5,888,117 344,944 6,233,061
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS— .
NOTE H (15,000) (28,000) - - - {47,000) - (47,000) i
_ FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 1993, $ 1,958,881 § 1575292 5 195651 % 62,006 $ 3,197,588 5 6989418 5 625966 3§ 7,6153%4

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) ,

General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
General Fund Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refimds..... § 16,216,100 3 16,864,753 3 648,653 $ 1,054,872 $ 1,058,121 3 3,249
Lottery receipt: - - - 880,908 909,344 28,936
Liquor store profits transfer. 50,000 50,000 - - M -
Eicenses and Fees...o.ooeeeeme et s e e 70,846 76,694 5,148 717,409 716,359 (1,050)
Fines, penalties and interest 23,500 28,357 4,857 - - -
Departmental services. 1,512,370 £,490,790 (21,58G) 55,491 39,058 (16,433)
MiSCellaneous. . .ocuirereecrirsisaceeeeacen ceeenees 176,600 193,064 16,464 98,469 107,681 9,212
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 18,049,416 18,703,958 654,542 2,807,149 2,831,063 7 23,914
Federal Programs 9,241,001 8,114,399 (1,126,602) 764,881 666,021 {93,860}
TOTAL REVENUES. 27,290,417 26,818,357 {472,050) 3,572,030 3,497,084 (74,946}
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
GERETAY GOVETMIMIETL .-.emsremeemsemeremsens sensremseemseemsnsssasssvenss 1,558,553 1,538,444 20,109 528,763 500,586 28,177
Protection of persons and property........ e sesssecasaes 2,278,942 2,264,062 14,880 285,299 283,357 1,942
Public health and welfare 6,598,041 6,588,769 9,272 624,092 610,186 ~ 13,806
Public education 7,546,587 7,544,256 2,331 1,526 1,272 254
Conservation of natural resources............ 118,053 117,769 284 1,000 2 %938
Economic development and assistance.... 305,503 305,502 1 142 142 -
Transportation 373,704 361,802 18,902 1,458,296 1,433,291 25,005
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 18,779,383 18,720,604 58,779 2,899,118 2,828,336 70,282
Federal Programs 9,241,001 8,114,399 1,126,602 764,381 666,021 98,860
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 28,020,384 26,835,003 1,185,381 3,663,999 3,494,857 169,142
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES... (729,967) (16,646) 713,321 {91,969) 2,227 54,196
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior-year lapses 103,047 103,047 . 68,144 68,144 B
Transfer to Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund.......ovoeeeeee. - (223,302) (223,302) . . -
Increase in budgeted revenues....... 654,542 - (654,542} - - -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .ocvmeeereeee 757,589 {120,255) (877,844) 68,144 68,144 -
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES —NOTE Muncincecmmeememmcmcnaes 27,622 {136,901) (164,523) (23,825) 70,371 94,196
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS), AS
RESTATED, JULY 1, 1997 — NOTE Cocreerecercrerrrrnnes 402,278 402,278 - 356,724 356,724 -
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUNE 30, 1998 5 429,900 b 265,377 3 (164,523) 5 332,899 3 427,095 3 94,196

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES

All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and service

Investment income.....

Interest on notes and loans. ............

© Other.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES......cocconirrrenirias

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services,

Interest expense......

Depreciation

Provision for uncollectibie account:

Other.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...

OPERATING INCOME (L.OSS)....

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment income.

Interest eXPense. . mimmaeecmemsmesann

Qil eompany franchise tax

OHher FEVETIES. ..uuiisisssraerennssemeensens

OhET EXPENSES wovsmmrerrirersrresreenae

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET.ccooneecermsinne

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS...

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers out—Note H

Operating transfers from primary government—Note H.
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET...ccocciminissssasainne

INCOME BEFORE

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS.

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt...........

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,
AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1997—Note Coonvocscrssssananns

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS.......cunicnccasnisrarenas

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,

JUNE 30, 1998

S 308835

— See notes to financial statements. —
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Total
Proprietary Fund Types (Memorandum Total
Only) (Memorandum
Internal Primary . Component Only)
Enterprise Service Government Units Reporting Entity
5 957,571 3 142,857 $ 1,100,428 753,721 % 1,854,149
202,186 - 202,186 94,573 296,759
5,383 - 5,383 365,502 370,885
698 £0 758 135,694 136,452
1,165,838 142,917 1,308,755 1,349,490 2,658,245
964,552 130,176 1,094,728 901,452 1,996,180
20,008 - 20,008 331,557 351,565
5,233 8,445 13,678, 156,082 169,760
10,637 - 10,637 .. 24,574 35,211
1,626 - 1,626 119,730 121,356
1,002,056 138,621 1,140,677 1,533,395 2,674,072
163,782 4,296 168,078 (183,905) {15,827)
6,157 1,148 7,305 22,274 29,579
. . R (58,769) (58,769)
- - - 41,431 41,431
327 491 818 2,561 3379
- (101) (101) {115,905} (116,007}
6,484 1,538 8,022 (108,40%) {100,387)
170,266 5,834 176,100 (292,314) (116,214)
{52,800} - (52,800) - (52,800)
- - - 307,816 307,916
(52,800) - (52,800) 307,916 255,116
117,466 5,834 123,300 15,602 138,902
- - - (3,171) {3,171)
117,466 5,834 123,300 12,431 135,731
127,064 59,458 186,522 1,903,373 2,089,895
- (987) (987) - (987)
3 244530 © § 64,305 1,915,804 3 2,224,639




COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
All Proprietary Fund Types and

Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Total
(Memorandum Total
Proprietary Funds Onliy) (Memorandum
Internal Primary Component Only)
Enterprise Service Gover |3 Upits Reporting Entity

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income {1058).meveeemerereassans 3 163,782 $ 4,296 ) 168,078 £ (183,905) 3 (15,827)
Adjustments to teconcile operating income (ioss) to net cash provided by )

{used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 5,233 8,445 13,678 156,082 159,760
Net amortization. - {816) - (816) 4,520 1,704
Provision for uncollectble ACCOUMS. ... ecwaermanrrrecremimsar s ssssanrrs rrvprrasesese smseeses 10,637 - 10,637 24,574 35,211
Nonoperating revenues. 327 4 331 2,561 2,892
Nonoperating exp - (O] &) {115,506) (115,912)
Reclassification of investment income. (202,186} - (202,186) (94,573) (296,759)
Changes in assets and labilities:
Inrezse-in receivables . (17,910) (30) (17.940) (323,712) (341,652)
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds. 2,389 (721) 1,668 . - 1,668
Increase in due from primary government - - - (2,256) (2,256)
Decrease in due from component wnits - 30 30 15 45
Decrease in due from other government y 24 51 75 82 157
(Increase) decrease in inventory. (12,394) 1,068 (11,326) (270) {11,596)
Decrease in other current assets. 104 83 187 3,585 3,772
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,988 960 6,948 985 7,933
Tncreage (decrease) in due to other funds. 5,307 (222) 5,085 - 5,085
Decrease in due t0 primary OVEINIMENL.........ccwwsermsermseemssmimsmssassssssirarsreaserans - - - (796) (796)
Decrease in due to component units - - - (15) (15
(Decrease) increase in due to other governments. (105) ) (100) 116,915 116,815
Decrease in deferred reven “ . (17,090) (35 {17.125) {11,048) (28,173)
Decrease in insurance loss Hability..ove.ocececececeriisisninnn R (99,400) - (99,400} - (99,400)
increase in tuition benefits payable... " 25,752 - 25,752 - 25,752
Increase in obligations under securities 160N ... vwerrrerreesrrsmareasrenesrenseeaseeas 33,635 - 33.635 - 33,635
(Decrease) increase in other current Habilities. .oovu vrevreeseeseeess soene: {21,094) - {21.094) 10,684 (10,410}
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS, . {281,599) 9,632 (271.967) (228.573) (300,540)
NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES......... (117,817) 13,928 (103,889) (412,478) (516,367)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:...cooousra-.
“Net borrowings under advances from other funds....c.mee. iveeoreecesninisssrsiners e (100) - (100) - {100)
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations............ - - - 650,201 650,201
Principal paid on debt obligation: - - - (333,235) {333,233)
Operating transfers from primary gOVEINIMEDLt... vurr i icscreemeessesinsne - - - 307,916 307,916
Operating transfers out (52,800) - (52,800} - (52,800)
NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. (52,500) - (52.900) 624,882 571,982
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on debt obligations. ettty s RS - - - (87.444) (B7,444)
Interest paid on debt obligations " - - - (58,769) {58,769}
Increases in CONTIBULEd CAPIAE. .vvurrcrrererrscossscsesssssssmssresssesssennesssbespassassnssnss oo 6,091 - 6,091 110,876 116,967
Decreases in contributed capital.. - " - - - (2,262) (2,262)
Acquisition and construction of caplra! ASECISuenrercenersesemsrsrass s s s asssnsnenenes (4,982) (11,679) (16,661) (181,944) (198,605)
Proceeds from sale 0f CADItAY 28518, .. rmrumersimmserssssssanssnsn st st e - 1,602 1,602 3,917 5,519
il COMPANY FANCRISE TAK. 1ovenrrrrsrersccemaecicsssrssssmsssrensssesssenss sessmossersssssaseseassinsss - - - 41,431 41,431
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED

_ FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,109 (10,077) (8,968) (174,195) (183,163)

i CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

: Purchase of investments (6,018,715) (76,875) (6,095,590} (31,616,533) (37,712,123)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of INVESINERHS. ....com v ereiimsssimnir s ressse e 6,033,405 71,551 6,104,956 31,472,727 37,577,683
Investment income.. 160,301 1,118 161,919 116,715 278,634

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACT[VITIES ........... 175,491 (4,206) 171,285 {27,091) 144,194
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 5,883 (355) 5,528 11,118 16,646
CASH, JULY 1, 1997 7,294 683 7,877 66,605 74,582
CASH, JUNE 30, 1998 3 13,177 3 328 5 13,505 3 77,723 5 91,228

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

— See notes to financial statements. —
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

Pension Frust Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

ADDITIONS:

Net appreciation in fair value of INVESHENENIS. ..o e isniii i s s se s
PenSion COMITBULONS. coeteeeersiesreessssrsnsessesressssssssrassssaranssmssss iescasas it st s sasmsssonsressassessanmosssarsessers seess smns

Investment income

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS:

BENETIE PAYINIEIIS ..o iiuiesier st caiaessare s aressenes e nscssaemns e sbi s e s Esban b sas e be e dnrat se b s e Rt s e ra e e s

Refunds of contributions....

AQINISITALVE EXPBTISES. ot ciarsisrecnarrsiasasstssmtsnsrsrarrssssasems cos s sbrssseesssbessass sensessrans st sarssssansnsssossransataneas

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

B L B3T3 =T -1 U OO PO OO RO ORROTRR

Fund balance reserved for pension benefits:

JANUARY 1, 1997.

DECEMBER 31, 1997

— See notes to financial statements. —
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State
Employes'
Retirement
System

$ 1,302,080
536,049

2,018,089

3,856,818

1,008,648
13,073
15,542

1,037,263

2,819,555

18,492,216

5 21,311,771




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
Investment Trust Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

InVESHMENT INCOIMIE. c1ivretteeiaterie e ceerreeee e et eea e sr e e rese e e nee s nae s eae et nasasnan e snsmemnace
Less: participant administrative expenses

Net increase in net assets resulting from OPErAtIONS —......cocvveccrreeivecrvr e rvensess e

Net investiment income distributions 10 participants........ccccoooeivrvvcnsnermiee s
Share transactions (at net asset value of $1.00 per share):

Shares PUICHASEA. ..eovererveveereierererre s srs s sns e stese e ss e ess e ae s st anssanes e s assaesbassssesemtonnserens

Shares issued in lieu of cash distributions
ShAares TEACEMIEA. e i eeieiiietieee et et n e e nmee et bt seesnae b on

Net increase in net assets from share ransactionS. ... e eriisrsi s e ssis

Net increase in net assets

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 1997, AS RESTATED - NOTE C....ccenirrrrseninns

FUNP BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997

— See notes to financial statements. —
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INVEST
Program
For Local

Governments

3 27,733
202

27,531

(27,655)

1,702,771,
20,768

(1,640,226)

83,313

83,189 .

453,989

558



COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1998
COMMORNWEALTHE OF PENNSYLVANI
{Expressed in Thousands)
College Total
) Fiduciary and (Memorandum
Governmental = Proprietary Fund - University Only)
Funds Funds Note I Funds Component Units
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Asseds: i
Cash-—Note D, $ 1,001 3 73,412 3 - 3 20,976 ] 95,389
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D, 349 4,311 - - 4,660
Temporary in Note D. 202,355 1,678,281 1,143,649 221,969 3,246,254
Loug-term ivestments—Note D. 425,246 599,746 48,883,487 304,241 50,302,720
Receivable, net:
Account: 30 15,107 - 32,730 47,867
Accrued interest 1,908 76,822 - - 78,730
Notes and loans—Nate G. 4,938 6,049,238 - 30,211 6,084,387
Lease rentzl—Note G 3,314,738 15,262 - - 3,330,000
Pension contributions. - - 286,421 - 286,421
Investment proceeds. - - 446,657 - 446,657
Other. - - 138,367 8,670 197,037
Due from other funds—Note H - - . 175,616 175,616
Due from prirnary gover t~—Note L. 299 6,310 183 135 7,027
Due from component units. - 123 - - 123
Due from other governments—Note B 89 50,968 16 - 51,073
Tuventory. - 5,361 - 5,015 11,876
Fixed assets—Note E - 3,624,331 17,561 892,667 4,534,559
Less: accumulated depreciation - {1,730,783) {10,746} (292,317) (2,033,846)
Other assets, £8,336 - 37,063 105,407
Other Debits:
Armounts available for retirement of other bonds. 53,114 - - - 53,114
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
Other bonds 3,360,872 - - - 3,360,872
Other general long-term obligation 235 - - - 235
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 7,365,182 $ 19,538,325 $ 500955695 5 1.526976 $ 70,386,178
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS T S S e T
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued lizbilitie k3 9,612 3 204,062 S 91,162 § 121,119 5 425,955
Investment purchases payable. - - 945,366 - 945,366
Obligations under securities lending, - - 5,061,402 - 5,061,402
Due to other funds—WNote H - B 175,616 175,616
Due to primary gover Note H 3 34,507 416 5360 40,286
Due to component umiis. - 123 - - 123
DU 10 OLhET QOVELTIIENES cmrre.veeressesasemsssesssseereerbsstsstssisasmssensnssessmssssesissss s 307 129,264 - - 129,571
Deferred revenue, 3314977 42,946 - 38714 3,396,637
Notes payable—Note J. - 385,79C - - 385,790
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J - 796,000 - - 796,000
Cther liabilities. 36 288,451 393,946 682,493
Bonds payable—Note K 3,413,986 - - - 3,413,986
Revenue bonds payzble—Note K - 5,212,311 - - 5212,311
Capital lease obligations—Note K 235 - - 361,785 362,020
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 6,739,216 7,093,454 §,098.346 1.096,540 21,027,556
Equity and Other Credits: -
Contributed capital—Note H, - 1,529,067 - - 1,529,067
Invi tin fixed asset - - . 257,400 257,400
Retained earnings:
Reserved—Note C - 1,342,723 - - 1,342,723
Uareserved - 573,081 - - 573,081
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrance: 4,691 - - 35,013 39,704
Pension benefits - - 44,857,349 - 44,857,349
Loans receivable - - - 32,906 32,906
Long-term investments. 425,246 - - - 425,246
Endowment and similar funds. - - - 14,384 14,384
Restricted fund balance. 2,207 - - 32,512 34,719
Other—Note C. 8,251 - - 155,902 168,163
Pareserved:
Designated for:
Capital project 117,854 - - - 117,854
Debt service:
Retirement of other bonds 53,114 - - - 53,114
Other. 5,107 - - - 5,107
Undesignated {deficity—Note C 9,486 - - (101,681) (92,195)
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS. 625,966 3,444,871 44,857,349 430,436 459,358,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS .... 3 7,365,182 $ 10,538,325 3 50955685 § 1,526,976 $ 70,386,178

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET R .
Governmental Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
State Public Insurance Higher
Schoot Fraud Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Preventien Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:

Cash—Note D.....cocoeicieiinecninesme s sessns s esnresees $ 213 § - 5 14 5 774 $ 1,001
Cash with fiscal agents..........ccciiiin s - - 349 - 349
Temporary investments—Note D - 53,020 9,441 5,538 134,356 202,355
Long-term investments—Note Do ceeicenines 31,089 - - 394,157 425,246
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNLS. . veemsrrsmaresse e setosiesssssastssassmss s me s sassmesessnsrnsbasmnsesnns 5 - 25 - . 30

ACCIUEA IHETESE o vron v eeeeceeceeceeeeemses e esseesensseseeee s snsassesmeeras 457 48 - 1,403 1,908

Notes and 10ans—Note G eereeirnerrneeserecrrarsenesencnnas 4,938 - - - 4,938

Lease rental—Note G... 340,654 - - 2,974,084 3,314,738
Due from primary govemment——-Note 7 OO - 209 - - 299
Due from other GOVEMmMENS. .....cocveereecenisienete i e - - 89 - 89
OENET ASSEES. 1vr e surrereseeeasreeromrarsoncaroresrasmesrensesenracntsessassrassnnerenes - - 8 - 3

Other Debits:

Amounts available for retirement of other bonds.......ccoceoenet 2,014 - - 51,100 53,114
Amounis to be provided for the retirement of:

Other bonds et 341,312 - - 3,019,560 3,360,872

Other general lcmg—term obligatlons 235 - - - 235

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS ..o 5 773,937 3 9,788 $ 6,023 § 6,575,434 $ 7,365,182

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.....coooveveecirrereiencns b 5,972 $ 1,908 $ 427 g 1,305 $ 9,612
Due 10 Primary gOVELMMENL. .o, viererererrsrrcsverccriscicrecaciemisiess B 3 $ - 3 - 3 - $ 3
Drue 10 other GOVEIMIMENTS. ..cvcinmsrerr e mriamieecerneeseee e ieseas - 307 - - 307
Deferred revenue.. 340,654 - - 2,974,323 3,314,977
QOther liabilities... e . 96 - - - 96
Bonds payab]e——NQte K. . et a s 343,326 - - 3,070,660 3,413,986
Capital lease and other general long-term obhganons “ 235 - - - 233
TOTAL LIABILITIES 690,286 2,215 427 6,046,288 6,739,216
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
ETICUIMIDTANICES. oo recatesasstssaesinsanasssasssssssassstssasssssanrstennrns - 4,691 - - 4,691
Long-term inVestmEntS ... eress 31,089 - - 394,157 425,246
Restricted fund BNt s ssrerss e ssssrsssssssssssennnes 2,207 - - . 2,207
DT vevemeeeemee v s emtmsesbesestasnss s sanninssmaressraresasnmssessesresrannrsveres - - - 8,261 8,261
Unreserved:
Designated for:
CaPIA] PTOJECIS.. e ooeemerseneeeeereses oo sssessmssrsessenernreresoir 42,226 . - 75,628 117,854
Debt service:
Retirement of other bonds. ...occc.iveceviieeiisisseesseesrssenenes s 2,014 - - 51,100 53,114
Other... - - 5,107 - 5,107
Undesagnated 6,115 2,882 489 - 9,436
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 83,651 7,573 5,596 529,146 625,966
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........... - $ 773,937 3 9,788 $ 6,023 § 6,575,434 $ 7,365,182

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds -

Discretely Presented Component Units . For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational
Building Ben Frankiin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
REVENUES: )

. TNETEOVEININERLAL . oonnererrnr e recsssssamassssssesssesasssmsssssssesssassssisnsss - 8 307 b - $ - 3 807
Charges for $8185 AN SEIVICES . wrrvcrreesrussssmssrissersassssecesss s 1,097 - 8,247 1,096 10,440
TRVESHTIENE INCOME. ...cvvcerenrenrevnsericsssiesnnsssaess bmstassars s ssabossassons 3,904 544 365 17,518 22,331
Lease rental principal and interest ... oo esiicmnnninrrmseiaaeias 35,072 . - - 206,123 241,195
OTHEE . vn v eveeseeeseressiaemerssensssrssraranssssassbesnmas semsemb st saamstsaapa s abat sesias s 954 1 142 24,169 25,266

TOTAL REVENUES 41,027 1,352 8,754 248,906 300,039
EXPENDITURES: .
Protection of persons and ProPerty.. ... e scnsssianssassaressass - - 8,040 - 8,040
PUBHC @AUCATIOTL 1vereaerremroseeeosessrssnesssranrarsessassessassessmsmsissnsassssasar 2,129 - - 1,878 4,007
Economic development and assiStance.. e reemeenecissssnsimienns - 35,192 - - 35,192
CaPItal DULIAY ... ovreesreanrsormsessersssssesssmss s semssissssrerossbassssn s ennss s 20,164 - - 255,125 275,289
Debt service:
Principal TeIemMEN .. v asiriiseinesessearsremse s scssssssnssien st essanses 27,868 - - 100,225 128,093
Interest angd fiscal Charges.. .o eveeiene et 14,371 - - 144,054 158,425
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 64,532 35,192 8,040 501,282 609,046
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.......cccc-. {23,505) (33,840) 714 (252,376) {309,007}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BORd PrOCEAS. .ccoee i rbsmni s ettt s 55,090 - - 379,175 434,265
Refunding bond pmceeds 11,415 - - 289,425 300,840
Operating transfers In—Note Ho.ocoveoeonenine e 44,546 - - 468,523 513,069
Operating transfers cut—Note H . (44,346) - - (468,523) {513,069}
Operating transfer from primary govemment——None 2 U “ 39,700 - - 39,700
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.... (4,592) - - (180,184) (184,776}
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES...ccccrmemmrerssssssasannsnns 61,913 39,700 - 428,416 590,029
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 38408 5,860 714 236,040 281,022
FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1997.ccoemennns 45,243 1,713 4,882 293,106 344,944
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 83,651 3 7,573 b 5,596 $ 529,146 $ 625966

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1998
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industriat Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance lovestment
{May 31, 1998) Anthority Agency Agency Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash—Note D.., [T 66,627 3 - 3 2,760 3 4,017 3 8 13 73,412
Cash with fiscal agents—Note Du... - 2,375 - 1,046 350 4,311
Temporary invesiments—Note D 296,262 135,109 498,579 553,228 195,103 1,678,281
Long-term investments—Note D... 243,545 59,077 287,128 9,996 - 599,746
Receivables, net:
Accounts 6,476 - - 8,631 - 15,107
ACCTUEA INEBIESL ..o ieressmememememsasa e e etetrenea 3,011 3,200 - 68,010 2,601 76,822
Notes and loans—Note G. - 638,459 2,631,228 1,700,053 1,075,498 6,049,238
Lease rentals—Note G. - 15,262 - - - 15,262
Due from primary government—Note H.. 6,310 - - - - 6,310
Due from component units—Note H. - - 38 - 85 123
Due from other governments—Note B.....oeiverrennreee - - - 50,025 943 50,968
L Ey) o 6,861 - - - - 6,861
Fix_ed assets—Note E 3,471,771 - 6,185 146,106 269 3,624,331
Less: accurnulated depreciation......ooeciieemrseecscecsssans (1,676,705) - {2,687) (51,188) (203) (1,730,783)
Other assets 14,329 10,504 12,958 17,265 13,280 68,336
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2438487 5 863,986 5 3,436,189 $ 2,507,189 3 1,292474 3 10,538,325
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Aceounis payable and acerued liabilities.. 3 73,818 3 492 5 50,871 ) 74,592 3 4,289 $ 204,062
Due 1 primary government—=Note H. 4,570 1 22 113 29,801 34,507
Due to component units—Note H.. - - 85 - 38 123
Due to other govertments... - - - 129,261 3 129,264
Deferred revenue..... . - - 42,940 6 42,946
Notes payable—Note J..... - - 5,049 379,741 - 385,790
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J....oooeeees - - - 796,000 - 756,000
Other liabilities " 10,445 11,313 212,756 53,937 - 288,451
Revenue bonds payable—Note Koo 1,091,309 398,848 2,687,564 837,785 196,805 5,212,311
TOTAL LIABILITIES ceii e eeestecsrermsssssasans E,180,142 410,654 2,837,347 2,314,369 230,942 7,093,454
Equity:
Contributed capital—Note Huvvvvereevneeeinnrce s, 216,547 307,840 1,960 - 1,002,720 1,529,067
Retained eamings: :
Reserved—Note C. 1,041,798 - 134,014 166,911 - 1,342,723
Unreserved., - 145,492 342,868 25,909 58,812 573,081
TOTAL EQUITY 1,258,345 453,332 478,842 192,820 1,061,532 3,444,871
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY .cccvuisvsnnnnne. 5 2,438,487 5 863,986 £ 3,436,189 $ 2,507,189 $ 1,292,474 5 10,538,325

— See notes to financiak statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units  For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1 998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands}

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services

Investment income:,

Interest oo notes and loans

Other.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..ccooiiisiannnne

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services..

TREELESE BXPCISE. cavnsrrrrrersesranansrrsrnrannmitataa s sneseanass

Depreciation

Provision for uncollectible ACCOUNES. 1mueveuererarasarermimrasas

Other.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES....coociicrevniarner

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) covcvsnmnesmrmssasesrarans

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

INVESIIENE MCOIIE. .vesisismsssrersrs semesssesssssmsmsasinsiasssvaress

Interest exp

Qil company franchise tax
Other rev

OHHET EXPEISES. coscsarrirsrnsmsrsensaersmsrrecmsmssissssraneasressss seseean

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NETceeeeceisitianaen.

INCOME (L.0SS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers from primary government—
Note H...ooooiciiimnniens

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS..

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.......

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS, AS RESTATED,
JULY 1, 1997,

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1998,

Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania ‘Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Iadusirial Housing Education Infrastructure
Comt issii Development Finance Agsistance Investment
(viay 31, 1998) Anthority Agency Agency Authority Total
|
5 335,326 $ - 3 15,970 3 400,543 3 1,877 5 753,721 '
- 14,361 38,279 32,262 9,671 94,573
- 21,631 188,244 136,439 19,188 365,502 '
11,235 723 123,158 317 261 135,694
346,561 36,715 365,651 569,566 30,997 1,349,490
%
165,763 2,858 17,931 712,906 1,994 901,452
- 22,852 172,503 124,474 11,728 331,557 .
144,782 R 513 10,761 26 156,082 -
- 1,280 25,291 - {1,997) 24,574 L
- 1,303 118,427 - - 119,730 o
310,545 28,293 334,665 848,141 11,751 1,533,395 : i
|
36,016 8,422 30,986 (278,575) 19,246 (183,905) wsd
22,274 - - - - 22,274
(58,769} - - - - (58,769)
41,431 - - - - 41,831
- - - 2,561 - 2,561
“ - - (115,906) - (155,906)
4,936 - - (113,345) - {108,409)
40,952 8,422 30,986 {391,920) 19,246 (292,314)
- - 10,000 297916 - 307,916
40,952 8,422 40,986 (94,004) 19,246 15,602
(2,775) - (396) - - (3,171) )
38,177 8,422 40,590 {94,004) 19,246 12,431 i
1,003,621 137,070 436,292 286,824 39,566 1,903,373 I
$ 1,041,798 3 145,492 3 476,882 3 192,820 $ 58,812 $ 1,915,804

—_—— e

—_———

F—— ]

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units S
For the F isqal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Penosylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1998) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income {loss) 5 36,016 5 8,422 $ 30,986 5 (278,575) g 19,246 3 (183,903)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 144,782 - 513 10,761 26 156,082
Net amortization 4,520 - - - 4,520
Provision for uncoliectible zccount - 1,280 25,291 - (£,997) 24,574
Moncperating revenue - - - 2,561 - 2,561
Nonoperating expense: - - ) - (115,906) - (115,506)
Reclassification of inv it income - (14,361) {38,279) (32,262} (9.671) (94,573)
Changes in assets and liabilities: )
Decrease (increase) in receivable: 637 21,649 (173,985) (113,881) (58,132) o (323,712)
Increase in dwe from primary government (2,256) - - - - (2,256)
Decrease (increase) in due from component units... - - 62 - “n ‘ 15
Decrease (increase) in due from other : -
government - - - 927 - {845) 82
Increase in inveatory. 270 - - . - (270)
Decrease (increase) in other CUTent aSsets......vcrimisensirias 2,105 1,707 (852) 435 190 3,585
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and
accrued Liabikitie (4.093) (205) (2,459) 7,587 155 985
Increase {decrease) in due to primary
government 1,240 . (14) (36} (1,986) L (796)
Increase (decrease) in due to component units.. - - 47 - (62) 15
Increase in dug to other governments - - - 114,915 - 116,915
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue. : - - - (11,054} . 6 (11,048)
(Decrease) increase in other cumrent liabilities. (1,448) (350) 13,282 {800} - - 10,684
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS - 145,217 9,720 {176,394) (134,753) (72,363) (228,573)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY .
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.. 181,233 18,142 {145,408) (413,328} (53,117 (412,478)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

. Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations......ooveeccecvverenns - - 378,078 272,123 - 650,201
Principal paid on debt obligation: . (15,179) (145,559) (172,497} - (333,235)
Operating transfers from primary government........cocceeeeecec - - 10,000 297,916 - 307,916

NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (15,179) 242,519 397,542 - 624,882
CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on debt obligations (77,885) - - - {5,559) (87.444)
Interest paid on debt obligation. : (58,769) - - - - (58,769)
[acrease in contributed capital 27,008 14,999 - - 68,869 110,876
Decrease in contributed capital - - - - (2,262) {2.262)
Acquisition and construction of capital 255ets.......esismicsicsns (168,664) - (182) (13,061) @37 {181,944)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - 3,917 - 3,917
(il company franchise tax 41,431 - - . - - 41,431
NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....covunrvmmminen {236,879) 14,999 (182) (9,144} 57,011 (174,195)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment (707,084) {27,697,865) (493,267) (2,578,586) (138,731) (31,616,533)
Proceeds for sale and maturities of IMYESIRENLS.covmiversreimnne: 772,200 27,662,507 360,819 2,552,475 124,726 31,472,727
Investment income. 22,274 14,360 38,279 32,262 9,540 116,715
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES, 87,350 (20,998) (94,169) 6,151 {5,465) (27,0913
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH.......voumimssene 31,744 (3,036) 2,760 (18,775} (1,571 11,118
CASH, JULY 1, 1997, 34,883 3,4L1 - 23,842 2,469 66,605
CASH, JUNE 30, 1998 3 56,627 $ 2,375 3 2,760 5 5,063 5 898 $ 77,723

‘There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
Pension Trust Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Public Schoo! Employes' Retirement System
|
Postemployment Healthcare |
| ;
Premium Health Options d
Pension Assistance Program Total
ADDITIONS: . j
i
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments.....coccveeeervcecee 3 4,893,770 § (567) 3 - 3 4,893,203
PEnSION COMTIDULIONIS. e e trrersrrcsresnesersasnesssmesranmmsessrssssnassssnssrsmsnssssasanessarsessnssnss 1,196,043 12,623 97,094 1,305,760
TEIVESHTTICTIE TTLCOTEIE .o -evveeiasersenrsressseeasssnssssnsarseenserssbsnss somesrassasssssnns ssssnssesnnssannse 1,297,247 4,721 722 1,302,690
TOTAL ADDITIONS 7,387,060 16,777 97,816 : 7,501,653
i
BENEIIL PAYTIENLS . .cvvemriscssstrsssnsssessnsssssessms semree e bt s ssaas s s s s e 1,856,108 31,017 160,587 T 1,987,112 :
Refunds of contributions..........ccnvemnnne 20,503 - - 20,503
AQTHINTSIFATIVE EXPENSES .- rscrssssssss s et 26,796 504 2,647 29,947 T
NEL ACCOURE TAISEETS..ov1vvs-ssseevesrsssssssnrseerssassssere e sricsss st 3478 (m - 3,401 L
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1,906,885 31,444 103,234 2,041,563
NET INCREASE . 5,480,175 (14,667) (5,418) 5,460,090 i
Fund balance reserved for pension and posternployment healthcare benefits:
JULY 1, 1997 ceueeeeeteceeecsiasessersssasesssemsssssmsssasmasan st s seasasrs s pas s s snasnssemses 39,295,528 90,802 10,929 39,397,259
JUNE 30, 1998 $ 44975703 $ 76,135 $ 5,511 $ 44,857,349 : ‘
P ————— jim e semie—— ——r —— o
i‘
I

— Sec notes to financial statements. — T
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUES:
TUIION ANA FEES...ccrivirrici e srccrireeri e s ssen e sessr st sne st ssas st stn et essrstssressssanannnmrsennanes 0 G0B,057 3 - $ 408,057
Govemment grants and contracts:

SHALE AN LOCAL 1ottt tr et s ma o et a e s nac e e as e saa ettt seera s £ s eant e bt sen s et e e re e eas 39 61,268 61,307

Federal.. .ot e e b s 2,007 68,148 70,245
Private gifts, grants and CORMACTS. ...ui i sttt e e et et s s 3,874 7,629 11,503
INVESHTIEME IICOIIIE ettt s r et s ee s e e s e e s ramea e aemna e enesae e mne ssane s saresraesesmnesemneeren 19,869 236 20,105
Increase in the fair valite Of INVESEMENTS. ...ccei i eee e e cee e e eest e s e e smt et s seaes s sasabennennsen 1,581 - 1,581
D25 T Tos 1T L T o PO O 90 475 565
Activities of educationzl departments........ccoooevveneneee 8,059 - 8,059
ETEBT SOUTCES  11ervsrrersnsrinsesinrersensoresressrssssnesssesnrrsssrasersssssarssessasesensssssasrtesanssensssatensinsesserstrosmsssraessoss 18,700 - 18,700
AUXTHATY SNIETPIISES. 11otrtiantiiesrsssinnseanss st ss b s s e e bt s b et e b s bmi b s b e bbb s b s b asbdnbama e 142,415 - 142,415

TOTAL REVENUES 604,781 137,756 742,537

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EXPENDITURES:

Educational and general:
Instruction.. R . 422,265 7,737 430,002
RESEATEN. ..o ettt em e s mea e e emet e et et et e st ama et ee e e en et emenen 869 2,417 3,286
PUDBLIC SEIVICE. .o veteitieeereeere e remee e treeame s e et e s essmeea s saessse s se e ssaressenassabereseaansasassars s senensbersesanssnsnssns 8,803 18,237 27,040
ACAALITHC SUPPOTL. . euceererremeeremrerescns oo senses s raets e srennsesereansesres e sesene s et esessnt 16 amr e reanseneantesemssantsens 85,791 3,713 : 89,504
Student ServiCes......coeimerreeresererenrenes 77,733 5,314 83,047
QOperations and MAINERANCE OF PIAML..ccccco v et ene e 92,343 331 92,674
“General INSHIUONAT SUPPOTL.coiv it ias s st e emsb s b s 129,438 3,388 132,826
SHUAEIE AT, ettt et s et e s e et e e e 10,438 99,916 110,354

TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL 827,680 141,053 968,733
AUXTHALY ENEBTPIISES vvvvurvsrvsrers seeasessssasssssnsssssssss o sssss sttt esaes bt sinssns e 121,650 : 303 121,953

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 949,330 141,356 1,090,686

MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
PriNCIPAl A0 TIIETEST. . cceeiee et crene st e s e s arae e s cmr s s enet e s e s s nse s roenean s snr e s et e e 15,521 - 15,521

TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS 15,932 606 16,533

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY
TRANSFERS 965,262 141,962 1,107,224

OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND ADDITIONS:
Operating transfers from Primary Govemnment—Note Hu.ovvvvvccnnminsss s imsssssecnrenans 400,907 4,365 405,272
L0 T g T3 £ OO OO S SOOIV (41,866) - (41,866)
AUAAIHONIS. ... ettt ettt o re s e et e s re e st s s taer € st s et s e e et re - 5,506 5,506
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER
TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS, NET 359,041 9,871 368,912

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES 5 (1,440 b3 5,665 b 4,225

— See notes to financial statements. —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A—FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Primary Government

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Permsylvania is a primary government (PG). The PG
includes all publicly elecied members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth. The
PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which are not legally separate.

Component Units

In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented component units.
Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would
cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability
include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to,
or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered. The following organizations
are included in the financial reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The SERS is a public employe retirement
system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting board members and, on a very limited
basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS to provide pension benefits to PG employes. The PG
makes essentially all employer contributions to the SERS; PG employes make almost all of the employe
contributions to the SERS (virtually all PG employes are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for all
of the SERS pension obligations. The SERS is a blended component unit because it provides services and benefits
almost exclusively to the PG.

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Fuacilities Authority
(HEFA) {(Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited obligation revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities for school districts and public and private
colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely from lease rental payments from the schools. Upon
completion of the lease payment requirements (and satisfaction of bondholders), the title to the comstructed or
acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA goveming boards; nine high-ranking
members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is able to impose its will. The PG
Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal
dependency). Although neither the PG nor the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease
rental payments from schools), the PG may take certain actions to satisfy the SPSBA and the HEFA bondholders.

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership (Partnership) (Governmental Fund Type} — The Partnership assists business
through interaction of technology development, modernization and training programs. Industrial resource centers
and technology centers, established through the Partmership, also increase the competitiveness of businesses.
Operations of the Partership are funded by state appropriations and private contributions; the Partnership may not
issue debt. The Partnership works closely with the Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED).
The PG appoints all fifteen voting members of the governing board. All Partnership expenditures must be
appropriated annually by the General Assembly.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) (Governmental Type) — The IFPA assists in the prevention,
discovery, investigation and prosecution of insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through assessments paid by the
insurance industry and through certain criminal and civil fines, penalties and awards.

The PG appoints six of seven voting membess of the IFPA governing board; the Attorney General serves ex-officio

as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the Section on Insurance Fraud in the
Office of Attorney General, this indicates a financial benefit’burden. The IFPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG.
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Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHEAA makes
grants and loans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending institutions and post-secondary
schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA grant program; the PHEAA issues revenue
bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also
_services student loan portfolios for lending institutions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA. A significant
PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the PG is not obligated for the
PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The PHEAA is fiscally dependent,
as the Governor must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHFA makes loans to eligible
individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs benefit low and moderate-income
~individuals and families.

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will. The Governor is
required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA whenever a deficiency exists in the
capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to avoid a default on the PHFA debt. This represents a PG
moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The Governor must approve the issuance of the PHFA debt.

‘Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA collaborates with
local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or expand the work force, assist
targeted economic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made at lower-than-market inferest rates; the
interest rates are based on local unemployment and other economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to

- finance the loan program. Loan repayments are used for debt service payments. The PIDA operates closely with the
DCED.

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has provided
contributed capital; “excess” PIDA fands are transferred to the General Fund. The PG is not obligated for the PIDA
debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PENNVEST
makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities, businesses and nonprofit organizations for
the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST
~ obtains funds through Commonwealth general obligation bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds,
the Federal government and contributed amounts from Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the
PENNVEST debt service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with the Department of Environmental
Protection. '

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments. By issuing
general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed capital, the PG creates a
significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST debt, but the PG could take certain actions
to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.

-Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created to construct,
maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth. Activities are financed through user tolls and the
issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through user tolls. The PTC works closely with the
Departrnent of Transportation. '

The PG appoints all voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all coniracts related to
turnpike construction and supervise construction. When alt the PTC bondholders have been satisfied, the PTC assets
revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve the issuance of all the PTC debt. The PG is
not obligated for the PTC debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The PSERS was created to
administer and provide pension benefits to public school employes in Pennsylvania. The PSERS covers almost all
such employes. Employer contributions are made by covered, elementary and secondary school employers with the
PG reimbursing each employer at least half their required annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered

26




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity {continued)

employes of higher education institutions and state-owned schools are shared equally by covered employers and the
PG; all covered public school employes also make contributions.

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by active or retired
public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to making significant contributions to
the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and other pension benefits. This represents a2 compelling
PG financial burden.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was created to provide
instruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen universities and an administrative
headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants and PG subsidies.

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trusteés of universities; fhiree
must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to the SSHE. The PG is not obligated
for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA)—The PEDFA was created to lend money
primartly to businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth. The PEDFA issues revenue bonds
to fund specific projects only and repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-
recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received by the Authority from the
funded projects. Financial statement mfonnanon for the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves
non-recourse debt.

The PG appoints all sixteen board members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated for the PEDFA
debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissclution, the assets of PEDFA revert to
the Commonwealth,

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA)—The PEDA was created to promote the development of
energy sources within the Commonwealth. The PEDA issued revenue bonds and lent the proceeds to fund three
specific projects. Loan repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as
the PEDA is not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received from the funded projects. The PEDA has not
issued any debt since 1990. Financial statement information for the PEDA is not reported because its only activity
involves non-recourse debt.

" The PG appoints all nineteen board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must approve the issuance
of Authority debt. The PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy
bondholders.

Financial Reports

The Commonwealth sponsors the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an external investment pool, which is
reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Audited financial statements for the INVEST Program and for component
units are available by writing to the Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations, Room 207 Finance Building,
Harrisburg, PA 17120.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG appoints all eleven
governing board members but is not financially accountable as there is no imposition of will, no financial
benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS. Local governments are the only participants in the
PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are varations among different municipal pension plans. Local
participating governments are financially responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonweaith
provides accounting services to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG appoints all seven
goveming board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will and no financial
benefit’burden. The ATPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG. The operation of the ATPA is funded by an annual
assessment paid by companies providing automobile insurance in the Commonwealth. The PG processes cash
receipts and disbursements for the ATPA.
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- Joint Venture-

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
* (PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employe labor unions. The PEBTF establishes

and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare benefits. The PEBTF is administered by a governing
. board, one-half of whose members are each appointed by the Commonwealth and the various unions. Neither the
Commonwealth nor the unions control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally
shared. The Commonwealth unilaterally pays for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based on
the terms contained in collective bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financially responsible for making
contributions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an equity interest or any ongoing financial
interest in the PEBTF. Aside from its obligation to make periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is
‘not responsible for any obligations of the PEBTF.

" Excluded Organizations -

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary governments, as they
are governed by popularly elected officials. : :

Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered as potential

_ component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These schools may receive significant
PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint a voting majority of governing board members,
nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations. Although various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly
influence these organizations, the PG does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not
fiscally dependent on the PG.

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University, University of
Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and Temple University, were considered as potential component units. The PG
appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing board at each university and provides significant
operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence of the PG appointment of a voting majority and the lack
of fiscal dependency, these universities are excluded from the financial reporting entity.
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Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity,
with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related liabilities and
equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitatiops. In the Commonwealth, funds are
established by legislative enactrnent or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commenwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the primary
government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund—Accounts for all fmancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from other funds, for
the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest. :

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public organizations
{other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis,
including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State Workanen’s
Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Fidueiary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds-—Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These include
Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund, an Investment Trust Fund and Agency Funds. The State
Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund,
and the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, are included for their fiscal
years ended December 31, 1997.

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group—Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or constructed for use
by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds,
Pension Trust Funds, and Coliege and University Funds. '

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—Accounts for all long-term obligations of the
Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University Funds.

The Component Units include Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and College and
University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but are considered part of the reporting entity.
The College and University Funds are as follows:

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities, which
comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with the accounting guidance and reporting
practices outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of
Colleges and Universities, and other applicable guidance. Accordingly, the College and University Funds
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are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds—Unrestricted and University Designated—Account for economic resources of the
institution which are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
universities and have not been designated by the governing body for any other purpose:

Current Funds—Restricted—~Account for resources received from donors or other outside agencies
that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds—Account for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds—Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds and quasi-
endowment funds.

.Endowment Funds—Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a condition of the

gift instrument, that the principal amount would be mainteined inviolate and in perpetuity for

investment. Investment earnings may be added to the principal or expended for resiricted or
- unrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds—Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of which may be
expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds—Account for resources that the governing board of an institution, rather
than an outside source, has determined will be retained and mvested. Since this is an internal
designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend the principal of these funds at any
time.

Plant Funds—Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional properties and to
service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed assets and the source from
which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds—Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of an agent for
distribution to designated beneficiaries.

Component Units—Account for certain affiliated organizations for which the Board has oversight
responsibility.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency fonds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available spendable resources. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust funds are recognized in the year that they
become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal year-end) to pay current fiscal year liabilities. The
Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue sources that are both measurable and available:

Sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods and
SEIVices.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the fiscal year
the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for principal
and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless resources have been provided for
payment early in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal
year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when the items are used. Expenditures for claims,
judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions are reported as the amount accrued during
the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Budgetary
encumbrances are not reported as expenditures.

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported uging the flow of

“economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus all assets

and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net
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total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the fiscal year eamed and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Under GASB
Statement 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That
Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt the Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989,

The College and University Funds, a component unit, are reported using the “financial flow” (spending)
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with existing authoritative
accounting and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary): The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit 2 budget
annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly may add,
change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retains veto power over the
individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce individual appropriations, but
may not increase them. A gubematorial veto can be overridden only by a two-thirds majority of each House of the
General Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by the General
Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the Governor, plus (less)
the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for constltuuonally authorized debt
service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authorit'y level). Encumbrances and
expenditures canmot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between or within departments and any
supplerental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered and unexpended
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the subsequent year. On the
budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year end for the General
Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and use taxes and personal
income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund,
which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but not collected at fiscal vear end. Also, estimated
encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages,
travel, and utility costs payable against current year appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent vear.
Over estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the subsequent year and under estimates are charged to
subsequent year appropriation authority. A separate document, “Status of Appropriations™ for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 demonstrates budgetary compliance at the level of legal control (by appropriation) for specific
departmental programs and functions, and is available from the Commonwealth’s Office of the Budget. Certain
amounts mcluded in the “Status of Appropriations” are reclassified for consistency or omitted to aveid double
accounting in the preparation of the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen’s Compensation Administration
Banking Department
Milk Marketing

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $317 million in supplemental appropriations approved
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such Special
Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by the Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects. Appropriations
for capital projects normally remain in effect until the completion of each project unless modified or rescinded.
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Budget revenues in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates while
expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented on the
budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation of the differences
between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth funds are pooled by the
Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for receipt and
disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial institutions to
guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit.

Cash Equivalents: No investments which could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the
Statement of Cash Flows; therefore, net changes in cash only are displayed.

Investment Pools: The Fiscal Code provides the Treasury Department with investment confrol over most
Commonwealth funds. The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated internal investment pools to ensure
safety and maximize efficiency, liquidity and yield for Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report
amounts invested in such pools as temporary and/or long-term investments; the pools themselves are not financially
reported. The Treasury Department maintains an external investment pool, the INVEST Program for Local
Governments, which separately issues audited financial statements, and is reported as an Investment Trust Fund.

Temporary Investments:. The Treasury Department manages the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP); practically
all individual funds which are part of primary government are participants in the STIP. The Treasury Department
accounts for each participating fund’s equity (considered “shares”) in the STIP on a daily basis. “Share” balances of
participating funds fluctuate considerably during the fiscal year, based on the timing of cash receipts and
disbursements in the participating fund, and are reported as temporary investments. The STIP is considered an
internal invesiment pool. :

Several individual funds may own direct investments in specific securities. Such investments which are expected to
be realized in cash within twelve months or less are reported as temporary investments. Temporary investments are
reported at fair value (typically using published market prices) except for nonparticipating interest-bearing coniracts,
which are reported at cost.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported as lopg-term
investments. Long-term investreents are reported at fair value, except for certain nopparticipating interest-bearing
contracts, which are reported at cost. Fair values are based on published market prices, quotations from national
securities exchanges and securities pricing services, or by the respective fund managers for securities which are not
actively traded. Other investments are valued based on appraisals or the present value of projected future income.

Investment Income: Investment income includes interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and the change in the
fair value of investments, if any, during the fiscal year.

Due From Other Goveraments: This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government
for various department programs.

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenues
when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College and
University Funds. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for Proprietary and
weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types, nventories are accounted for
on the purchases method. '
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Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed
assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on general
fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were acquired or
constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the Commonwealth’s General
Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed by the SSHE subsequent to June 30,
1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE debt are also reported in the Commonwealth’s
Genera)l Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment is used to conform to the enabling legislation for
the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated historical
cost, Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
lives are used:

BUiIdIDES . ..eeevererereerersrsreermreceeeemce it sbsststsabs s ns s ssssnsmssnsins st sn s sns e snannan 10-50 years
Improvements other than buildings.........ccueiiniiessesrrienissansesens 5-50 years
Fumniture, machinery and equIPIIent ........ccocovicninisisrnsrsressssrssssssnesras 3-25 years

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital
benefits, employe disability and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in Note O..

Compensated Absences: Employes earn annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid. A
maximum of 45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year. Employes are paid for accumulated
annual leave upon termination or retirement.

Employes earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. A maximum of 300 days may be carried forward
at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employes that meet service, age or disability requirernents are paid in
accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 ' 30% 30
- 101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 {in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13

Accurulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds and
Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary, Pension
Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year eamed.

Pension Costs: The Comrmonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prier service costs
over varying periods not exceeding 20 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
- expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Government.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred to as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was created in July of
1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits, and promote
greater continuity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax stabilization reserve is not
to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revenues of the General Fund. Revenue is provided through an executive
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authorization appropriated by the General Assembly for transfer to this fund. Whenever the Governor determines a
need to iransfer moneys from this find, a request for an appropriation is made to the General Assembly. An
appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members of the General Assembly, Also, Act 35
of 1991 provides that in any fiscal year in which there is a surplus of operating funds in the General Fund, as
certified by the Budget Secretary, fifteen percent of such surplus shall be depostted into this fund. In addition, the
proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets of the Commonwealth are also to be deposited into this fand.
For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is reported as a designation in the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions ainong fonds:

Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers)—Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
“Qperating transfers in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers out” by the disbursing fund.
Legally required transfers between primary government and component unit organizations are reported
when incurred as “Operating transfers from component unit” by the recipient organization and “Operating
transfers to primary government” or “Operating transfers to component unit” by the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund for
another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the
reimnbursed fund. : ' :

Residual Equity Transfers—Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance. .

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions)—Charges or collections for services rendered by one
“fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the
disbursing fund. -

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1997 is presented in Note
H.

New Accounting Prenouncement: Effective July 1, 1997 the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Statement 31,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.” This standard
requires that most investments be reported at fair value, as defined. Certain nonparticipating contracts, such as non-
negotiable certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements, are required to be reported at cost. The
Commenwealth has opted to report money market investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
investments during the fiscal year are included in investment income and are not separately reported. Note C
includes 2 restatement summary for six individual funds’ reported investments and fund equity as of July 1, 1997.

Total—Memorandam Only: The “Total (Memorandum Only)” columns represent an aggregation of the combined
financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical purposes.
These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available to or used by
the Commonwealth. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of the totals.

34




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C—FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS

Deficits: The Disaster Relief Fund, the Workmen’s Compensation Supersedeas Fund and the Home Investment
Trust Fund, Special Revenue Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $19,349, $12,485 and $2 (amounts in
thousands), respectively, at June 30, 1998.

The Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Sinking Fund and the Volunteer Companies Loan Sinking Fund,
Debt Service Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $30 and $10 (amounts in thousands), respectively, at June 30,
1998. These funds have no fund balance designations.

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$730,438 at June 30, 1998. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance deficit of $33,954 at June
30, 1998. Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $705,463, designations for
Capital Projects of $86,981 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated find balance of $730,438, for a total combined
fund balance of $62,006 (amounts in thousands) at June 30, 1998.

The Minority Business Development Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reported deficit retained earnings of $30,773
(amount in thousands) at June 30, 1998, .

The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of
$35,806 (amounts in thousands) at June 30, 1998.

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, reported a current funds unrestricted fund
balance deficit of $252,841 (amount in thousands) at June 30, 1998.

Restatements: The unreserved/undesignated budgetary basis fund balance for the General Fund has been restated
from 3402678 at June 30, 1997 to $402,278 at July 1, 1997 to account for $400 (amounts in thousands) in spending
authority which was increased subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.

The previcusly reported fund balance/retained eamings for the following funds has been restated as the result of
implementing GASB Statement 31 as of July 1, 1997 (amounts in thousands):

Primary Governiment
Amount

Previously Amount Restated

Fund Name (Fund Type) Reported of Change Amount
General $ 1,364,900 3 3,066 $ 1,367,966
" State Lottery (Special Revenue) 131,127 10,947 142,074
Motor License (Special Revenue) 535,540 1,091 536,631
State Workmen’s Insurance 62,647 (2,231) 60,416

(Enterprise ) (December 31, 1996)

Tuition Payment (Enterprise) 78,360 7,593 85,953

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building

Authority (Governmental) 45,281 (38) 45,243
Pennsylvania Higher Educational

Facilities Authority (Governmental) 293,165 (59) 293,106
Pennsylvania Housing Finance

Agency (Proprietary) 420,056 16,236 436,292
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C—Fund Balance/Retained Earnings (continued)

Reclassifications: - The Tuition Payment Fund was previously reported as an Expendable Trust fund type with
previously reported fund balance of $78,360 as of Jume 30, 1997.  Effective July 1, 1997, the
Fund is reported as an Enterprise fund type. Accordingly, in addition to increasing fund balance by 87,593 as part of
implementing GASB Statement 31, the Fund reports retained earnings of $7,011 which includes the effects of
reporting tuition benefits payable of $78,942 (amounts in thousands) as of July 1, 1997.

The INVEST Program For Local Governments was previously reported as an Agency fund type, with total assets
and liabilities of $444,609 as of its fiscal year end of December 31, 1996. Effective January 1, 1997, in accordance
with GASB Statement 31, the INVEST Program is reported as an Investment Trust fund type and reports fund
balance of $453,989 (amounts in thousands).

Reserves and Designations; Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific
fture use or are not appropriable for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $74.8 million, is applicable to a demand loan to the State
Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $2.3 million, both Enterprise
Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million and the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund for $4.3
million, both, Special Revenue Funds. For its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997 the State Workmen’s Insurance
Fund has reported an advance from the General Fund in the amount of $2 million. :

The amount reserved for advances in the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is applicable to a
$3 million advance to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund.

The $17,502 reported as “Reserved for other” in the General Fund at June 30, 1998 pertains to $17,422 for other
receivables and $ 80 (amounts in thousapds) in other assets.

The $8 thousand reported as “Reserved for other” in the Special Revenue Funds at June 30, 1998 pertains to
reserves for other receivables in the State Lottery Fund. .

The $159.9 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely presented
component unit, at June 30, 1998 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in subsequent fiscal periods.

Reserved retained earnings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for reserves for contingencies for
the Rehabilitation Center Fund and equipment replacement reserves for other enterprise funds. Reserved retained
earnings reported for Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds are provided principally for the
retirement of revenue bonds relating to the Penmsylvania Tumpike Commission, student loans relating to the
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, and housing programs relating to the Pennsylvania Housing
Finance Agency. At June 30, 1998 the Commonwealth bas included the following reservations of retained earnings
for the Enterprise Funds and the Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds (amoumts in thousands):

Discretely

Presented
Primary Component

Government Units

Rehabilitation Center Fund.........coeeeeevieeercremessncsnnnimnernsanas $ 2,531 3 -
Pennsylvania Tumpike COMIMISSION ...vverrrrsmeessranssseseserenens - 1,041,798
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .............. - 166,911
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AENCY .....ccievenerarecsccracnns - 134,014
Other Enterprise Funds......ocvermremmmsveeininienissssssncsresnsenns 2,130 -
TOIAL 11 veeeeemcsesiseesresrneserenaseresesssrs s e eacecsbi et s ra st srsaneaes $ 4661 § 1,342.723
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C—Fund Balance/Retained Earnings (continued)

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial rescurces. At June
30, 1998 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “Designated—Other” for the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds (amounts in thousands):

General Fund:
Tax StADIZAHON ......oeeeeeveecveivererereresenerenseeeresseranesaans $ 657,301
Restricted TeVERUE ..o e cerceeccerencresnee e sanereenanerenes 179,468
Continuing PrOIAIS .....e.vereererrrrsrseraseermemeneacssesssssrans 132,786
Group medical and life insurance.........ceceeeereeeeencrnenes 72,096
LT OO 102,350
Total General Fund........cocvvvrvvmrrrsesememceeecie e 1,144,001
Special Revenue Funds: :
Land reclamation......co.vevversuersneesseereeceneeneesessneesssssernes $ 24,148
Pharmaceutical assiStance programs .........weeessmnanins 2,813
Recycling programs........coccceccreccerecninensssesnsresseerasses 2,061
Fishing, boating and game Programs...........coccveseueeanas 1,978.
L0117, O PO OOV 2,552
Total Special Revenue Funds........cccvreniririsnenenns $ 33552

In addition, the Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported $_3,339 thousand as
“Designated—Other” for future worker’s compensation self-insurance claims.

The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority, a discretely presented governmental fund component umnit, reported
$5,107 thousand as “Designated-—Other” for future program grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Authority for deposits and investments:

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301, 301.1 and 505 of the
Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343, No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must
be held in insured depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The
Treasury Department may invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with
maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One™ by Moody’s Investors Service or the
equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Investors Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvaniz banks or
savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by Federal obligations; banker’s acceptances; and up
to a maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment (other than common stock) not -
otherwise specifically authorized. : A

‘The deposit and investment policies of certain component units are established by authority other than the Fiscal
Code. Enabling statutes generally provide deposit and investment authority for component units. Further, specific
bond and trust indentures, as well as formal governing board resolutions, provide deposit and mvestment
requirements. Allowable investments of component units do not significantly differ from those investments of the
Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Employes’ Retirement
System and the Public School Employes’ Retirement Systen, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in common and
preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years. These
two Funds also participate in a securities lending program, sponsored by the Treasury Department, and utilize
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. Specific disclosures about Pension Trust Fund investments are
included in this Note.

Deposits:

The Treasury Department controls the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies inclzded in the F
primary government. Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of |
their own funds, typicaily through a trustee. The following summaries present the amount of primary government |
and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth) deposits which are fully insured or collateralized with
securities held by the Commonwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits which
are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
Commonwealth’s name (Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the
pledging financial institution or the pledging institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s
name {Category 3) at June 30, 1998 (amounts in thousands).

Primary Government

Total Carrying

Category 1 Category 2 Category3  Bank Balance Amoung
(11 1 POTO U S OS YD TV SR $ 59,785 $ 22,083 $ 7,957 S 89,825 $ 141,035
Cash with fiscal 48eNES ..vevvveercinrnserassnenacanas 2,518,630 1,682 10,901 2,531,213 2,527,358
Certificates of deposit and related items............... 121,331 2,632 14,186 138,149 138,149

The above-listed $138,149 in certificates of deposit and related itermns is reported as part of primary government temporary
investments at June 30, 1998. To provide increased income while maintaining safety and liquidity, the Treasury Department
routinely enters into overnight repurchase agreements typically funded through “float” for outstanding checks. At June 30, 1998
the Treasury Department used $402 million of available cash for overnight repurchase agreements. These securities are
registered in the Commonwealth’s name and are not reported in the financial staternents.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount .
CASN s eeeeereeeeensssnes $ 77208 § 2,082 $ 33,435 $ 112,725 § 95389
Cash with fiscal agents 2,468 - 3,672 6,140 4,660 '
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments {continued)

Investments:

The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units
(Commonwealth) categorize investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s
agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered mvestments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or its agent, but not in the
Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence
of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership interests in mutual funds and in mortgage
loans, real estate and venture capital pools. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed by the
Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1998
{amounts in thousands).

Primary Government

All primary govemment investments susceptible to credit nsk are in Category 1, except $5,754 in corporate bonds
and notes which are in Category 2.

Carrying Market
Amonnt Value
COMIMEFCIAl PAPET.....oe s irieeiersee ettt eseenrsr et sre e sens s s seas s sass s v b s ntsanmsnas 5 336,274 § 536,274
Common and preferred stock....... 7,185,499 7,185,499
Corporate bonds and notes........... 2,600,673 2,600,673
International fixed income............ 25,748 25,748
Repurchase agreements................ 5,434,263 5,434,263
State and municipal obligations 215,218 215,218
U.S. Government 0bligations.... ..o ceer sereeece e teetee e e eene e st ee e 2,594,764 2,594,764
U.S. Government agency obligations 384,770 384770
Total categorized MVESHMENTS. ... vverercirisiiitereetceres e seee e e reeseeseses et e eaeaan 18,977,209 18,977,209

Add investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investments owned by the Deferred Compensation Fund at December 31, 1997. .
IMULDAL FUNAS. 1 v evrereernrerresiensenrsrans s ess st st e sasesbnbs sttt sbebess s s smmasernsesensesesstesansese 531,681 531,681
Investments owned by the State Employes” Retirement System (SERS)
at December 31, 1997;

MOTEEAZE JOANS ..vivviiicaiiit et e e coreeas e eaeesaee s nranerr st b st esssnereae 274,553 274,553

Mutual funds......ccoeeeeceerreneens 6,426,362 6,426,362

Real e5late...vvvvrvvvirrnreererensneanns 1,717,167 1,717,167

Securities lending collaterai 1,439,462 1,439,462

VEDture CAPIAL ... et bbb s eenee 738,893 738,893
Securities lent by SERS at December 31, 1997:

LS. GOVEINMENE SECUTTLIES cvo-cteerececemeenrreereeermeasstrnsnsesemresssensas et srsrsrrssereesssrsssseseas 474,208 474,208

Corporate bonds and notes.......... 603,620 603,620

Common and preferred stocks 464,775 464,775 -
Investments owned by the Statutory qumdator Fund at June 30, 1998:

Annuities... - 1,644 1,644

LOANS -.cmerercrnencecenrarenansmsennsersesrerrsesrssmenssarasesssnssrsessnassessessses 12,500 12,500

Mortgage loans......... 8,351 8,351

Partnership interests.. 18 18

SUDSIAIAIIES. ...vcececs it coiri et et a st ea b 447 447
Securities lending collateral held by the Workmen’s Compensation Security

Trust Fund at June 30, 1998 ... sasssasis st stesssass s ceanens 145,932 145,932
Securities lending collateral held by the State Workmen’s Insurance

Fund at DecemnbBer 31, 1007 ..ot eeeiriecasseerssassosasnssoenesesssessesnsan e nm e 287.209 287.209

32,104,031 32,104,031

Certificates of deposit and related items ..........coococevrevreeennn 138,149 138,149

Total temporary and long-term investments § 32,242 180 $.32.242.180

The above-listed $138,149 in certificates of deposit and related items are reporied as investments at June 30, 1998,
but are treated as deposits for a determination of the level of credit risk associated with them. From time to time
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the Treasury Departinent participated in reverse repurchase agreements;
an immaterial amount were outstanding at June 30, 1998,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

The State Employes® Retirement Systern, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 97 percent of the commen and
preferred stock, 89 percent of the corporate bonds and notes and 45 percent of the U.S. government obligations
reported in the above summary. The Treasury Short-Term Investment Pool owns 86 percent of the repurchase
agreements in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for
investments during the year ended June 30, 1998.

" Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) enters into foreign exchange contracts, such as forward and spot
contracts, to hedge foreign currency exposure. Some foreign currency options also are used for this purpose. The
SERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are used primarily to enhance performance
and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to enhance performance are fully collateralized,
eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The SERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance
by counterparties to financial instruments. As the SERS generally enters into fransactions onlty with high guality
institutions, no losses associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments have been
incurred. Legal risk is mitigated though careful selection of brokers and an extensive process of review of all
documentation. The SERS is exposed to market risk—the risk that future changes in market conditions may make
an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed within risk limits set by management by buying or
selling instruments or entering into offsetting positions.

At December 31, 1997, the SERS had contracts maturing through December 3, 1998 to purchase or sell foreign
currency as follows (amounts in thousands).

Buy at Sell at Net : i
Spot Rate Spot Rate Payable -t
DEUSCHITIATK v eeevseeeesrsearsremmamemraescssensssanenssssss sosssassesssmsssssasnnsssnasasnsens $ 482,588 $ 921,162 $ (438,574)
French Franc........ 189,828 342211 {152,383)
Pound Sterling ..... . 645,662 858,598 (212,936)
Japanese Yen........... 554,474 789,793 (235,319)
Swedish Kroner 13,450 104,156 (90,706 )
SwWiss Franc..c.coecsvmssmareasnes 120,154 181,453 (61,299)
BT cveve e eesseeeemssmeesetemssseas s e nmnarsaamaaceunessarnce s b s bR RRR S SRR r e st e bisas 206,945 371,586 (164.641)
2,213,101 3.568.959 $ (1,355,858
Discretely Presented Component Units
Carrying Amount
l Market
ategory 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Yalue
Asset backed SECUFIHES wvvivvreereacemrrreeissssinrsnrrnss g - § 52,206 5 - $ 52,206 § 52,206
Commercial PapeT.....coceevreesreeearnas - 154,003 - 154,003 154,003
Commeon and preferred stock......... 21,902,332 3,546 16 21,905,804 21,905,894
Corporate bonds and notes............. 2,805,767 160 - 2,805,927 2,805,927
Guaranteed investment CONACES ....ccurvverveeerrrnenes - - 4,896 4 896 4,896 .
International eQUItIES «..ooveveeriemnsrereeereresersnsanaeses 5,880,338 - - 5,880,338 5,880,338 ‘
International fixed INCOME..cocuiramrrmrricicieeerecie e 933,151 - - 933,151 933,151 i
INVEStMENt AZTEEITIENLS - cuvveeeeessseesmssraarrarsesnssons - - 112,473 112,473 112,473 o
Limited partnersiips ..o csrcomsineasscnmscsssin - - 32 32 32
Mortgage-backed SECUMHES ovovurmmvvrceiriecenesinnns 3,174,528 83,095 - 3,257,623 3,257,623 S
Repurchase agreements ..o merverrissnsssncmrssinsnns 188,401 128,210 99,152 415,763 415,763 3
State and municipal obligations.........ccummerensee. 161,126 69,488 - 230,614 230,614 L
U.S. Government obligations.......ieeeeeceeeccences - 451,729 - 451,729 453,462
UU.S. Government agency Obligations .....cccceeees 2,050,068 267,850 419 2,318,337 2,318,337 Ty
Various short-term investments .....cc.veecorarecens 384,368 2310 - 393 678 393,678
Total categorized INVESLMENTS ...ovruvreerrmeenneeres $ 37480079 1,2 7 $ 216988 38,916,664 38,918,397 |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continned)

Investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:

Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority at June 30, 1998:
INVESHTICNT AZFCEINIEMIES L.vorveescereenrecrisessrecrns e sssesraras tre e as b s ba s st bsst st sd e bnmbemnnstsaebths b asnnnamsenneazans
Money market. ...
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool

Investments owned by the Higher Educational Facilities Authority at June 30, 1998:
Investment AgTEEIMENIS (vt ettt
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool

Investments owned by the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership in Pennsylvania Treasury

investment pool at June 30, 1998 ... ettt et et s

Investments owned by the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authbrity in the Pennsylvania
Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1998......occo e crenn e se e raree e emessessanees

Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1998.....cooceimverninmnenenceninens SN

Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1998:
InVeStMENt ABTEEMEIES .vvrvveevsirereererisesiessserenesessseresessrensens ereer et et sa e abaa s e ab st e s nnees

Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at June 30, 1998:
MODEY TATKEE .ivivvir st tns ittt se sttt st erc e emed e et e e ree e s etessa e et e s emeaeas amsanesansenrassanessens
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool .........................................................................................

Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority at June 30, 1998:
IMIUTUAE FUNAS ..« re ettt v e s s e st rse st s e ren e re e et et st s et sae s s etssaeatassassnermrmeans

Investments owned by the Public School Employes’ Retirement System at June 30, 1998:
Common and preferred STOCK ... ..ot sttt et e e aan
Corporate bonds and NOLES. ..........ccveieereeer e st rses et et e snes
Farmland IMVESITIEIES .....crrrireriiresrnsonisinretnssresssessssssnssssnssssrassasstssatesasennsmssmesnns
U.S. Government agency.....
Intemnational equities ..............
International fixed income
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool ...........
Private placements, fixed income and equity...
REAL BSEALE .. uvririiriririameniieieie st cee s erte e nee e esreesaem e rae s aea e ereeee e e e erne et e gt snrate e st s resaeaerarerrr e eranes
Securities lending collateral....
VEIUIE CAPILAL ....ueeeeeeeerer et riani e eeie e emeasesr i e s er e e s e ene st eeass e sasessesanstesasnsentanesrenssassasntennensannss

Investments owned by the State Systemn of Higher Education at June 30, 1998:
Mutual FUnAS. ..o e et ree e en e e nsannn

Market

Total Value
7,122 7,122
8471 8,471
25,949 25,949
393,203 393,203
102,538 102,538
9,441 9,441
5,538 5,538
2,316 2,316
102,428 102,428
71,514 71,514
3,741 3,741
199,292 199,292
181,298 181,298
56,226 56,226
99,890 99,890
2,050,459 2,050,459
63,233 63,233
74,058 74,058
1,301,627 1,301,627
1,284,433 1,284,433
222,177 222,177
941,173 941,173
23,014 23,014
1,719,537 1,719,537
5,061,402 5,061,402
597,915 597,915
1,960 1,960
22355 22,355
$53.548.974 353.550.707

The Public School Employes” Retirement System (PSERS), a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent
of the common and preferred stock, 100 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 100 percent of international

cquities, 100 percent of international fixed income, 97 percent of mortgage-backed securities,

and 81 percent of

U.S. government agency obligations reported in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority

or contractual provisions for mvestments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Financiai Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Public Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) enters into a variety of financial contracts, which include
options and futures. The PSERS also enters into foreign exchange positions, such as forward and spot contracts to
hedge foreign currency exposure. The PSERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are
used primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to enhance
performance are fully collateralized, eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. Short-term investments and
cash equal to or greater than performance obligations under these contracts are maintained at all times. The PSERS
is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to financial instruments. As the PSERS
generally enters into transactions only with high-quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty
nonperformance on derivative financial instruments have been incwrred. Legal risk is mitigated through careful
selection of executing brokers-and review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that
future changes in market conditions may make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed in
accordance with risk limits set by senior management, by buying or selling instruments or entering into offsetting
positions. :

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS’s involvement in the various types
and uses of derivative financial instruments and do not measure the PSERS’s exposure to credit or market risks and
do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference
to the notional amounts and the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS’s derivative financial
instruments at June 30, 1998 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Contractual
Amount

Futures contracts long and shott. ...t $§ 2,352,554
Foreign exchange forward and spot coniracts, gross..... oo 2,406,401
Options——calls purchased.......covuivrrmmirmsemessemsrec it 96,808
Options—puts purchased ......oimnennre e 54,805
Options—calls 50ld ... e 83,037

. Options—puts S0Md.......cc o 52,138

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a
specific financial instrument at a predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based
on a notional (underlying) principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures
contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assurnes the risk that a counterparty will not
pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk. Initial margin requirements on futures contracts
are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or seil the underlying
security at a set price during a period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the
underlying security if the option purchaser chooses to exercise. The PSERS generally uses exchange listed index,
currency stock and futures options.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of
another country at an agreed-upon price and settlement date. The contracts reported above primarily include
forwards. The $2,406.4 million of foreign currency contracts outstanding at June 30, 1998 consists of “buy”
contracts of $1,153.9 million, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase foreign
cumency commitments, and “sell” conmtracts of $1,252.5 million, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of
commitments to sell foreign currencies.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) in part
to maximize yields. These securities are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a drop in
interest rates. The fair market value of CMOs at June 30, 1998 is $1,063.9 million.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D--- Deposits and Investments (continued)

Securities Lending Program

The following funds or organizations participate in a securities lending program established by the Treasury
-Department: State Lottery (a Special Revenue Fund), State Workmen’s Iusurance (an Enterprise Fund), Workmen’s
Compensation Security Trust (an Expendable Trust Fund), Statutory Liquidator (an Agency Fund), the State
Employes” Retirement System (a blended component unit Pension Trust Fund) and the Public School Employes’
Retirement System {a discretely presented component unit Pension Trust Fund). The Fiscal Code provides the
Treasury Department with numerous custodial responsibilities; the securities program is an integral part of the
custodial function. A contract between the Treasury Department and its custodian, acting as lending agent, provides
that the custodian lends securities owned by the participants to independent brokers, dealers and banks, acting as
borrowers.

Lending agreements between the custodian and the borrowers require that the custodian receive collateral from the
borrowers in exchange for the securities lent. For securities lent which are not denominated in United States dollars
or whose primary trading market is located outside the United States, the fair value of the collateral received must be
a least 105 percent of the fair value of the securities lent. For all other securities lent, the fair value of the collateral
received must be at least 102 percent. Securities lent consist of both domestic and foreign equity securities and
United States Treasury and foreign debt obligation. Almost all collateral received consists of cash; a very small
portion of collateral received consists of letters of credit, United States Treasury, corporate and/or foreign debt
obligations. Collateral is marked to market daily. Additional collateral from borrowers is required if the fair vaiue
of the collateral received declines below lending agreement requirements. The lending agent cannot pledge or sell
collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. Accordingly, neither collateral securities received from
borrowers nor the related obligations to borrowers are reported.

To the extent collateral received consists of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with
reinvestment guidelines approved by the Treasury Department. Either the participant or the borrower may terminate
lending agreements on demand. Lending agreements are typically of very short duration - usually overnight.
Therefore, the duration of lending agreements does not generally match the maturities of the investments made with
cash collateral. The resulting rate risk is mitigated by the lending agent’s ability to reallocate lending agreements
among program participants.

The program requires that the lending agent indemmnify the Treasury Department for all claims, liabilities and costs
resulting from the lending agent’s negligence or intentional misconduct. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998
{December 31, 1997 for the SWIF and the SERS), there were no failures by any borrower to refum securities lent or
pay distributions thereon. Alse, there were no losses resulting from a lending agent or borrower default and there
were no Treasury Department restrictions on the amount of the loans that could be made.

At June 30, 1998 (December 31, 1997 for the SWIF and the SERS), there was no Treasury Department or
participant credit risk to the borrowers because the fair value of collateral received was greater than the fair value of
the securities lent, consistent with the lending agreements outstanding. The carrying amount and fair value of the
securities lent are (amounts in thousands):

Carrying Amount Fair Value
State Workmen’s Insurance ........coceoeeeeeeeeecenneens $ 329,112 $ 329,112
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust........... 148,548 148,548
State Employes’ Retirement System ................... 1,542,603 1,542,603
Public School Employes” Retirement System...... 5,361,469 5,361,469

Neither the State Lottery Fund nor the Statutory Liquidator Fund had outstanding lending agreements at June 30,
1998. '
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. IO _
NOTE E— FIXED ASSETS
A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1998 is as follows (amounts in thousands): _
Primary Gevernment Discretely Presented !1
I | Component Units .
College
internai General Fixed and
Enterprise Service Assets Preprietary Fiduciary University
Funds - Funds Account Group Funds Fund Funds
ST IR $ 323 §- 6 § 255807 $ 98749 § - $ 9,683
. Buildings ... 3,619 4,583 3,040,935 446,552 - 419,972
Improvements other
than buildings ........... 4.741 2,881 256,431 74,159 - 53,220
Machinery
and equipment .......... 71,774 68,948 552,065 190,068 17,561 371,597
Turnpike
infrastructure............. - - - 2,465,622 - -
Construction in
PIOZTESS covrnrcnrrenrnanes - - 403,146 349 181 - 38.195 o
Total ....oceeirciarenen. $ 80457 $ 76418 3 4508384 $.3.624 331 $ 17,561 § 8925667

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 are as follows (aznounts in thousands): i

Balance Balance ™

June 30, June 30, .

1997 Additions Retirements 1998 Fo
Land oo ceeeeeeesienececerease s e ee e s en s $ 248,735 3 7,867 3 795 $ 255807
Buildings.......coconeneriecennmne e 2,993,408 96,218 48,651 3,040,935
Improvements other than buildings....... 246,401 11,831 1,801 256,431.
Machinery and equipment ........ccoveeeunne 547,619 35914 31.468 552.065
4,036,163 151,830 82755 4,105,238

Construction in Progress .....oeeesereenns 373,014 144,676 114.544 403,146 S

Total general fixed assets.......ccoeeee.n. $ 4409177 § 296,506 3 197299 3 4508384 o

Interest costs of 3800 thousand were capitalized for the Pennsylvania Tumnpike Commission, a discretely presented
component unit Proprietary Fund, for their fiscal year ended May 31, 1998.

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 including appraisal and
historical cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are reported at
cost, or for donations or confiscations at fair market value. At June 30, 1998 the amount of general fixed assets

related to the initial valuation amounts to $1,916 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Asscts Account Group at June 30, 1998 is composed of the -

following (amounts in thousands):

Expended Through June 30, 1998
Amounts Amounts
Project Previously Not Capitalized Anthorization
Authorization Capitalized To Date ‘Available

Capital Complex Projects ....ooovevecrenrrccnecerenernionens $ 744528 3§ 192,400 $ 96,847 $ 455281
Department of Corrections Institutions. ......coocevieene 416,886 42,565 173,362 200,959
Colleges and Universities ......coovvmeeiveernrens 145,143 - 55,295 89,848
Veteran Homes and Military Armories........... 55,026 - 36,680 18,346
Department of Public Welfare Institutions 54,954 - 25,257 29,697
L0 ¢ UV PU OV 53,997 - 15,705 38,292
TOtaL e $1.470.534 § 234965 403,14 $ 832423




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE F— INSURANCE LOSS LIABILITY

The reporied insurance loss Hability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, is
primarily based on historical claims experience. Several assumptions were used to-determine the lability amount,
including; 1) a 5.5 percent discount rate; 2} extensive changes in statutory benefits resulting from Act 44-in 1993
and Act 57 in 1996; and 3) changes in claims management practices. SWIF management expects that, over time, the
legislative and operational changes will substantially reduce claim duration, and the utilization and cost of medical
services. The estimated effects of these changes were included in the annual actuarial reserve analysis through
adjustments to the historic data. The uncertainty regarding whether the adjusted historic data will be supported by
future claim experience, including payments, must be considered when evaluating the reported insurance loss
liability.

For the two calendar years ended December 31, 1997, the following summary provides information on prior year
reported insurance loss liability, incurred claims and payments, and current year reported insurance loss liability
(amounts in thousands): '

Year Ended Prior Year Incurred Claims Paymen Current Year

December 31 Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability
1997 oo $1474757  § 159,158 § (19,020) $ 18744  § 220,794 $1,375,357
1996 .., 1,463,301 270,942 4,807 32656 . 231,637 1,474,757
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NOTE G— TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Taxes Receivabie: Taxes receivable at Fune 30, 1998 consisted of the following {amounts in thousands):

Special Trust and
General Revenne Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
52168 A0 WSE..everrrcrrrercnaerenrrermmsrmeeremsemssecsesssansnsnees $§ 5778950 § 24708 § - % 602,598
Unemployment compensation .... - - - 303,239 303,239
Personal income 199,905 - - 199,905
COTPOTALION. . eveesrraesreesrareressmsesorencrnrssasensasssennsenses 79,914 - - 79,914
Liquid fUels. oot s e ' - 68,024 7 68,031
OHBET . ...vververerremeeere s mmeeecceesoree s emeereestse rrasbsasasssinnsas 16,548 72,697 - 89245

$ 874257 § 165429 303,24 $ 1342932

Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1998 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Discretely Presented
Prima overnment Component Units
College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  Proprietary  University
- Funds Funds Funds Funds
MOTtEage 18NS . ..o ieccemcccimcr et emmssssias s nnees $ - 3 - $ 2791968 % -
Student loans - - 1,715,522 35,072
Business development loans 59,831 114,103 662,074 -
‘Water and sewer system 10ans........ccounirrsnrieeseemencens 20,325 - 1,095,472 -
Volunteer fire company [0ans.........cccvvmmarnninnns - 81,195 - -
Other notes and 08NS .........ocecuercrnmrmeeernensrossesinns 7.167 9.804 - -
87,323 205,102 6,265,036 35,072
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts............. 16,520 27.393 215,798 4.861
Notes and loans receivable, net.....coeovvevennrncrevenanes $ 70803 $ 177709 % 6,0649238 3 30.211

Discretely presented component unit governmental funds reported $4,938 thousand of loans to school districts at
. June 30, 1998. ‘

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reports amounts related to
construction projects for educational institutions funded through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, the
principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposited in the related
Capital Debt Fund, a Debt Service Fund. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to
the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease
rental receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to the principal lease payments to be received are recorded
in the Capital Debt Fund. For the Capital Debt Fund, the total minimum lease payments to be received were $3.1
million and the present value of the lease payments was $2.4 million at June 30, 1998, the difference representing
interest of $.7 million. The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School
Building Authority, discretely presented governmental fund component units, finance construction projects for
educational institutions through the issuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and interest of which are
paid through the collection of Jease rental payments related to the project. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the
project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as
direct financing leases. For discretely presented governmental fund component units, total minimum lease payments
were $5.5 billion, the present value was $3.3 billion and interest was $2.2 billion at June 30, 1998. The Pennsylvania
Industrial Development Authority, a discretely presented proprietary fund component unit, reported a lease rental
receivable with total minimum payments of $31 million, present value of $15 million and interest of $16 million at
Junﬂel: 30, 1998. Minimum lease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1998 are as follows (amounts
in thousands):
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NOTE G— Taxes, Loans and Lease Rental Receivables (continued)

Discretely Presented Discretely Presented
Fiscal Year Ending Primary Governmental Fund Proprietary Fund
June 30 Government Component Units - Component Units
§ 1,101 $ 245,695 $ 318
268 254,953 518
243 253,450 518
244 256,193 519
244 252,043 51%

NOTE H—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS __
A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1998 is as

follows {amounts in thousands):

FUND TYPE/FUND
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Special Revenue:
State Lottery Fund .......ccoveeienesieececinianessenieennne

State Racing Fund. ....c.cveeocmoercnericcreree e
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund.......c.oooveiecnmreennnncne
Motor License Fund..........cocvnrinncnnne

Vocational Rehabilitation Fund
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund........ccoceeiriniees
Workmen’s Compensation Supersedeas Fund..........
Agricultural Conservation Easement Fund ..............
Public Transportation Assistance Fund.........coeviienns
OTHEr FUBAS - cssiassna s

Debt Service:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority

Redemption Fund ... oo
Tax Note Sinking Fund.......
Other FUNAS .ot senn s conasnenreans

Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund......coveeonncnciicciniin,

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund..
Other FURAS .ovvvvvververesrevrresvrsnreesesermns s anessessmessemrecesas

Enterprise;
State Stores Fund......vivvrvrsornrescenoseeneestesereeeseeennes
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund
Rehabilitation Center Fund......cccecorvvviverrenn-
Other FUNAS cooviecciniiiiir s stersse st s sessnsssssnsevesses

Internal Service:
Purchasing Fund........ccccunvninnnimoncnc s,
Manufacturing Fund ...

Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Fund ..o
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund.......
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund.........

Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement System.....co....ocooeeeeev.

Agency:
Local Sales and Use Tax Fund .....coccovveevimieiosicnnnns
Allegheny Regional Asset District Sales and
Use TAX FUNA oo ninnin
Liquid Fuels Tax Fund
Other FURAS ..ot nmrss s

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ...............

DUE FROM DUE TO
OTHER COMPONENT OTHER COMPONENT
FUNDS UNits Funps UNnITS
3 52.093 by 4271 s 105,132 $ 4355
- - 6,185 -
- - 12,017 -
20,840 - 18 -
10,944 3 17,863 4,856
12 - 2,191 -
2,830 - 3 -
- - 2,654 -
10,502 - - 4,000 -
2,898 _ - 594 -
2.236 3 2761 85
50.262 34 48,286 4941
- 29,794 - -
. - 1,761 -
55 - - -
55 29.794 1,761 -
5,727 - 1 -
4,349 - 16 -
580 - - -
10,656 - 17 -
300 - 20,060 -
694 - 6,799 -
1,961 - 155 -
- . 104 -
2.955 - 27.118 -
4,497 6 405 -
6.820 625 67 -
11.317 631 472 -
2,244 204 3 -
48,544 - 10 -
- - 48.564 -
50,788 204 48577 -
3.867 12,622 215 -
13,187 - 13 -
14,787 - 15 -
3,264 - 146

348 - 830 -
31.586 - 1,004 -
$ 213579 3 47.556 $ 232,582 3 5396
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NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS DUE FROM DUE TO
Other Component Primary Other Component  Primary
Funds Units Government_  Funds Units Government
GOVEMINENAL ..evveveece s esssbaresnssnree e csneans 3 - % - § 299 % - 8 - 3 3
Proprietary:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment _
ATHOMLY 1veveeeececrremseeebassens s ensa e ians - 85 - - 38 29,801
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ............... - - 6,310 - - 4,570
Other FURAS ...cee e eecereee s ssas s - 38 - - 85 136
- 123 6,310 = 123 34,507
Fiduciary: .
Public School Employes’® Retirement System... - - 283 - - 416
College and University c.oeeweeeessreseressesiissnnnnnes 175,616 - 135 175,616 - 5,360

TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS..ociie e $175616 3% 123 $ 7027 8175616 % 123 40.2

The amount of total interfund receivables of $443,901 thousand does not agree with total interfund payables of
$454,003 thousand at June 30, 1998 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined
balance sheet at June 30, 1998. The amount shown for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely
presented proprietary fund component unit, is as of its fiscal year end of May 31, 1998. The amounts shown as
interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the INVEST Program for
Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, and the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, are
as of their fiscal year end of December 31, 1997. The following presents a reconciliation of interfund accounts
reported at June 30, 1998 and those amounts which would have béen reported if all funds used the same fiscal year
end (amounts in thousands):

Pue from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 ..., $ 389,195
Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 ........... 7,027
Due from component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 ............... 47.679
Interfund receivables — Combined Balance Sheet ...t 443,901
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission decrease in receivables from
Tune 1, 1998 to Fume 30, 1998 ... muiirerimsrmessserec e s s s (1,469)
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund increase in receivables from
January 1, 1998 through June 30, 1998 ..o s 2,002
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1998 through June 30, 1998 ..t 2,399
TOTAL INTERFUND RECEIVABLES $ 447333
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 ... $ 408,198
Due to primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998... 40,286
Due to component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 .........c.ocoee.oe. 5,519
Interfund payabies — Combined Balance Sheet 454,003
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission decrease in payables from
June 1, 1998 10 June 30, 1998 ... rrsstie st et (621)
INVEST Program for Local Governments increase in payables from
January 1, 1998 through June 30, 1998 .t 25
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in payables from
January 1, 1998 through June 30, 1998 .. reee 177
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1998 through June 30, 1998 ., - 251
TOTAL INTERFUND PAYABLES ...t 4473
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NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

At June 30, 1998 the General Fund has reported Advances to Other Funds of $74,808. Specifically, this amount has
been advanced as follows: $66,000 to the State Stores Fund, $2,300 to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, both
Enterprise Funds, $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, and $4,333 to the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, both
Special Revenue Funds. These amounts have been reported by the respective owing Funds as Advances from Other
Funds, except for the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, which has reported an advance of $2,000 for its fiscal year
ended December 31, 1997 (amounts in thousands).

At June 30, 1998 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has reported an advance to other
funds of $3,000 (in thousands). This amount was advanced to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund,
which has reported an advance from other funds of $3,000 (amounts in thousands).

A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 is as follows (amounts in

thousands):
OPERATING TRANSFERS
FROM - To
COMPONENT COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT N UNITS our , UNITS
(GBNETAL . 1vsvarrerrras remsscomnesenmeseneseseme s rmsrae s sessos s e sesemt s beb S ad bbb a s 103.662 3 - 3 664276 §__760.758
Special Revenue: _
State Lottery FUNd.. s immssmrsss i rvtsmssnesssssssesssnsssansssssnessns - - 260,581 -
State Racing Fund ......ccevvinrns - - 11,981 -
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund .. - - 14,000 -
Motor License Fund... - - 145,661 -
Vocational Rehablhtatlon Fund 24,929 - - -
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund...... 254,611 - - -
Pennsylvania Economic Rewtalxzatlon Fund - - - 4,966 -
Industrial Sites Clean-up Fund....coovveeevncens 12,000 - - -
Other Funds .. AR e R bR 6,208 - 9.082 -
297,748 - 446271 -
Debt Service:
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ....oeceeieeeiieenienieas 16,217 - - Co-
N Water Facilities Loan Redempiion Fund......ccceoeeeeeeevncicecncen 13,568 - 4,000 -
Capital Debt Fond... 675,080 - - -
Pennsylvania Infrasu'ucture Investment Authonty
Redemption Fund... 25,913 - - -
Local Criminal Justme Smkmg Fr.md 15,293 - - -
Nursing Home Loan Sinking Fund..... 1,704 - 6,000 -
Disaster Relief Redermption Fund ........... . 7,522 - - -
Pennsylvania Economic Rev:tahzahon Smkmg Pund - 6,799 - - -
Volunteer Company Loan Slnkmg Fund... 2,507 - 5,000 -
Other Funds .. . 13,038 - 704 -
777.641 - 15,704 -
Enterprise: - :
State Stores Fund ..ocvieevreescrecie e - - 51,478 -
Small Business First FUNG ..ot - - 1322 -
- - 52,800 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT .....covnrvmvcmnisiiinnneene. 31,179,051 8 - $ 1179051 §__760.758
FROM To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY PRIMARY
COMPONENT UNITS IN GOVERNMENT Our GOVERNMENT
Governmental FURAS .- ovowveeeeeeeereereeemsemreecrserseseremsessenssceecseeniensnes 3 913069 § 39700 3513069 § -
Proprietary:
Permsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .......eeevvees - 297916 - -
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZency ....coveerecectiesssinssesnsenns - 10,000 - -
—_— - 307916 - -
College and University Funds ... cmcenemcennn - 413,142 - -
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS... eeerernereratenenierensensnrnneneneeees 3913068 3 760,758 §. 513069 § -
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NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers '(continued)

Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types——primary government and discretely

presented component units—during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 are summarized as follows (amounts in

thou

sands): '

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Increases in contributed capital—primary government
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units......

Decreases in contributed capitai—discretely presented component units...............

Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary

government and discretely presented component units

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental residual

6,091
110,876

(2,262)

] 114,705

equity transfers out of $47,000 and net enterprise residual equity transfers out of $987 (amounts in thousands):

Net
add

add:
add:
less:
add:
less:
less:
less:

less:
add:

residnal equity transfers ... e

: general obligation bond proceeds received directly
by the Volunieer Companies Loan Fund......o.ccoooireeeeiierceenee
general obligation bond proceeds received directly by
the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
other increase to the Rehabilitation Center Fund .............
other decrease for the Purchasing Fund .....oeeveoee e
federal funds received by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
INVESHTIENE AVROTILY ....o.oevavseresre s ssserssrsssssesnssssnerassnessecmsesereesas
program grants disbursed by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AUthOMILY ...coec i errsrnirss e e e e s
amount received by the Pennsylvania Tumnpike Commission
" during JURE, 1998. ..o e eremseneseem s rseen e st cesi s

federal funds received by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission

Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary find types—primary

gov

Assigned Investment Fncome: Certain funds, as follows, receive investment income which is assigned to another fund for legal,
contractual or other reasons. Interfund transfers are reported by those funds which assign/receive investment income for other

ermment and discretely presented component Units.........oceocveereeennnn.

than legal or contractual reasons.

Assioning Fund Receiving Fund

Liquor License General

Liquid Fuels Tax Motor License

Land and Water Development Land and Water Development
Sinking

Remining Financial Assurance Land and Water Development
Sinking

Water Facilities Loan PA Economic Revitalization
Sinking

Fire Insurance Tax State Insurance

Fire Insurance Tax Municipal Pension Aid
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amount reported as deferred revenue by the Small Business First Fund...........
other decrease for Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority................

Reason

Legal/contractual
Legal/contractual

Legal/contractual
Other
Other

Legal/contractual
Legal/contractual

47,987
6,063
15,156
28
(987)
53,713
(2,262)
(2,333)

(4,000)

(1)
1.341

3 114,705

Amount

$

101
442

82
106
144

1,079
204
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NOTE I—RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PENSION SYSTEMS

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
Commonwealth and public school employes. Commonwealth employes are members of the State Employes’
Retirement System (SERS), a blended component unit. The SERS is the only blended component unit in the
financial reporting entity and it is the only pension trust fund included in the primary government. Public school
employes are members of the Public School Employes” Retirement Sysiem (PSERS), a discretely presented
component unit. The PSERS is the only Fiduciary Fund reported as a discretely presented component unit. Both the
SERS and the PSERS issue stand-alone financial statements which are available to the public. Written requests for
financial statements should be directed to the following addresses:

State Employes’ Retirement System ' Public School Employes’ Retirement System
Executive Office _ Bureau of Fiscal Control
P.O.Box 1147 - ’ P.0.Box 125

Harrisburg, PA 17108 _ - Harrisburg, PA 17108

STATE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement
system established to provide pension benefits for employes of state govemment and certain other organizations. At
December 31, 1997 there were 107 employer state agencies and other organizations participating in the SERS. The
SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service.
Employes who retire at age 60 or with 35 years of service, if under age 60, are entitled to a normal (unreduced)
anmual retirement benefit. Members of the General Assembly and certain employes classified in hazardous duty
positions can retire with full benefits at age 50. :

The general annual benefit for full retirement is 2 percent of the member’s high-three year average salary times
years of service. Membets of the legislature who were members of the SERS before March 1, 1974 are entitled to 2
benefit of 7.5 percent of average salary for each year of legislative service. State police troopers are entitled to an
annual benefit equal to a percentage of their highest annual salary (excluding the year of retirement). The annuat
benefit is 75 percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and 50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of service.
The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions.

Funding Policy: The SERS Board has the authority to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at
actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The active plan member
contribution rate is 5 percent of covered payroll for most employes; higher contributions are required for certain
members of the General Assembly and judges and district justices who elect higher contribution rates. All member
contribution rates are determined by Commonwealth law. During each of the three years ended December 31, the
annual required employer contributions (amounts in thousands) and the related percentage of that amount actually
contributed are as follows:

Year ended December 31 Annual Required Contribution Percentage Contributed
1997 $ 324,093 100.0
1996 373,902 100.0
1995 376,692 102.1

At December 31, 1997, there were no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, Tevenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are eamed and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are
reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value. United States government obligations, corporate and
foreign bonds and notes, and common and preferred stocks, including collective trust fund, are generalily valued
based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchange and securities pricing services.
Securities that are not traded on a national security exchange are valued by the asset manager or third parties based
on similar sales. Mortgage loans are valued by the asset manager using the present value of future cash flows. Real
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NOTE I— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

estate is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised,
at the present value of the projected future net income stream. Venture capital and alternative investments are
valued based on amounts established by valuation committees. Foreign exchange contracts, which are not reported
in the statement of plan net assets, are marked-to-market daily with changes in fair value recognized as part of
investment income. The investment in the Commonwealth Treasury short-term investment pool is reported at cost
plus allocated interest, which approximates fair value. Collateral received under the Commonwealth Treasury
securities lending program is reported at fair value.

Investment Concentration: The fair value of individual inveéstments at December 31, 1997 that represent 5 percent
or more of plan net assets are as follows (amounts in thousands): : :

Barclays Global Investors N.A:
Equity Index Fand P—113,172,093 units......ccoomvecemsnnrnssinsnnnieinennnesnonenns $ 4,003,943
70/30 Enhanced U.S. Tactical Asset Allocation Fund—41,030,514 units .. 1,147,838

Transition Liability (Asset): There was no pension liability (asset) at or before the date of Commonwealth
transition (July 1, 1997} to GASB Statement 27,

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The PSERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system established to
provide pension benefits for public school employes. At June 30, 1998 there were 640 participating employers,
generally school districts. The PSERS provides retirement, death, disability and health care benefits. Retirement
benefits vest after 10 years of credited service. Members are eligible for full monthly retirement benefits upon
reaching (a) age 62 with at least one year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or {c) 35 or more
years of service regardless of age. Act 41 of 1998 permitted school employes with at least 30 years of credited
service to retire without a reduction in benefits from April 2 through July 10, 1998 and from April 1 through June
30, 1999.

Benefits for full retirement are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary times years of
service. The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions.

Funding Policy: The Public School Employes’ Retirement Code provides that the PSERS Board has the authority
to establish or amend periodic employer centributions at actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of
annual covered payroll. The active plan member contribution rate for employes hired before July 22, 1983 1s 5.25
percent of covered payroll; for employes hired after July 21, 1983, the rate is 6.25 percent. Member contribution
rates are determined by Commonwealth law.

Effective July 1, 1995, employers defined as school entities (school districts, area vocational-technical schools, and
intermediate units) are required to pay the entire employer contribution. School entities are partially reimbursed by
the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the Commonwealth's share as determined by the income aid ratio (as
defined in Act 29 of 1994), which is at least one half of the total employer contribution. For employers which are not
school entities, the employer contribution is paid equally by the employer and the Commonwealth to the PSERS; no
Commonwealth reimbursement occurs.

During each of the three fiscal years ended June 30, the annual required employer contributions (in thousands) and
the related percentage of that amount actually contributed are as follows:

Fiscal year Annual Required Percentage

Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
1998 $718.431 _ 100.00
1997 $796,205 100.00
1996 $860,898 100.00

At June 30, 1998 there were no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The PSERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are

52




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is “the amount that the PSERS can reasonably
expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale.” Short-term securities are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, unless they
have a published market price or quotation from national security exchanges and securities pricing services, in
which case they are valued at the published market price. Fixed income and common and preferred stocks are
generally valued based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchanges and securities
pricing services. Securities which are not traded on a national security exchange are valued by the respective fund
manager or other third parties based on similar sales. Real estate and farmland are primarily valued based on
appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised, at the present value of the projected
future net income stream. Venture capital, private placements and limited partnerships are valued based on amounts
established by independent advisors. Futures contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and options are marked-to-
market daily with changes in market value recognized as part of net appreciation {depreciation) in fair value of
investments. Initial margin requirements for such financial instruments are provided by investment securities
pledged as collateral. :

Investment Conceniration: At June 30, 1998 there were no investments in any one organization that represented 5
percent or more of plan net assets.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth funds certain health care benefits for retired employes (that meet specified length-of-service
and age requirements) and their eligible dependents. These benefits are provided as a resuit of negotiated union
contracts and through administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as
paid, which totaled $176 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. Approximately 83,000 individuals were
covered by these benefits during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, including disability life insurance and certain
benefits to beneficiaries of state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount expended for these benefits
was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 the Commonwealth issued $225 mllion of tax anticipation notes which
matured on June 30, 1998. The $6.4 million of interest related to the notes is shown as a debt service expenditure in
the General Fund.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Commonwealth issued General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes,
Series 1997 A (notes), pursuant to a resolution adopted on February 18, 1997, in anticipation of the issuance of
general obligation bonds of the Commonwealth. No general obligation bonds to retire the notes were issued during
the 1996-97 or the 1997-98 fiscal year. The notes bear interest at varying rates, not to exceed 9 percent per annum.
Bond anticipation notes outstanding at June 30, 1998 reported by the Capital Facilities Fund, a capital projects fund,
and the Disaster Relief Fund, a special revenue fund, are $30.0 million and $19.4 million, respectively.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component unit, has reported
$796.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $379.7 million of notes payable consisting of student loan
financing of $339.5 million, other lines of credit of $30.9 million and other notes and bonds payable of $9.3 million

at June 30, 1998 as follows {amounts in thousands):

Demand student loan revenue bonds payable, due 2018-2027, ata

weighted average interest rate of 3.80 percent at June 30, 1998. $ 796,000
Student loan financing notes payable, due in 1999-2007, ata

weighted average rate of 5.95 percent at June 30, 1998.............. 339,482
Other Hnes of credit, due 1999-2003, at a weighted average interest

rate of 5.47 percent at Tune 30, 1998 ..overi e 30,964
Other notes and bonds payable, due 1999-2009, at a weighted

average interest rate of 5.76 percent at June 30, 1998 ................ 9,265

0] -1 OOV UUU P $1.175.741

The note and bond indentures among other things require PHEAA to comply with various covenants including
minimum parity levels as defined, student loan and investment yields, and program expenses. The demand bonds
payable are subject to purchase, at par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on demand of the bondholders upon seven
days prior irrevocable written notice. Under the imrevocable letters of credit issued by the Student Loan Marketing
Association, the trustee is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price of the bonds delivered to it.
The letters of credit are valid through May 1, 2007 and carry variable interest rates equal to the most recent 91 day
Treasury bill rate plus 1.5 percent. The PHEAA is required to pay the Student Loan Marketing Association annual
commitment fees ranging from 30 to 40 basis points on the stated amount of the letter of credit coverage. At June
30, 1998 total letter of credit coverage was $796.0 million.

All student loan financing notes payable, demand student loan revenue bonds payable and student loan revenue
bonds payable are collateralized by student loans and investments. At June 30, 1998, $2.0 billion of debt is
collateralized by $1.7 billion of student loan principal and related interest receivable, and $368.0 million of
investments. The other notes and bonds payable are collateralized with operational assets. Amounts due under the
lines of credit are collateralized with accounts receivable and student loans. As of June 30, 1998 the PHEAA has
$25.5 million of available credit under student loan financing arrangements and $10.0 million available under other
lines of credit. '
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NOTE J— Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

Stated maturities of notes and bonds payable for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1998 and through
maturity are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Demand
Student Loan Student Loan Other
Year of Revenue Financing Notes and
Maturity Bonds Payable Notes Payable Bonds Payable
1999 3 - 5 269,482 $ 3,067 .
2000 - - 2,327
2001 ' - - 1,554
2002 - - ’ 664
2003 - - ) 652
2004-27 796,000 70,000 1.031
Total 3 796.000 $ 339482 $ 9295

Notes and bonds payable, as well as all other debt, are limited obligations of the PHEAA. PHEAA has no taxing
power and the Commonwealth is not obligated to pay principal, redemption price, if any, or interest on any of the
PHEAA’s debt.

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund component unit, maintains two lines of
credit with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which it may borrow up to $15 million and $50 million to
fund its multi-family housing program. The $15 million line of credit bears interest from the date of issuance at a
rate equal to the current yield on two-year Treasury Notes plus 20 basis points. The $50 million line of credit bears
interest at a fixed rate on the date of a draw equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes plus 15 basis
points. At June 30, 1998, $1 million is owed at a range of 4.47 to 6.98 percent against the $15 million line of credit.
No amount is owed against the $50 million line of credit. Total reported notes payable at June 30, 1998 for the
PHFA is $6 million. -
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NOTE K— LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 1998 and changes for the fiscal year ended

are as follows {amounts in thousands):

Maturity Bonds
GENERAL LONG-TERM Issue  Interest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP Dates Rates Through But Unissued Julyl1, 1997 Additions  Reductions June 30, 1998
General Obligation Bonds Payable From

Tax Revenues: i
Capital Facilies ..creemrrrcrsmrcreeervnee. 1968-98 4.15-10.16% 2018 § 22,718,236 - $ 2,357,215 § 391,800 § 262,675 § 2,486,340 P
Disaster Relief....coeevcarcrencens .. 1973-89 4.91-6.60% 2003 131,908 - 35,260 - 5,235 30,025 o
Land and Water Developrnent ... . 1970-94 489-7.07% 2014 300 69,570 - © 13,135 56,435

Nursing Home Loan Development........ 1979-83 6.75-8.26% 2002 31,000 5,385 R 1,595 3,790

Project 70 Land Acquisition .....cceceeee. 1970 6.26% 2000 - 2,160 - 670 1,490
Volunteer Companies Loan .........coeeeee.. 1982-98 4.84-10.75% 2013 - 21,605 6,000 1,465 26,140
Viemnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation.... wvsemminsnnnenenn 1970-74 5.36-6.11% 2003 3,000 8,695 - 2,155 6,540
Water Facilities Loan ... 1983-97 4.89-826% 2017 11,500 126,310 - 6,990 119,320
Pennsylvania Econormc Rewtahzanon 1991 -25  5.04-6.60% 2015 14,000 41,900 - 4,455 37,445
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority.... e 1988-98  4.84-690% 2018 282,000 259,555 15,000 14,215 260,340
Agriculiural Conservahon Easement
PUrchase .....covceicemrerrserees oo 1991-94 5.04- 6.60% 2014 19,060 62,250 - 3,155 59,095 o
Local Criminal Justice....c.cocccvvvvncvnnceeee. 1992-97  4.84- 6.60% 2017 14,000 164,095 5,000 6,115 162,980
Keystone Recreation, Park and
ConServation ... s s 1994-98 4.84-6.60% 2018 - 34,590 14,000 1,130 47,460 T
Refunding Bonds.....courevveevnermrvrmnicne.. 1991-97 512 6.60% 2011 = 1,653,139 2.884 112,099 1.543.924 Sy
: 23,224,944 4.841.729 434.684 435,089 4.841.324 L
Other General Long-Term Obligations :
Payable From Tax Revenues: -y
Instatlment Purchase Obligations ... = - - - 22,025 4,745 8,539 18,231 S
Capital Lease ObligationS oo - - - - 57,340 709 2,073 55,976 o
Obligations Under Master Lease . :
Agreement—Equipment........ccovvenreeree - - - - 44,520 - 26,255 18,265
Obligations Under Master Lease— . )
Prison Facilities .....counnsnniemrenssorionranes - - - - 707,555 - 26,405 681,150
Self-Insurance—Note O .. - - ' - - 544,748 149,104 98,828 595,024
Compensated Absences ...... - - - - 571,969 307,635 278,977 606,627
Catastmphlc Motor Vehwle Losses - - - - 166,464 32,291 55,857 142,898
Qther .. e - - - = 724,224 183.404 381.050 531.578
- 2.844 845 682 888 877,984 2,649,749
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP .. $.232249044 § 7686574 $1,117.572 $ 1313073 § 7491073

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented component unit organizations at June 30, 1998 (May 31, 1998 for the
Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (amounts in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Bonds Payable from Lease Rentals: o
Pennsylvania Higher Educational e

Facilities Authority ......cmmnnniinens 1969-98 2.70-9.63% 2031 $ 2,773,703 § 669257 $ 372,300 § 3,070,660
State Public School Building Authority.. 1986-98 2.60-7.88% 2017 316.003 70.206 42,883 343326 ;
TOTAL GOVER.NMENTAL FUNDS 3.089.706 739.463 415183 _ 3413986
PROPRIETARY FUNDS ‘
Revenue Bonds Payable from User
Charges: o
Pennsylvania Higher Education :
Assistance Agency ... . 1984-92 3.51-11.033% 2026 837,785 - - 837,785 L
Pennsylvania Housmg Fmance Agency 1982-97 2.88-11.00% 2029 2,473,650 374,855 132,118 2,716,387
Pennsylvania Industrial Devclopment ,
Authority ... e 1994-96  4.50-7.00% 2014 409,520 - 15,050 394,470 !
Pennsylvama Tumplke Commlssmn . 1991-94  2.50-6.60% 2019 1,205,815 - 77,885 1,127,930
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment i
AUTROTIEY veverreie s e 1990-94 4.10-7.15% 2014 ’ 205.895 - 9.530 196,365
5,132,665 374,855 234,583 5,272,937
Less: Bond discounts ....cevveceresnsnsnnes - - - 56,837 3,740 7494 53,083
Deferred costs of refinding .......... - - - 5.511 2,463 431 7.543
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ......... 5.070.317 368,652 226,658 5212311 -
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS .......... $ 8160023 3$1.008.115 § 641841 5 8626297
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NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds
" accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Co

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 the Volunteer Companies Loan Fund, an Enterprise Fund, received
Commeonwealth general obligation bond proceeds of $6.1 million. This amount has been reported as an addition to general
long-term obligations and as an increase in contributed capital in the Volunteer Companies Loan Fund. Bond proceeds have
not been reported as an “other financing source” in governmental fund types for this amount.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majority of its bond issues. Additional
cash with fiscal agents is held by the Federal government for unemployment compensation claims.

The balance outstanding at June 30, 1998 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for Refunding Bonds
includes $13.3 million of accreted value for capital appreciation bonds. No principal or interest is payable on the capital
appreciation bonds until maturity.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following (amounts in
thousands): I

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims.....ocecoeeeeeeee. $ 343,174

Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTAY wovev.oovmeremmmesscesessesssaseeees 163,971

Litigation—NOLE P..ccoooc i snncss s snrssens s nms e nnens 23,673
Arbitrage Rebate TaxX ...ovvevieonioreeee e ctersssssnnessansseraseerscs 760

$ 531578

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen’s
Compensation Law to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. The PURTA provides for 2
tax on utility realty property which is available for appropriation as a general revenue source. The Act also provides for
payment of a tax distribution to local taxing authorities. Amounts included in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group at June 30, 1998 relating to Workmen’s Compensation Claims, PURTA, Litigation, and Arbitrage Rebate Tax, are not
payable with cirrently expendable available financial resources. _

In 1991, the Commonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authorities for the rental of five new
prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each lease provided for the Commonwealth to
pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation
issued certificates of participation to refund the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to
provide additional construction funding. As a result of the consolidated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments
equal to the finance corporation’s debt service payments. Both the original and the new leases provide that the
Commonwealth’s obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to provide for these
obligations. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using the new prison facilities. The finance
corporation holds nominal title to the facilities as security for the Commonwealth lease payments. When the certificates are
fully redeemed, at which time the lease agreement expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1998 the
Commonwealth has reported $681.2 million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general
fixed assets for the related prison facilities. '

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $35.7 billion as of August 26, 1998, with net debt
outstanding of $3.7 billion.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Comrmnission (PTC), discretely presented
proprietary fund component units, have pledged substantially all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds
outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (May 31,
1998 for the PTC) include bond discounts of $53.1 million.
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NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA),
discretely presented governmental fund component unifs, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1998 which are payable from
the lease rentals of the projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding,

At June 30, 1998 the SPSBA reported $235 thousand in other general long-term obligations which represents a liability for
_ compensated absences.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary
'government and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1998 (May 31, 1998 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission) (amounts in thousands):

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
T}%lgoolfgh
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 Maturity Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Capital Faciliies.ooeemecmeesrsssisneanones $ 180765 § 356515 $ 313987 § 267460 § 207,939 $ 2,024,730 $ 3,560,396
Disaster Relef...ovvrciieerenrcnens 6,961 6,820 6,833 . 6,869 6,903 - 34,386
Land and Water Development..... 14,696 14,506 13,565 7,925 4,554 11,598 66,844
Nursing Home Loan Development......... 1,869 643 596 549 550 - 4,207
Project 70 Land Acquisition .......ccciuees 783 786 - - - - 1,569
Volunteer Companies Loan ..o veetriacere 3,188 3,004 2,987 2,907 2,521 23,487 38,184
Vietmatn Conflict Veterans
COMPENSALON c..eevssrriarrmscosesesssssansssens 2,591 2,601 478 482 487 491 7,130
Water Facilities LOA cuveveervrrvmssinonnnre 12,982 12,855 12,630 12,200 11,407 113,798 175,872
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization... 6,654 6,494 6,323 5,393 2,395 24,090 51,349
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investrmnent AUthOTILY .......oecrsummrrrecenscnnns 29,137 27,502 25,943 25,301 24091 253,681 385,655
Agricyltural Conservation Easement
Purchase ...ouemeesenemnsins 6,470 6,409 6,354 6,035 5,610 56,571 87,449
Local Criminal Justice 15,676 15,669 15,661 15,650 15,643 172,231 250,530
- Keystone Recreation, Park and
CONSEIVALIOT 1vvuvrceramreesemassarrsarsssansnsanncs 4,435 4,399 4,360 4,322 4,289 52,939 74,744
Refunding Bonds.......ccurarneaes 197,071 204,011 199,749 199,881 218,001 1.034.386 2.053.09%
Total Principal and Interest................ 692,278 662,304 609,466 554,974 504,390 3,768,002 6,791,414
Less: Interest Paymients e ceeeee 248.602 226.079 205,246 185.064 167.326 917.773 1.950.090
443,676 436,225 404,220 369,910 337,064 2,850,229 4,841,324
Other General Long-Term Obligations... 294.230 123,698 117,748 116472 114.303 1,883,298 2.649.749

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP . § 737906 § 3550.923 $ 521968 $ 486382 3 451367 §$.4.733.527 $ 7.491.073

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational ’
Facilities AUROTIY corvemmnsemmrnmemneeee 3 213,093 5 220,362 $ 218,759 $ 220947 § 218,042 § 4,001,696 § 5,092,899
State Public School Building Authority .. 36,842 38,980 39.051 39.651 38,344 305,369 498237
Total Principal and Interest.....courreens 249,935 259,342 257,810 260,598 256,386 4,307,065 5,591,136
Less: Interest Payments .....covorernans 152.618 147,858 145892 140.826 135,519 1.454.437 _ 2177150
TOTAL GOVERNMENTALFUNDS ... § 97317 § 111484 $ 111918 119772 $_ 120867 § 2852628 § 3413986
PROPRIETARY FUNDS:

Revenue Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Education

ASSISLARCE AZENCY «verrrerrerrverecrsisrmrneess 8 94,348 $ 54348 $ 336787 $ 36613 5 36,613 $ 1,103,441 $ 1,622,150
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency.. 225,471 225,641 224,770 222,609 221,654 4,421,792 5,541,937
Pennsylvania Industrial Development

AUHOTILY «oeocsracnresvesesnssise st srssssaressesneass 42,994 43,749 43,006 42,525 42,399 370,095 584,768
Pennsyivania Turnpike Commission ...... 96,895 96,965 97,371 07,416 97,760 1,493,494 1,979,901
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment

AUTHOTILY «.ocveereserersssmmseressssmararssrensarnsas 21.739 22418 22797 22778 22,612 168027 280,371

Total Principal and Interest 441,447 443,121 724,73 1 421,941 421,038 7;556,849 10,009,127
Less: Interest Payments. . eceeeecervsserns 326.499 320,606 302987 288541 280456 3217101 4.736,190
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... 114,948 122,515 421,744 133.400 140.582 4339748 5272.937
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 212265 § 233990 § 533662 § 253,172 $ 261449 $_7,192.376 $ 8.686.923
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‘NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

_The Commonweazlth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in

substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year
of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as
of June 30, 1998 (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented Component Units

Pennsylvania
General Higher Education
Long-Term Assistance CoHege and
Obligations Agency University Funds
Fiscal year ending June 30
1999 ...... SO OOV P . 7,255 5 5415 3 32,006
2000 cverererecenieeressesrmerssmssssmes semsesemse s esk shsR et SRR R E AR s na s anssnnrna 7,148 5,107 31,160
2001....... . 6,954 4,999 30,570
2002 ... . 6,795 4,885 29,855
2003 e treerrerenie e b Rt et s R ARk s s et 6,335 2,109 28,557
LALET YRATS.1ocrtreeeitrcnrcsrnesme s emnes seecnsm e s b E e nbs s e s s e va st et b sennen 80,841 36,244 : 480,181
Total MiNIMUIM 1€ASE PAYITIETIS ....coveemricsneesaeemessasisrssssssnsn s rescass soeaes 115,328 78,759 632,329
Less: amount representing estimated executory costs
included in total minimum 16256 PAYMENTS...cceerveerrercceescressssmnsessasesanems 14,582 - - -
Net minimum lease payments ... - 100,746 78,759 632,329
Less: amount representing INterest ..o . 44770 24,822 270,544
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS ........... . 8§ 55976 b 53,937 § 361785

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS ... oot 3 18.231

- At June 30, 1998 general fixed assets included § 95.8 mitlion of buildings and $2.5 miltion of equipment being procured by
“ capital leases. A total of $42.8 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of Tune 30, 1998 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital
projects currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued
by the public financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets
include $38.2 million of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1998. .

The Commonwealth has entered into three lease arrangements with a trustee for the refinancing of previously existing leases
and instaliment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment. These arrangements provide that the trustee
issue certificates of participation, the proceeds of which allow for immediate payment to Commonwealth equipment vendors.
This is not a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are
responsible for securing appropriations to make lease payments to the trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund
periodic principal and interest payments to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use
of the leased equipment, the trustee holds legal title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the
certificates are fully funded, legal title vests with the Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1998, $50.8 million in general
fixed assets is being procured by these master lease arrangements.

Conduit Debt

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At June 30, 1998 the PEDFA
has $1,106.4 million of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statemnents.

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to energy conservation and research.
Fees are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by
the property fimanced. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity
served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $114.6 million in revenue bonds outstanding at Jume 30, 1998. The
Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed asscts nor the bonds are included in the
accompanying financial statements.
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NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Government

In prior years, the Cornmonwealth defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of refunding
bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. At June 30, 1998,
$762.8 million of general obligation bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units _ -

'During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), governmental fund component units, issued
revenue bonds to advance and current refund $140.3 million and $36.5 million, respectively, of previously issued

revenue bonds as follows {(amounts in thousands}):

School Revenue Refunding Bonds School Revenue Refunding Schoo! Revenue Refunding
Albert Gallatin Area Bonds — Brownsville Area Bonds — Conemaugh Valley
School District Schoof District School District
Category Series A of 1997 Series B of 1997 Series C of 1997
Issuing AUthOrItY .ovverrvvseee ceeeeerienas . SPSBA SPSBA SPSBA
Bond Type oviiaes Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued ......... 11-13-97 11-13-97 11-13-57
Refunding Bonds Principal ....ccvicerniniranns 31,620 $1,455 53,675
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.67% 5.07% 4.88%
Refunded Series.. . School Revenue Bords School Revenue Bonds School Revenue Bonds
Albert Gallatin Area School Brownsville Area School Conemaugh Valley School
District Project District Refunding Project District Project
Series B of 1990* Series B of 1987% Series F of 1992
Refunded Bonds Principal $1,545* $1,450* $3,265
Interest Rate (Refunded) 7.06%* 6.65%* 6.58% }
Payment to Escrow Agent $1,567 51,454 $3,581 i
Debt Service Savings (Loss) 5180 $250 $97 N
Economic Gain (Loss) $169 5169 $96
School Revenue Refunding "l
Bonds - Erie County Area Lehigh Carbon Community Revenue Bonds - Saint i
Vocational Technical School College Revenue Bonds Francis College Project R
Category Series D of 1997 Series E 0f 1997 Series 0T 1997
Issuing AUtBOLILY «ooeeeeneremeeeemsseirrians " SPSBA SPSBA PHEFA !
Bond Type “ Revenue Revenue Revenue i
Date Issuec feeeuererenesreen et et e 11-13-97 11-19-97 11-20-97 i
Refunding Bonds PANCIpal ... s s $3,640 $1,025 $9,700
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.55% 5.29% varizble
Refunded Series ....... School Revenue Bonds College Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds - Saint
Erie County Area Series of 1992* Francis Collegs Project
Vocational Technical School Series of 1993*
Series G of 1992*
Refunded Bonds Principal $3,485* $1,305% $3,387* i
Interest Rate (Refunded).. 5.699%* 5.75%" variable* 1
Payment to Escrow Agent $3,567 $1,567 $3,399 :
Debt Service Savings (Loss) ... . $61 528 3431
ECONOMIC GAI vv1mvrerseeeenisssssenssseeriessmsnssssssrsssmsmsssssssssssssasasnens 367 $12 3642

* Current refunding.
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NOTE L— Refundéd Debt (continued)
Revenue Bonds Gwysedd-Mercy Revenue Bonds - State
Rosemont Collepe Project College Revenuz Eonds System of Higher Education
Category Serieg of 1997 Series of 1008 Series P '
Issuing Authority ....... PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued 11-20-87 2-18-98 2-25-98
Refunding Bonds Principal ...... $5,000 36,055 $72,880
Interest Rate (Refunding) variable 5.50% 4.96%
Refunded Series College Revenue Bonds Gwynedd-Mercy Revenue Bonds - State
Rosement College Project College Revenue Bonds System of Higher Education
Series of 1986™ Series of 1988 Series F / Series L
Refunded Bonds Principal $2,165* $2,225 $27,245/341,245
Interest Rate (Refunded) ... 7.67%* 8.40% 5.95%/6.17%
Payment to Escrow Agent $2,262 $2,381 $72,688
Debt Service Savings (Loss) 3611 5490 54,707
Economic Gain {Loss)} $620 5269 $3,920
Drexel University College Revenue Bonds LaSalle University
Revenune Bonds Geneva College Revenue Bonds
ate; Second Series of 1998 Serfes of 1998 Series of 1998
issuing Authority PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued 4-19-98 4-22.98 5-21-98
Refunding Bonds Principal $13.870 $15,535 $17,455
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.92% 5.44% 5.19%
Refunded Series Drexel University College Revenue Notes LaSalle University
Revenue Bonds Geneva College Project Revente Bonds'
Series of 1993/Series of 1996 Series of 1993*/Seties of 1996  Series of 1989/Series of 1993
Refunded Bonds PHncipal...eesinsriiines $6,575/56,135 £1,579%/5,600* $7.895/5790
Interest Rate (Refunded) 6.17%/5.48% 5.375%*/variable* 7.10%/6.10%
Payment to Eserow Agent $13,473 37,150 $8,996
Debt Service Savings (Loss) 5165 5195 5552
Econemic Gain 3385 5286 5358

Allegheny College - College
Revenue Refunding Bonds

Category Series 1998 A and B
Issuing Auihority ... . PHEFA
Bond Type Revenue
Date issued 6-18-98
Refunding Bonds Principal R $30,510
Interest Rate {RefUndifng) ..o oo e 5.11%
Refunded Serfes.......cnnmmmemn College Revenue Bonds
Allegheny College
Series 1993 A and B
Adjustable Rate Tender Option
Bonds — Allegheny College
Series of 1996*
Refunded Bonds Principal $13,415/516,000*
Interest Rate (Refnded) .-...ucicicrceeremie s ssssisaninsns 6.21%/variable®
Payment to ESCIOW AZENl..courrrrsrrriisicsssssrmmrrmsesmsneresess e $14,170/515,103*
Debt Service Savings (Loss) 31,699
Economic Gait (Loss} .. $345
* Current refunding.

Temple University
Revenue Bonds

First Series of 1998

PHEFA
Revenue
6-24-58
$195,315
5.15%
Temple University
Revenue Bonds
First Series of 1991

$31,690
6.83%

$33.820
$4,845
$3,090

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were used
to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusis to provide for all future debt
service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

On June 18, 1998 as reported in the preceding table, the PHEFA issued $30.5 million in College Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 A and B, Allegheny College, in part, to current refund the Adjustable Rate Tender
Option Bonds, Series of 1996, Allegheny College. The liability for the 1996 bonds will be removed from the
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NOTE L— Refunded Debt (continued)

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group on August 1, 1998, when they are called.

The SPSBA and the PHEFA reported advance and current refundings in their component unit financial statements
for the Burgettstown Area School District, the Brookville Area School District, the West Cornwall Township
Municipal Authority, the Hospltals and Higher Education Facilities Authority of Philadelphia, the Cumberland
County Municipal Authority and the Allegheny County Higher Education Building Authority, which are mot
reported in the preceding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed from their General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group; however, since the SPSBA and the PHEFA did not issue any new debt, these were not
‘advance or current refunding transactions of the SPSBA or the PHEFA. Furthermore, there were no debt service
savings nor any economic gain or loss fo the SPSBA or the PHEFA.

At June 30, 1998, $829.5 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in their General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings, for the PHEFA and the SPSBA.
Included are $773.1 million for the PHEFA and $56.4 million for the SPSBA.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund
component unit, redeemed prior to maturity $22.4 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series N, O,

Y, Z, 1997-58, 1997-56, 1997-54, 1996-53, 1996-52, 1996-51, 1996-50, 1995-45, 1994-38, 1992-33, 1991-31,

1991-30,1990-29 and 1990-28 using mortgage prepayments. In addition, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity
$28.8 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series J, K, T and U using bond proceeds. The PHFA
completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 22 years by $10.1 million and to
obtain an economic gain of $6.6 miltion.

At June 30, 1998, $7.1 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements
of the PHFA, have been defeased through refundings.

At May 31, 1998, $639.7 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial

statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a proprietary fund component unit, have been defeased
through refundings.

At June 30, 1998, $150.5 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial
statements of the Pemnsylvania Industrial Development Authority, a proprietary fund component unit, have been
defeased through refundings.

At June 30, 1998, $82.2 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements

of the State Systern of Higher Education, a college and university fund component unit, have been defeased through
refundings.
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NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and five Special Revenue Funds (Motor License,
State Lottery, Workmen’s Compensation Administration, Banking Department, and Milk Marketing). The
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Cbanges in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget
and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on
a budgetary basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting (amounts in
thousands):

Special
General Revenue
) Fund Funds
BUDGET_ARY BASIS:
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over {under)
expenditures and other USES ... imreensnsraresssreeecnnns § (136901) 3 70371
Adjustments: ‘
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred 1eVenue ........ccoverecercrnensaniaees 986,734 1,417,936
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued liabilities......covrvirienerernen (2,511,477) ( 1,739,354)
To adjust enCUMbIANICES ...vvveeeeeeeneisasteta s sasstaessnerasnennes 2,271,559 481.802
Net adjustments . ..o vveoce oo e 746.816 160,384
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under
expenditures and other USes.........coennieineciniernersreesesnens - 17.858
TOTAL ALL FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources over
expenditiures and ofher USES. ..o § 609915 § 248613
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NOTE N — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Commonwealth’s Primary Government has seven major Enterprise Funds that provide for a variety of loan programs%business
and government orgamizations, workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development loans. The

following is a summary of selected financial information related to these Enterprise Funds (amounts in thousands):

State Machinery
Small - Workmen’s Volunteer Minority and Other Total
Tuaition Business Insurance State Company Business Equipment Enterprise Enterprise
Payment First ec. 31, 199 Stores Loan Development Loan Funds Funds
OPerating TeVEIUES «..cueerereraraseisiemsmanmsssasn 3 34,799 5 3,261 $ 311,864 $ 789,475 $ 2,430 3 746 $ 2,065 $ 21,198 81,165,838
DEPIECIAtOIL 1uvassnvasnrasrrmsermemmcessiaesssnsisenes - - 825 3,501 - - - 907 5,233
Operating income. 6,530 1,198 81,045 68,116 2,289 600 2,848 - 1,156 163,782
Operating transfers Oub.......ceemeciiecnanes - 1,322 - 51,478 - - - - 52,800
Net income (IO55)...iiireinsnrneressssessenemsenn 6,530 (124) 81,045 22,235 2,289 600 2,848 2,043 117,466
Increase in contributed capital......oiseeeees - - - - 6,063 - - 28 6,091
Acquisition and construction of
capital assets " - 370 4,036 - - - 356 4,982
Net increase (decrease) in cagh ..eeeennee. 71 (54) {1,311} 7,008 179 (13) (20) 2% 5,383
Total assets 118,899 66,875 [,847,338 232,473 85,624 10,067 49,466 40,623 2,451,365
Bonds and other long-term labilities
payable from operating revenues .......... - - 1,375,357 - - - - - 1,375,357
Total! fund equity.......ciimmmmmme e 13,541 59,799 141,461 59,229 85,579 9,887 49,431 34,608 453,535
Net working capital......ecw e siinininns 34,618 10,827 48,483 116,711 4,482 7177 17,289 30,025 263,612
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NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation, which includes indemmnity and medical
benefits (employe disability), for its employes injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for
annuitant medical/hospital claims and for tort liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employe and
general torts. For property losses, the Commonwealth has $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance
coverage up to 5134 million per occurrence. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the
Department of Transportation (transportation claims). The Commonwealth has established various administrative
policies that are intended to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. No
settlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage during each of the past three fiscal years.

The accrued liabilities for employe disability and annuitant medical/hospital claims are determined by an actuary in
accordance with accepted actuarial principles. The accrued Hability for employe disability was calculated including
the effects of changes in statutory benefits from Act 44 of 1993 and Act 57 in 1997. Accrued liabilities for tort and
transportation claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such
claims are not discounted. These liabilities include liabilities for allocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses
and include salvage and subrogation. Salvage and subrogation were not material for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998. No accrued liability has been reported for property losses.

At June 30, 1998 the accrued Habilities which will be paid with current expendable available financial resources are
reported in the General Fund. Those liabilities which will not be paid with cuorent expendable available financial
resources at June 30, 1998 are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (GLTOAG). All
accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1998 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Motor
General License
- Fund Fond GLTOAG Total

Employe disability.....cccoveveererrnen. § 77,043 3 - $ 346,285 § 423328
Amnuitant medical/hospital.......... 33,452 - - 33,452
Automobile tort .....ccooceeeerereeneene. 3,051 - 10,659 13,710
Employe tort......oceceieceeeiaeaee 2,966 - 20,134 23,100
General tort......cocceiveeieenriieniiens 1,351 - 31,417 32,768
Transportation......ccccvvereecrericecnnnn - _ 26836 186,529 213 365
Totals ..ceereeereenerrnmrrensverinee, S 117,863 $ 26,836 $__595.024 $ 739723

The following surnmary provides aggregated information on prior year reported self-insurance liabilities; incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30,
1998 (amounts in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1997 Claims Payments 1998

_ Liability | Current Prior | | Current Prior | Liability
Employe disability ............... ¥ 368626 § 12,687 5103359 $ 7,209 $ 54,135 § 423,328
Annuitant medical’hospital .. 33,169 209,607 - 176,155 33,169 33,452
Automobile tort..........c......... 13,631 1,790 1,101 1,038 1,774 13,710
Employe tort ....cceovecvvenrnne. 21,130 1,566 2,133 668 1,061 23,100
General tort....ocevveerrecrennne 35,267 518 (741) 71 2,205 32,768
Transportation............cccece... 217417 10,166 3.032 415 16.835 213.365

Totals e 3 _689.240 §$236334 S$108884 3185556 $109.179 §_739.723
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NOTE O--Self-Insurance (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 1996 self-insurance liabilities; incured claims
and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1997
{amounts in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1996 Claims Payments 1997

) Liabjlity | Current Prior | [ Current Prior | Liability
Employe disability............... $ 972,551 $ 39406 S$(571,164) $ 7393 § 64,774 § 368,626
Annuitant medical’hospital .. 32,865 152,721 - 119,552 32,865 33,169
Automobile tort........ccceeeuenee 14,475 1,711 946 830 2,671 13,631
Employe o1t «..c.ceevvirvirereirnras 18,435 411 3,606 - 1,322 21,130
General tort......ceeerverrecscecces - 35,597 409 (108) 44 587 35,267
Transportation.............. W _.235223 _ 6757 __(6.829) 389 17345 ___ 217417
Totals ........... reverrermeeneneees $1.300,146 $201.415 §$(573.549) $128.208 $119.564 $ 689240

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the reported prior year liability for employe disability claims decreased
by $571,164 (amount in thousands) due to changes in assumptions about the number, duration and other attributes of
claims incurred but not reported.

NOTE P—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

_Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1998 the Department of Transportation and at May 31, 1998
the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual commitments of
approximately $1,194 million and $353.0 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass transit
projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and general
obligation bond proceeds. In addition, the Commonwealth has a variety of contractual and other commitments for
future subsidies and purchases of goods and services for approximately $9.7 billion at June 30, 1998, Actual
expenditures are contingent upon approved spending authority and/or availability of finauncial resources.

Loan Commitments: At June 30, 1998 the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that
had not been disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZENcy ....cuevmeccrcisssssnsnsnienens k3 211
Pennsylvania Industrial Development AUthOrity.....cooreeereiiennnnnnns 198
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority........ocooveveennee 195

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component units have
commitments to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1998 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:
Primary Discretely Presented
Government Component Units

109G et s mreeen s rn e e re s s e be b b et s e $ 237,218 § 1,673
FO00.ciitiiseirririsreemesessssa et sasssssnesasasasenerrecsbssans 120,321 1,280
OO oo seeeeeeeeeeresseeensrrrseese et e betasseaeme s smee e ranesenanss 77,133 1,068
002 cicteiereserssseseeserstas s resesssesee e s s ran e eaassreas 58,747 1,020
2003 e eeeeeeeeeeeee s ssbs s re et e et ssaee e e eerase b reraas 42,052 830
LAEr VEAIS ..cccvrecceiririrrrei ettt et eans e 167,574 1.346

Total Minimum Lease Payments ..........coeeeeeee. $ 703,045 § 7217

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 amounted to $284.6
million ($282.2 million for primary government, $2.4 million for discretely presented component units).

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally

incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the

Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemmation proceedings and other

alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities at June

30, 1998 with respect to torts as described in Note O, $398 thousand in the Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects
66




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Fund and as other General Long-Term Obligations with respect to other matters of litigation in the amount of
$23,673 thousand for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable.

- Additionally, the Commonwealth is currently involved in certain legal proceedings relative to a funding equity case
with a school district in the approximate amount of $999.8 million and a case relative to an allegation of racial bias
in the distribution of state funding in an approximate amount ranging from $200 million to $1 billion. Other cases
that the Commonwealth is vigorously contesting could range from approximately $93 to $669 million, zero to $182
million, $2 to $31 million, and zero to $1.1 billion of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenue
Funds, Capital Projects Funds and the Pension Trust Fund, respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could range
from $526 thousand to approximately $5 million of additional liabilities for the College and University Funds, and
could result in approximately $3 million of additional liabilities for the Governmental Funds.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings, for which accrmals have not been made, it is the opinion of
the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the Commonwealth’s
financial position.

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government in the
form of grants and entitlements, incloding several non-cash programs (which are not included in the general purpose
financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the
grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes.
Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the
grantor agencies of the Federal govemment or their designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these
audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The Commeonwealth is currently involved in administrative and
legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various disallowances and sanctions related to Federal
Assistance Programs ranging from $38 to $157 million. The Commmonwealth’s management believes ultimate
disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident students.
Total original principal for outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $13.4 billion at June 30, 1998.
Under the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy, and default claims paid to lenders.
Pursuant to this agreement, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there is
compliance with various federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 78 percent to 100 percent depending
upon default rates in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the year ended June 30, 1998, PHEAA’s default
rate was in a range that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department.

Lottery Prizes: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including immediate,
lump-sum cash prizes and certain large prizes which provide for periodic payments to winners for specific periods of
time (in some cases throughout the winners lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). At June 30, 1998, the amount
of future payments owed to prizewinners is $2.4 billion. To satisfy its financial obligation to these prizewinners, the
Fund purchases annuity contracts from insurance companies whereby the insurance companies make periodic
paymenis to prizewinners, Generally, in the event of insurance company default, the Fund is liable for the related
ammuity payments. However, certain prizewinners voluntarily assign their annuity rights to other parties and receive
lump-sum payments in return. In the event of insurance company default where annuity rights have been voluntarily
assigned by prizewinners, the Fund is not liable for the related annuity payments. At June 30, 1998, the future
payments of $218.0 million have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners.
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NOTE Q—CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate the
payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by healthcare providers practicing
in the Commonwealth. The Fund levies healthcare provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance premiums for
basic coverage, to pay claims and administrative expenses paid on behalf of healthcare providers during the prior
year. The actuarially computed liability to the healthcare providers for claims outstanding at June 30, 1998 totals
$2,123.4 million ($1,615.6 million at present value based on the expected payment pattern and an assumed long-
term 1interest rate of 6 percent). The amount of expendable financial resources available to pay claims at June 30,
1998 is $138.8 million. This is reported as a fund liability. The remaining claims will be funded exclusively through
surcharge assessments in future years as claims are settled and paid; as a result, 2 financial liability for remaining
claims is not reported.

The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees from
underground storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated with
corrective actions or for bodily injury or property damage caused by tank leaks and other releases. Owners and
operators are assessed actuarizlly determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay claims. The Fund’
actuary has estimated potential claims of $560.2 million at June 30, 1998. There are statutory limits on the extent of
the Fund’s liability to participating owners and operators. The Fund has reported assets and liabilities amounting to
$359.3 million at June 30, 1998; the Fund is not obligated beyond that amount. Owners and operators will be
assessed for any claims exceeding $359.3 million and no financial liability is reported for those claims.

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System, permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employes until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, ail property and rights purchased with the amounts, and all
income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject only to the
claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account of each
participant. The Commonwealth has no Hability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that
would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes it is unlikely that plan assets will
be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $545 million in assets (at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, at
December 31, 1997, $526 million relates to primary government employes and $17 million relates to employes of
discretely presented component units. The remaining balance of $2 million relates to organizations not included in
the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTE S—JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth and various labor unions representing Commonwealth employes participate in 2 joint venture,
the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare
benefits for active Commonwealth employes and is a third party administrator for Commonwealth annuitant
medical/hospital benefits. The Commonwezlth is required to fund all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of
providing benefits; the unions are not required to make contributions. Collective bargaining agreements and
administrative policies establish contribution rates and/or amounts. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the
Commonwealth contributed over $485 million to fund benefits. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an
equity interest in the PEBTF. At June 30, 1998, the PEBTF reported total assets of $342 million, total liabilities and
benefit obligations of $96 million, and net assets available for benefits of $246 million. During the fiscal year, net
assets available for benefits decreased by $28 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored on an ongoing
basis; financial siress is not evident,

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

William K. Schantzenbach

Chief Financial Officer

Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700
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NOTE T—YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

Numerous Commonwealth computer programs which rely on or perform caliculations using dates originally
included two digits (rather than four) to identify the year. As a result, it was not known whether the year 2000
would be cormrectly identified, treated as 1900 or treated as some other year. Miscalculations or other failures
resulting from incorrect date recognition would significantly disrupt Commonwealth operations. In 1996, the
Commonwealth adopted an aggressive action plan to ensure that its computer programs are year 2000 compliant and
to avoid disruptions to its operations.

As of Fune 30, 1998 the Commonweaith has reviewed its computer programs and has modified, validated/tested and
returned to service 90 percent of all programs affecting vital public service. The Commonwealth plans to modify,
validate/test and return to service the remainder of these computer programs, as well as all non-critical programs, by
December 31, 1998. Modifications, including correcting existing computer programs and/or converting to new
software and testing, have all occurred while maintaining normal operations. Also, the Commonwealth is
evaluating all computer equipment and other devices which include date-sensitive computer chips to ensure that
they are year 2000 compliant. This evaluation will continue through December 31, 1999. Further, the
Commeonwealth is communicating with significant contractors, suppliers, vendors and other affected parties to
ensure that they are taking appropriate measures to properly interface with Commonwealth programs in the year
2000.

The Commonwealth believes that the efforts completed through June 30, 1998 and the measures planned to be taken
will fully address this matter. While there can be no guarantee that all of the Commonwealth’s vital or non-vital
computer programs will be entirely free of year 2000-related problems, no disruptions to normal operations are
expected. The amounts committed at June 30, 1998 are not material to either the financial position or the results of
operations of the Commonwealth or any of its individual funds.
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NOTE U—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On August 1, 1998, the Commonwealth issued $298 million of General Obligation Bonds, Second Series of 1998
with an interest rate of 4.72 percent. Bond proceeds will be used for the construction and acquisition of capital
facilities projects, the retiremerit of bond anticipation notes outstanding, loans to construct, rehabilitate and improve
water supply, storm water control and sewage treatment systems, the expansion and construction of county and
multicounty regional prison facility projects and the purchase of agricultural conservation easements for the
preservation of agricultural land.

On December 1, 1998 the Commmonwealth issued $270 million of General Obligation Bonds, Third Series of 1998
with an interest rate of 4.47 percent. Bond proceeds will be used for the construction and acquisition of capital
facilities projects, the purchase of agricultural conservation easements for the preservation of agricultural land, and
the expansion and construction of county and multicounty regional prison facility projects.

Discretely Presented Component Units

On July 2, 1998 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) issued $53 million of Series Q variable rate demand
bonds. The bonds will bear interest at a variable rate determined daily by the remarketing agent and will be used to
pay for a construction project in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania, and expansion and renovation of the PTC’s
administration building, as well as various other construction projects.

On August 1, 1998 the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority issued $38 million of Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1998A. The bonds will be used to finance the refunding of certain maturities of the Series 1990
Revenue Bonds, the Series 1991A Revenue Bonds, the Series 1992A Revenue Bonds, and to pay the cost of
issuance of the Series 1998A Bonds.

On August 13, 1998 the PTC issued $310.5 million of Series A Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Bonds and
$228.4 million of Series B Oil Franchise Tax Subordinated Revenue Bonds. The bonds will bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.85 percent to 5.5 percent, and be used for continued construction of the Mon/Fayette extension.

On September 30, 1998 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) issued $75 million of Single Family
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1998-63. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to refund certain of the PHFA’s
outstanding Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds to fund the purchase of new single family mortgage revenue
loans and to provide funds for deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund.

On October 7, 1998 the “Higher Education Amendments of 1998” was enacted. Among other provisions, the law
requires that guaranty agencies establish a Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund (the “Federal Fund”) within 60 days
of enactment, transfer all liquid assets in the guaranty agency’s existing reserve fund into the new Federal Fund, and
specify that the Federal Fund is the property of the United States. As a result of this law, a substantial portion of
PHEAA.’s retained earnings related to guaranty activities under the Federal Family Education Loan Program may be
reclassified as a liability. As of June 30, 1998 such retained earnings amounted to $106 million.

On October 29, 1998 the PHFA issued $75 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1998-64.

The proceeds of the bonds will be used to fund the purchase of new single family mortgage loans and to partially
redeem the PHFA’s Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series U.
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Special Revenue Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the operation of the Pennsylvania State Lottery which includes the payment of prizes to
lottery winners, property tax and rent assistance to the elderly, mass transit fare subsidies, and prescription drug costs
incurred by the eligible eldexly.

Motor License Fund - to account for highway and bridge design, construction, improvement, restoration and maintenance,
for the purchase of rights-of-way, for aviation activities and facilities, for transportation general government, licensing and
safety activities, for payment of subsidies for construction and maintenance of local roads, and for payment of Pennsylvania
" State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen's Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. Insurance companies and self-insured businesses are
assessed a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these acts. '

Banking Department Fund — to account for the administration of the Department of Banking and regulation of financial
institutions. Revenue is received from fees, assessments, charges and penalties collected or recovered from persons, firms,
corporations or associations regulated by the Department of Banking.

Milk Marketing Furd — to account for the operatibn of the Milk Marketing Board and to serve as a depository for money
due to dairy farmers from underpayments by dealers. Revenue is received from license fees, fines, penalties and permits
relating to the milk industry.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — to account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of the
Commonwealth’s mass transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, a motor vehicle lease tax, and a
motor vehicle rental fee.

Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund — to account for the payment of prescription drugs and insulin supplies for eligible
Commonwealth recipients who are at least 65 years old.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid waste
is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection,
propagation, management and preservation of game and aquatic life.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning uvp abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Other — to account for programs related to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous
Commonwealth activities. This other category is an aggregation of thirty-five individual special revenue funds. '

There are a total of forty-five individual special revenue funds.
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COMEBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED
FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDETARY BASIS)
Budgeted Special Revenue Funds

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands})
State Lottery Motor License Workmen's Cpmpensatinn Administration
Variance Variznce Variante
Favorahle Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorakiel Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:"
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refinds, 3 - 3 - 8 - % 1,011,931 § L5282 % 3,351 5 4294 42839 % (102)
Lottery receipt 880,908 909,844 28,936 B - - - . -
Licenses and fees. - - - 705,760 703,051 (2,649) - - -
Departmental service; 5,194 5,087 (107} 50,084 33,786 (16,298) 213 185 28)
Miscell 1S 8,793 16,969 8,176 84,010 87,289 3,279 5,000 2,662 (2,338)
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS...c0rvrcememisssssnss " 894,395 931,900 37,005 1,851,725 £.339,408 {12,317) 48,154 45,686 (2,468)
Federal Programs 62,233 59,346 {2,887) 702,648 606,675 (95,973) - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 957,128 591,246 34,118 2,554,373 2,446,083 (108,290) 48,154 45,686 {2,468)
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General government 301,885 278,938 22,947 173,894 168,708 5,186 52,984 52,940 44
Protection of persons and property.... e - - - 273,571 271,967 1,604 - - - -
Public health and welfare 624,092 610,186 13,906 - - - - - -
Public education . - - 1,526 1,272 254 B - -
Conservation of natral FESQUICES oo - - - 1,000 2 998 - - -
Economic development and a‘ssistanoe... - - - - - - 142 142 -
Transportation - - - 1,458,286 1,433,291 25,005 - - -
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 925,977 889,124 36,853 1,908,287 1,875,240 33,047 53,126 53,082 44
Federal Programs 62,233 59,346 2,887 702,648 606,675 95,973 - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES...ccoonrvsrsnsrnsmsrnssnenss 088,21% 948,470 36,740 2,610,935 2,481,915 129,020 53,126 53,082 44
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES {31,082) 42,776 73,858 (56,562) (35,832} 20,730 {4,972) {7,396) (2,424)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Prior year lapses. 32,369 32,869 - 30,236 30,236 - 4,157 4,757 -
ncrease In budgeted TEVENUE ... cceec e sesissrsrnriins - - - - - - - - -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES.....cr.-r 32,869 32,869 - 30,236 30,236 - 4,757 4,757 -
Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditure 1,787 75,645 73,858 (26,326) (5,596) 20,730 (215) (2,639) (2,424)
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JULY 1, 1997 196,957 196,957 - 114,073 114,073 - 38,273 38273 -
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS),
JUNE 30, 1998, $ 198,744 5 272,602 $ 73,858 5 87,747 $ 108477 $ 20,730 % 38,058 35,634 3 (2,424)
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i For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

Banking Department Milk Marketing Total
Yariance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorahle Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorahle} Budget Actual |Unfavorahle} Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
5 - 3 - 8 - 3 - 3 - $ - $ 1,054,872  § 1,058,121 3 3,249
- - - - - - 880,908 905,844 28,936
9,702 11,161 1,459 2,007 2,147 140 717,409 716,359 {1,050)
- . - - - - 55,491 35,058 (16,433}

487 601 114 179 160 (19) 98,469 107,681 9,212
10,189 11,762 1,573 2,186 2,307 121 2,807,149 2,831,063 23,914
- - . - B - 764,831 666,021 {93,860)
10,189 11,762 1,573 2,186 2,307 121 3,572,030 3,497,084 (74,946)

- - - - - - - 528,763 500,586 28,177

9,201 9,083 118 2,527 1,307 220 285,299 283,357 1,942

- - - - - - 624,092 610,186 13,905

- - - “ - - 1,526 1,272 254

- - - - - - 1,000 2 998

- - - - - - 142 142 -

B - - - - - 1,458,296 1,433,291 25,005

9,201 9,083 118 2,527 2,307 220 2,899,118 2,828,836 70,282

- - - - . - 764,881 666,021 98,860

9,201 9,083 118 2,527 2,307 220 3,663,999 3,494,857 169,142
988 2,679 1,691 {341) - 341 (91,965) 2,227 94,196

210 210 - 72 72 - 68,144 68,144 -

210 210 - 72 72 - 68,144 68,144 -
1,198 2,889 1,691 (269) 72 341 (23,825) 70,371 94,196
5,684 5,684 - 1,737 1,737 - 356,724 356,724 -

3 6,882 3 8,573 £ 1,691 3 1,468 3 1,809 3 341 $ 332,399 $ 427095 3 94,196
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Debt Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and investment income.

. Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund and investment income.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund, facility rental and investment income.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and small
business development. Funding consists of tfansfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization
Fund and investment income.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction and
improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities Loan
Fund, investment income and proceeds from the sale, lease or disposal of loan collateral.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund, the Land and Water Development Fund and investment income.

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies and for compensation to Viemam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the
General Fund and investment income. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual debt service funds.

There are a total of fourteen individual debt service funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 1998

Debt Service Funds
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsylvanmia Water Land and
Pisaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
ASSETS:
Cash 3 - % 1 8 - 5 i 3 - 1 3 3 8 6
Cash with fiscal agents. 357 - 9,767 44 30 532 171 10,901
Temporary investments, - - 166,186 150 - 9 1,355 167,700
Receivables, net: .
Aceount: - - 8,899 - - - - 8,899
Acgrued interest - - 164 [ - - 480 645
Lease rental.. - - 2,392 - - - - 2,392
Due from other funds - - - 20 - 26 - 55
Due from component unit - 29,794 - - - - - 29,794 -
TOTAL ASSETS - § 357 % 29,795 § 187408 § 225 % 30 568 3 2,009 § 210,392
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilifies:
Matured debt principal and interest payable........... $ 357 8 - 8 9767 S 4 8 30 532 8 17t § 10901
DUE 10 OIET FUNES...rnnreerveecrsecereasasmserrasmsoessennns - - - - - - L7617 1,761
Deferred revenue . - - 11,291 - - - - 11,291
Other Habilities. ..o eenrreeeeeeeer e rreseneeeeeeeees - 26 722 - - - 40 788
TOTAL LIABILITIES 357 26 21,780 44 30 532 1,972 24,741
Fund balance:
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Debt service:
Retirement of general obligation bonds.... - 29,769 165,628 181 - 36 77 195,691
Undesignated deficit................. - - - - - - {40) {40)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ...ceveeeesrnrninraons - 29,769 165,628 181 - 36 37 195,651
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES ....cvininimarsammsnsnrsncseans 5 357 % 29795 & 187408 § 225 3 30 568 % 2,009 % 220,392
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed it Thousands)

REVENUES:
Envestment income.
Lease rental principal and interest.........ov.vvereveevverevmrcreccsssnnans
Other.

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal retirement.......
Interest and fiscal charges.......

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ..cocvnsvssarernscnoncens

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
COperating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ....cococoncvemstsvirirans

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES..coocennenae

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1997

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998
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§ 165,628

Pennsylvania .
Infrastructure Peonsylvania Water Land and
Di In t Economic Facilities ‘Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
$ 4 3 11 3,832 1 3 175 201 3 1,188 3 5412
- - 2,159 - - - - 2,15%
7 1 2,191 - - - - 2,199
11 12 8,182 1 175 201 1,188 9,770
5,235 14,215 374,775 4,455 6,990 13,135 16,285 435,090
2,307 13,721 211,767 2,367 6,773 3312 16,747 256,994
7,542 27,936 586,542 6,822 13,763 16,447 33,032 692,084
(7,531) (27,924) (578,360) (6,821) (1 3,5?8) (16,246) (31,844) (682,314)
7,522 25,913 675,080 6,799 13,568 16,217 32,542 777641
- - - - (4,000) - (11,704) (15,704)
7,522 25,913 675,080 6,799 ' 9,568 16,217 20,838 761,937
%) (2,011) £6,720 (22) (4,020) (29) (11,006) 79,623
9 31,780 68,908 203 4,020 65 11,043 116,028
$ - & 29,76% 181- % - 36 3 37 % 195,651




Capital Projects Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other
public organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for general obligation bond proceeds used to fund capital projects specifically itemized
and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Funrd — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties and multicounty
authorities for the repair, expansion, construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or

multicounty regional prison facilities, or for the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing
programs.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for bond proceeds and a percentage of the state realty
transfer tax. The amounts are used to acquire, improve and expand Commonwealth and community parks, recreation
facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves and wildlife habitats and other recreational areas and facilities.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for bond proceeds and other income used to provide grants to eligible
entities for use in developing outdoor recreation areas and improvements to sewage treatment facilities.

There are a total of four individual capital projects funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET _ _
Capital Projects Funds - - June30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
ASSETS
M1t vemere e eree s e vas s e s s rsa s srenr e sasan e vasnrranes B 3 $ - 3 1 $ - 3 4
Temporary investments.. 69,470 2,117 95,056 1,365 168,008
Receivables, net:
ACCTUEA ITIETES - 11 v v1errereceeeacerrarrems e esevaerarsercsssvassesssssnmsensaes 506 12 455 - 973
Due from other UNGS.........ceecvimrvesnrermseresseserrsesessisssassesenes 5,727 - 4,349 580 10,656
TOTAL ASSETS $ 75,706 b 2,129 $ 99,861 $ 1,945 % 179,641
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....... - 8 73,500 & 1,225 b3 - 6,732 3 2 % 81,459
DUE 10 OtheT FUNGS. . ceeeee et ece e ve s sar s emre e 1 - 16 - 17
Due 10 Other ZOVEIMIMENTS...ccvrv e ecerereneemsrensrssssrssesssacsrrsesen 6,159 - - - - 6,159
Bond anticipation notes payable......ersrrimansmsrrsr. 30,000 - - - 30,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 109,660 1,225 6,748 2 117,635
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
ENCUMBTIANCES. .. e e eeereereesreeieseetasereessssessemassesaesssssesssssansesen 696,484 429 8,530 20 705,463
Unreserved:
Designated for:

Capital PrOJECS.. ..o e e n e e en e - 475 84,583 1,923 ) 86,981
Undesignated deficit. . ..o ceereniencsis e resene (730,438) - - - (730,438)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (33,954} 904 93,113 1,943 62,006

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3 75,706 $ 2,129 $ 99,861 b3 1,945 & 179,641
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
RS e ereeeeeveeereereeesserreseeeeesoebemt s reassssmensssmssssarssssersssnes
Intergovernmentai..............
Charges for sales and services......cminmimnn,

INVESEMENT IMCOMIE 1vvvrersreenrreieeseuenenssenerassrersonreessmesseeanens
[0 3T OUUON

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Genetal ZOVEIMMENT. ... curuiiriieeeassssemrererresseesesesstssisaraas

Protection of persons and Property......cwerveeeeensscucanes

Conservation of natural TeS0UTCES.....ovvriereneecrinre e

Econormic development and assistance......vveersiemerens

TransPOTtAION. v iar s st rarrstsressosensos s senssseennacas

~ Capital QUlaY.....coo st
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal CHATEES ... vreirarmrinrsss et

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds......coooceeenes

NET OTHER FINANCING
- SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
UNDER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER USES

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1997.ccicoicrnusnns

S

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998..cccesssmmussssmmnrinivnis

Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water i
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
- 5 - 8 42,272 3 - b 42,272
640 - - 30 670
48,783 - - - 43,783
6,320 250 4,842 2 11,414
. 6 . - 6 !
55,743 256 47,114 32 103,145
506 - - - 506 ‘
- 6,968 - - 6,968
3,350 - 34,471 - 37,821 D
34,549 - - - 34,549 o
127,908 - - - 127,908
325,875 - - 2 325,877 o
. - 9 - 9 B
492,188 6,968 34,480 2 533,638
(436,445) (6,712} 12,634 30 (430,493)
395,935 5,060 14,140 - 415,135
395,935 5,060 14,140 - 415,133 B
|
g}
(40,510) (1,652) 26,774 30 (15,358) o
6,556 2,556 66,339 1,913 77,364 }
(33,954) % 904 by 93,113 $ 1,943 % 62,006
O
D
L
oy
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- Enterprise Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

Tuition Payment Fund — to account for the tuition account program, which provides for the advance purchase of college
tuition credits for the beneficiary to attend a college or university at a future time. Revenme is derived primarily from
application fees, tuition unit purchases and investment income.

- Small Business First Fund — to account for and provide loans to eligible small businesses for capital development projects
which will create or preserve employment opportunities and that will enhance business development in Pennsylvania.
Sources of revenue include loan principal and interest payments, transfers from the General Fund, Federal funds and
mvestment income.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for premiums paid for worker’s compensation insurance by employers who
are subscribers and to pay workers’ compensation claims and related expenses.

State Stores Fund ~ to account for the general operations of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the liquor store system and enforcement of the Liquor Control Law.

" Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide low-interest and -short-term loans, loan and bond
guarantees and other financial and technical assistance, to eligible minority business enterprises and for operating expenses of
the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments, transfers from the
General Fund and investment income.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans to finance machinery and equipment
purchases for eligible Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value added-capacity. Sources
of revenue include loan repayments, General Fund appropriations and investment income.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers,
insurance to home owners in mining areas against damages resulting from mine subsidence and vocational rehabilitation
services and loans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of fifteen individual enterprise funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET _
Enterprise Funds - June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
State
Small ‘Workmen's Volunteer Minority Machinery
Tuition Business Insurance State Companies Business and Equipment
Payment First {Dec. 3%, 1997 Stores Loan Development Loan Other TFotal
ASSETS:
Cash $ 151 38 362 3 1,265 % 10,800 % 80 §$ 28 % 272 % 119 3 13,177
Temporary investment: 34,139 14,304 333,807 77,821 4,101 7,256 15,898 33,395 521,721
Long-tattnn investinents. .. ..oweeeroseere sememrararns 84,067 - 1,460,688 - - - - - 1,544,755
Receivables, net:
ACCOURLS......veereeesmmersrssenirensmemnssenssssmsnsass essarsens 8 - 21,586 1,259 - - - 148 23,001
Accrued interest 534 237 19,078 382 246 73 154 170 20,874
Notes and loans - 51,972 8,169 - 81,097 2,710 32,142 1,61% 177,709
Due from other funds. - - 694 300 P - - [,961 2,955
Due from other government - - - - - - - 14 . 14
inventory. RO - - - 127,044 - - - 233 127,277
Fixed assetS...oooreeerercesnenene - - 12,394 55,308 - - - 12,755 80,457
Less: accumulated depreciation ... ..oeveceeeremecee.. - - (£0,916) (40,790} - - - {9,791} (61,497)
Other assets, - - 573 349 - - - - 922
TOTAL ASSETS $ 118,899 $§ 66,875 § 1,847,338 § 232473 § 85624 3 10067 $ 49466 § 40,623 § 2,451,365 -
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............ 5 175 % - 3 7031 % 86876 3 - % 152 % 2 % 3989 3 98,225
Tuition benefits payable.... 104,694 - - - - - - - - 104,694
Obligations under securities lending, - - 287,209 - - - - “ 287,209
Due to other funds 35 5 6,799 20,060 - 4 7 . 208 27,118
Due to other government . 3 - - 308 - - - 127 438
Deferred revenme. .......cooieeiveeescrsnscrene 1 4,671 19,773 - 45 24 - 1,687 25,601
Advances from other fands.........veeicecvcncienniions 450 3,000 2,000 66,000 - - - - 71,450
Other liabilities. - - 7,708 - - - 26 4 7,738
Insurance loss liability...... - - 1,375,357 - - - - : - 1,375,357
TOTAL LIABILITIES .ccovcoresrearsrsssmsssninsarsses 105,358 7,076 1,705,877 173,244 45 130 35 6,015 1,997,830
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital...........conveereces O - 56,568 - 2,294 60,416 40,660 .« 45,200 3,867 209,005
Retained eamings (deficity:
Reserved - - 5 - - - - 4,782 4,787
Unreserved....... 13,541 3,231 141,456 56,935 25,163 (30,773) 4,231 25,959 239,743
TOTALE FUND EQUITY....coomicesssisecsemeariansaness 13,541 59,799 141,461 59,229 85,579 9,887 49,431 34,608 - 453,533
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY $ 118,899 5 66,875 & 1,847,338 § 232473 § 85624 3 10067 $ 49466 § 40,623 § 2451365
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
'EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services.
Investment income.
Interest om notes and loans
(Other.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.....

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services........ eeerer e eennnnanan
Interest expense

- Depreciation..
Provision for uncollectible 2CCOURS. ...ummmmiriene
-Other.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .............
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) .....cccommsncns
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment income.
Other revenues.

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET.ivae

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS ccruvscrssssinicn

OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating transfers out
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET.

NET INCOME (LOSS) csrsessesmarrmsmreerasrasrases

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),
AS RESTATED, FULY 1, 1997.c.covcrerereree
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),

" JUNE 30,1998

State . .
Small Workmen's Voluateer Minority Machinery
Tuition Business Insurance State Companies Business  and Equipment
Payment First {Dec. 31, 1937) Stores Loan Development Loan Other Total
F 18065 § - § 130,237 § 789475 § - 3 - 5 - & 19,794 5§ - 957,571
16,732 : 849 181,599 - 281 403 954 1,368 202,186
. - 2412 - - 1,610 337 988 36 5,383
2 - 28 - 539 3 123 - 698
34,799 3,261 311,864 789,475 2,430 746 2,065 21,198 1,165,838
28,269 528 198,631 77,370 10 470 136 19,158 564,552
- - 20,008 - - - - - 20,008
- - 825 3,501 - - - 907 5,233
- 1,535 10,173 438 131 (768) {919) 3) 10,637
- - 1,182 - - 444 - - 1,626
28,269 2,063 230,819 721,359 141 146 {783) 20,042 1,002,056
6,530 1,198 81,045 68,116 2,289 6500 2,848 1,156 163,782
- - - 5,597 - - - 560 6,157
- - - - - - - 327 327
- - - 5,597 - - - 8387 6,434
6,530 1,198 81,045 73,713 2,189 600 2,348 2,043 170,266
- (1,322) - (51,478) - . - - (52,800)
- (1,322) - (51,478) - - - - (52,800)
6,530 (124) 81,045 22,235 2,28% 600 2,848 2,043 117,466
7,011 3,335 60,416 34,700 22,874 (51,373} 1,383 28,698 127,064
3 5 - 3,231 5 56935 & 25163 § (30,973) § 4,231 § 30,741 § 244,530

13,541

$ 141,461
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
State .
Small Worlamen's Volunteer  Minority  Machinery
Tuition Business Insurance State Companies  Business and Equipment
Payment First (Dec. 31, 1997 Stores Loan Development Loan fther Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating income 3 6530 %5 LI98 5 81045 5 63116 § 2289 3 600 § 2848 § 1,156 5 - 163,782
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation - - 325 3,501 - - - S07 5,233
Net amortization - - - - - - - {816} (816}
Provision for uncollectible 2CCORNLS. ovvrmmrraeasarissnsnseeecans - 1,535 10,173 438 131 {768) 919 {3 10,637
Nonoperating revenues - - - - - - - 327 327
Reclassification of investment inCOMmE.....oeeueceeeereeeeceens (16,732) (849) (181,599} - (28D) {403) {954} (1,368) (202,186)
Change in assets and Habilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables_ ... vemienae (143) (9,675) 1,027 (670) (9,313) 1,307 (159) 216 {17,910y
Decrease in due from other funds - - 435 117 - - - 1,837 2,389
Decrease in due from other governments........c.cucevecucec.s - - - - - - - 24 24
increzse in inventory. - - - (12,390) - - - ) {12,394)
Decrease in other agsets. - - 98 6 . . . . 104
Fncrease {decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities. 115 (32 (152) 5,525 - (243) {10) 785 5,988
Increase {decrease) in due to other funds.......co.covcvreunenne i 29 3 1,277 3,879 - 4 5 118 5,307
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments.. 2 - - {123) - - - 16 (105}
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenue. - 4,002 (19,427) - 3 (22} B (1,646) (17,090)
Decrease in insurance loss liability............. emrerersrerearnnnans - - (99,400} - - - - - (99,400)
Increase in tuition benefits payabie 25,752 - - - - - - - 25,752
Increase in obligations under securities lending... - - 33,635 - - B - - 33,635
Decrease in other liabilities. - - (21,063) - - - (28) 3 (21,094)
Total adjustments. 9,023 (5,014) (274,171) -333 (29,9600 (125) (2,075) 390 (281,599)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 15,553 (3,816} (193,126) 68,449 (7.671) 475 73 1,546 (117,317
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowing under advances from
other funds (10%) - - - - - - - (100}
Operating transfers out. - (1,322) - (51,478) . - - - (52,300)
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (100) {1,322) - (51,478) - - - . (52,900)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in coniributed capital - - - - 6,063 - . 28 6,091
Acquisition and construction of capital a55ets.. ., mrvervesrisear - - (370) (4,056) - - - (556) {4,982)
NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ..cooccomeecercrsrrer - - (370) (4,056) 6,063 - - (528) 1,109
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment (3,773,419 (14,356)  (1,633,501)  (548,125) (15,287) (2,270) (10,674) (20993}  (6,018,715)
Proceeds from szle and maturities of investnents. .. 3,749,132 18,610 1,683,792 536,621 16,798 1,383 3,949 18,120 6,033,405
Investment income. 8,905 330 141,984 5,597 276 393 932 1,384 160,801
NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15;382) 5,084 192,185 (5,907) 1,787 (494) (793) (989) 175,491
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH....ccnimiseinemiens 71 (54) {1,311) 7,008 179 (19} (20} 29 5,883
CASH, JULY 1, 1997, 80 416 2,576 3,792 1 47 292 90 7,294
CASH, JUNE 30, 1998 5 151 % 362 3§ 1,265 $ 10,800 § 180 3% 28 3 2712 3 119 % 13,177

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.
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Internal Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or servicesr'provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
- Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions. Revenue
is derived from reimbursements from Commonwealth agencies who use Fund services or products.

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods and services by inmates in the institutions of the
Department of Corrections, government agencies and government-aided organizations.

There are a total of two individual internal service funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Internal Service Funds June 30, 1998
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Puorchasing Manufacturing Total
ASSETS
L0 OO SO O ST UR PSP U PP RRO $ 105 $ 223 328
Temporary VESHIEIS ..o ettt 18,165 4,188 22,353
Receivables, net:
ACCOUIES. v vveeeereeeccreeeeessstasisssrsensanssesmeesrmtaesstesosranasesnanmass nareandbanssosnnsssnas 32 - 32
ACCIUEA IMEEIESE. .. v eevereeeceeeeefeeeteessa e e ssns s sseareesnsssanesranssnnnessasesnnsbosnssanses 88 12 100
[ 111 1= S USROS - 113 113
Due from other fUnds........coeecrererceerreecinr e st st e e 6,820 4,497 11,317
Due fTOI1 COMPONENT UNITS....cmeeeersessernissrensesmrssnssensenssnssssasessssessssssssssans 625 6 631
Due from other ZOVETIIMETIHS. ....ccr v ccctrcnessssaamsee et ssasasa e sens 113 129 242
THVENIOTY. crereee ettt sa s e s s 1,423 12,114 13,537
FIXEA BSSBIS. cevvurierrrereeeermmeeesitresnnrairansssvsrensssnnessonsmssanme s st o iibtsasaasaneesasnannns 52,809 23,609 76418
Less: accumulated depreciation... ... eeeiiemmsievesesesesees s ssesssssransanas (25,388) (12,188) (37,576}
T ABEEES . veeeeereereeearesiarrenraneeeeaneeserssesnes samte e assasesasensnnessnssnsansonmsrsrmnesssss - 1 1
TOTAL ASSETS 3 54,792 $ 32,704 87,496
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliies.. ..o s 8,089 s 5,307 13,396
Dite 10 Other fNAS... ..o eeveceersrereee e re et e sn e s 405 67 472
Due t0 other SOVEINIMENTS. .. ..cc oo serc et 15 k| 46
B B TS (=3s 1= (B Nk =) 111 L= T OO PY U PR pTe 90 - 90
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,599 5,405 14,004
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital.....ceccevieeciciiiininii s 9,187 - 9,187
Retained earnings:
UNTESEIVEA. ... ieiisieeecreieeemr s reseaeesee e e e msntbtbarnsarasnereenssnnbasasssannanmnsnnans 37,006 27,299 64,305
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 46,193 27,299 73,492
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 54,792 $ 32,704 87,496
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS _ :
Internal Service Funds : ‘For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands})

Purchasing Manufacturing Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales ANA SETVICES. .cicreveercrerrsrrrrrsrssr e meesmeeeeeeemtecsambeecabsaasassnsansnreesssnnssnsnsn $ 106,306 $ 36,051 $ 142,857
OO, oot eeeee e s ses e semeeesasessasasesesaseseneresmsanasasmsssbarairsasassnsnss : - 60 ' 60
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 106,806 36,111 - 142,917
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of 5ales and SEIVICES ...t sene s nnsssssnnnnas 97,048 33,128 130,176
DePTeciation. ....ocvevecerireecrreresrirrintest s s ies e e st st et 7,200 1,245 8,445
. TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 104,248 34,373 138,621
OPERATING INCOME 2,558 1,738 . 4,296
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESHNENE ITICOIIIE .o res s ierreee e e e reee e e esisbsserscstasssnsarasssnesnasansssaresssarnsannssses 1,007 141 1,148
HRET TEVEIIES. oo iveeee i iveesarerressrssntrreraseeeeaasnressrereeotsesessananrbassasasens snsutvnees 491 - 491
OHDET EXPEIISES . cveecemeree e eccmisi et sassss s e e smrr s b s e se e e nmcan s st sbe st - (101) : (101)
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET 1,458 4 1,538
NET INCOME 4,056 1,778 5,834
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1997 33,937 25,521 59,458
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER OUT (987) - (987)
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 34, 1998 3 37,006 $ 27,299 $ 64,305
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

BDTcra) (T - Lo 4 N OO UOROP
NOTNOPETANNE TEVEIMIIES. ...ccuurieeeririereereremrerssssaesesetesrmsrrseseasnsssassssanestesasssen
NONOPETALNG EXPEISES..ceceerreriuerseeariraesasiseissriacssrsrmstsassrestsssrstesssesssssssssnsere

- Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in TeCEIVADIES........coveeieemccm et
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds..........o
Decrease (increase) in due from component Units. . ...vceeesricnisniieenns
Decrease (increase) in due from other govermments........coveeievreencninae
Decrease in iMVERIOTY. . o cciececeerieeceeiereess e st sase s s se s sses s eanas
Decrease in Other a5818.....cciiarrnieniciniesi e s s s

{Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Decrease in due to other funds.....cccocceeeei e e e
Increase in due to other governImMents...........cccviriniie e
Decrease in deferred TEVENUIE. .......cecvirererreriirreerersrnrssnssrrnresserssrerssrnrsrrrane

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

- NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES......cccoovunns

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets.......iinimnnni,
Proceeds from sale of capital 8Sets......cccoovreverienrcncne e e

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments...

Proceeds from sale and matunnes of mvestments ...................................
INVESTTIENT ICOITIE. (.. vrieieisieiecinrarsnrerrmres e rassrassessssresasrsrararssnesrasassraresasases

NET CASH (USED FOR)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH, JULY, 1, 1997

CASH, JUNE 30, 1998

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipis or cash payments during the fiscal year.
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5 2,558 $ 1,738 5 4,296
7,200 1,245 8,445
4 - 4
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795 {1,516} (721)
36 (6) 30
90 (3% 3
198 870 1,068
- 83 83
(61) 1,021 960
(208) {14} (222)
- 5 5
(33) - (33)
8,002 1,630 9,632
10,560 3,368 13,928
(9,933) (1,746} (11,679)
1,602 - 1,602
(8,331) (1,746) (16,977}
(54,091) (22,784) (76,875
50,706 20,845 71,551
983 135 1,118
(2,402) (1,804) {4,206)
(173} (182) (355)
278 405 683
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Trust and Agency Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and agency funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and agency funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer taxes and for the payment of unemployment
compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to transfer and receive menies from the Federal Unemployment Trust Fund.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to individuals who
are insured by an insolvent insurance comparny and for the administrative costs to administer the program. Funds are derived from

-an anmual assessmient on all insurance carriers authorized to transact and write workmen’s compensation insurance in the
Commonwealth.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses over
$100,000 to a lifetime aggregate of $1 million to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the eriginal Catastrophic
Loss Trust Fund (no longer in existence). Revenue is derived from surcharges on certain motor vehicle moving violations and
investment income. '

Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund — to account for the payment of claims arising from defauiting members of self-insurance pooling
arrangements under the Workers’ Compensation Act. Revenue is derived from assessments on self-insurers.

Real Estate Recovery Fund — to account for retmbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgments against any person licensed
by the Real Estate Commission. Revenue is derived from fees paid by licensees and interest income from investrents.

PENSION TRUST FUND

State Employes® Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members of the
State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

INVEST Program For Local Governments — to pool and invest amounts owned by local governments and school districts.

AGENCY FUNDS

Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect and administer funds for a program to provide claim payments to
owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective action, for bodily injury or for
property damage caused by a release from underground storage tanks.

Statutory Liguidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
- policyholders and stockholders and payment of administrative expenses.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are deferring a
portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premium tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance companies
conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities must pay these monies
to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to account for foreign (out-of-state) casualty insurance company tax revenue, which is distributed
to municipalities to help defray municipal, police and fire pension fund costs.

' Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to pay judgments, awards, or settlements in medical malpractice claims
which exceed basic limits of coverage provided in professional liability insurance policies. Revenue is derived from annual
participant surcharges.

" Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the Federal
Government. This other category is an aggregation of seven individual agency funds.

There are a total of five individual expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund, one investment trust fund and thirteen individual
" agency funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET o
Trust and Agency Funds o : o June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Expendable Pension Investment Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash rersrseesar e s e e reresra e e R e s es 3 3,975 3 - b - 5 6,600 3 12,575
Cash with fiscal agenis.......oeecrernininciiisess s 2,507,197 - - 9,260 2,516,457
Temporary investments......... . 531,635 503,781 535,334 849,990 2,424,740
Long-term investruents........ 129,545 22,234,360 - 627,434 22,991,339
Receivables, net:
Taxes reereetrereveneanenenreatas 303,239 - - - 7 303,246
ACCOUNLS.......ooeereeeeeceer. . 8,670 - - 189,975 198,645
Accrued interest reverrens 4,255 94,040 621 4,757 103,673
Investment proceeds. ... - 105,737 - - 105,737
Other...covirreresereerereens - 1,152 - 38 1,190
Due from other funds.....c.ccecvenee, . 50,788 3,867 - 31,586 86,241
Due from compoRent UIES....wcocoerereeeeeerrerrerermrmreneese s seesenae 204 12,622 - - 12,826
Due from other SOVEITIMENES. ..o v eeeeee et rameceseres vememenes 14,852 5,005 - - 19,857
Other 285818 coverrrererereraeerenens 222 - - 343,593 343815
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,556,582 $ 22.960,564 3 539,955 § 2,063,240 $ 29,120,341
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilifies:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.........cocrmmccccnicieee. 8 156,092 3 23,332 $ 2,777 ) 560,715 b 742,916
Tax refunds payable......... reremrereeanernn 5,100 - - - 5,100
Investment purchases payable... ..o eemereeeeuesecemeceimeseaee - 185,784 - - 185,784
Obligations under securities lending........cvvvevnininnininonins 145,932 1,439,402 - - 1,585,394
Due to other TUAS....coeonrrrrerrrrenriserr e ersnresreessesesssner 48,577 215 - 1,004 49,796
Due to other governments 3,293 - - 234,367 237,660
Other liabilities,.....cccconernnnae et - - - - 1,267,154 1,267,154
TOTAL LIABILITIES ‘ 358,994 1,648,793 2,777 2,063,240 4,073,804
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
B CUITIDTAIICES . cveue v eeeesemrsreramesnsersereesensesensns eseessssrasesiesemsens 1,962 - - - 1,962
Pension benefits......cco...... - 21,311,771 - - 21,311,771
Long-term Investments........cu.. 129,545 - - - T 129,545
Other. - - 537,178 - 537,178
Unreserved:
Designated for: .
Other. . 3,339 - - - 3,339
Undesignated........oeevervmnererarcns w“ 3,062,742 : - - - 3,062,742
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,197,588 21,311,771 537,178 - 25,046,537
TOTAL LIABILYTIES AND FUND BALANCE ....ccocvcnimnne $ 3,556,582 § 22,960,564 h 539,955 § 2,063,240 $ 29,120,341
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

' Expendable Trust Funds June 30, 1998
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Workmen's
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits  Self-Insurance Real Estate
Compensation Trust Continuation Guaranty Recovery Total
ASSETS 7
GBS e rrevs e saseemsnensessnessasesssss s s s srent s .3 5929 § 43 3 1 8 1 5 1 3 5,975
Cash with fiscal agents........cocouverevenee SRT— 2,507,197 - - - - 2,507,197
Temporary investments 200 462,733 63,534 4,137 1,028 §31,635
L ONE-TETT HEVESITETLS orvvrrsrsevssssnessssnomsenernrerecssens - 129,545 - - - 129,545
Receivables, net:
T BXES.currersrrsresrsrrsrnresrrsnssesvasens sismsssssassasssssassntoasses 303,239 - - - - 303,239
AACCORIES. 111 1r1cru e sveceeaeessmnesmesescmaae seremsmesencesseranssns 1,918 - 6,751 - 1 8,670
Aceried Interest. .o ceee..rucensone 19 4,046 165 20 5 4,255
Due from other funds........cuevmeeee e 2,244 48,544 - - - 50,788
Due £fom COMPONEnt WNitS...comermmreriamrirrsessesasssasens 204 - - - - 204
Due from other gOVEIMMENLS. ....ccrasmessnrsrsmsormees 14,852 - - - - 14,852
Other assets....ovrcrrrererarescsns - 222 - - - 222
TOTAL ASSETS b 2,835,802 § 645,135 % 70,451 § 4,158 % 1,036 § 3,556,582
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitées:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.. b 73,302 % 25,055 8 57,093 % 2 3 20 % 156,092
Tax refunds payable.....umrme e 5,100 - - - - 5,100
Obligations under securities lending.........cocouueen.. - 145,932 - - - 145,932
Due to other fungs.......ocvoecesrrrernerss e e 3 10 48 564 - - 48,577
Due to other EoOVEMMENtS...cvumirsrsrvrsriessresms e 3,293 - - - - 3,293
TOTAL LIABILITIES, 81,698 170,997 106,257 22 20 358,994
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
ENCUMDIANCES. ..o.veeereeeccanemvisss st sasassarnassassassanes - 1,962 . - - 1,962
Long-term investments. - 129,545 - - - 129,545
Unreserved:
Designated for:

OLHEL. oot isrnsst s bssrne e s ensasassnnsass - - - 3,339 - 3,339
Undesignated (Geficit).....c.conmminisnirinn: 2,754,104 342,631 (35,806) 797 1,016 3,062,742
TOTAL FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT).....cccc0.. 2,754,104 474,138 (35,806) 4,136 1,016 3,197,588

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE 3 2,835802 § 645,135  § 70451 % 4,158 % 1,036 § 3,556,582
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES -
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _
Expendable Trust Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Workmen's
Compensation  Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits  Seli-Insurance Real Estate
Compensation Trust Continuation Guaranty Recovery - Total
REVENUES:
Taxes N $ 5287 § - % - 3 - 8 - § 5,287
Unemployment taXeS e irerrrssrsirrsrssrssnssnsssrssrssias 1,513,110 - - - - 1,513,110
Licenses and fees - 20,722 37,754 76 40 58,592
Intergovernmental 46,563 - - - - 46,563
Investment income. 154,353 40,108 1,191 235 59 195,946
(6115 O 301 - - - - 301
TOTAL REVENUES 1,719,614 60,830 38,945 3in 99 1,818,799
EXPENDITURES: '
Current:
General govermnment. et rarestesese ess st taan - 4,209 1,225 - - 5,434
Protection of persons and property....u. .. - 18,952 55,857 132 11 75,052
Public health and welfare........covcininciiricinicns 1,504,122 - - - - 1,504,122
Debt service:
Principal retirement. ..o msiennis s s ieienes - 9,683 - - _ - 9,683
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,504,122 32,844 57,082 132 [11 1,594,291
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. 215,492 27,986 (18,137} 179 (12) 225,508
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT),
AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1997..cccimmincassrsesnsrons 2,538,612 446,152 (17,669) 3,957 1,028 2,972,080
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT),
JUNE 30, 1998 3 2,754,104 % 474,138 3§ (35,806) 3 4,136 § 1,016 3 3,197,588
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- COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance

July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1998

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK

INDEMNIFICATION FUND

ASSETS '

ARt oo seeeeer s se s eeseseees e eeestsr s e iessienens - 3 86409  § 85,697 S 712
TEMPOLATY NVESHTENLS..oveserrerrerererrrerrrereccescestssssssssisssssrass s o 311,488 65,862 17,606 359,744

Receivables, net:
ACCTUEH ITIIEIES . v eservereessveessseeressersansessrsstbssastsanress rmsscesssmanssasrassn 1,438 18,381 18,611 1,708

TOTAIL ASSETS § . 312,926 § 171,152 3 121,914 3 362,164

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued 1iabilities...oiiriennimncneen $ 3,799 b 3,330 3 3,144 b 3,985

Due to other FURS....coev e riesnrer s v e e e raranan 73 57 73 57
1 1 1 1
309,053 69,528 20,460 358,121

Due to other governments...
Ofher Habilities. ccvsauriinecrsvmccsinesieeeneiees ssns s sres e s e sesnesesoncacs

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 312,926 5 72,916 5 23,678 3 362,164 i
STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS
(00T ;YOO OO RO OSSOSO 1 140,848 140,848 1
Cash with fiscal agents.... 17,885 9,254 17,885 9,254
Temporary investments... 94,660 142,476 111,125 126,011
LODE-1ETTR INVESHTIENIS. couivisnsisnssriinrrsscsensssemmsease et sarsasenss 68,249 19,302 - 87,551
Receivables, net:
AACCOUTIES oo vetauvessrresemesessansenecsesseasmneebantshabas sressemesns sasansssassseasacns 213,514 - 29,723 183,791
ACCTUEA IETESL. .o cvuvearereierervevereeeeaeresmasnccmnesesss st s seesssmss s e senes 2,525 1,337 2,525 1,337
Due from 0ther fURAS.. ..o cverermree e es st s 268 47 268 47
BT BESEES. e eoeemeeeroreeeeeemssbssessenssrerrsrmesee semesarsessmnesasamirbctirisassrssnseses 314,728 23,906 - 338,634

TOTAL ASSETS y $ 711,830 3 337,170 S 302,374 5 746,626

LIABILITIES
OHhEr HABTHHES. ..ovveeereee e venerssnrsssscerceescmsremserremscmssirissssaianarsisssss 3 711,830 5 153,597 $ 118,801 3 746,626
TOTAL LIABILITIES S 711,830 3 153,597 3 118,801 $ 746,626

DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND
(December 31)
ASSETS

[07:T:] | WO $ 1 3 183,659 $ 183,659 3 1
Cash with fiscal 2ZEN1S ... ettt 6 - - 6
TernpOLary INVESTIMENLS. ... eeectee et semnas s st sbsbrans 3,528 27,663 25,703 5,488
LONg-LErN HIVESIIICIIS. .occurseeeeeceetessmsssnsssarss s senesenens s tesbasasarer 396,995 155,996 13,124 539,867
Receivables, net:

Accrued interest. erttasmtbessessesevedentssinnressarrensnnasaren 59 68 59 68
T e et eeeree et e e e eissns st s iva e veasme et e see e smereamrmecme b s RaL s s s s 165 38 163 38

TOTAL ASSETS 3 400,754 b 367,424 $ 222,710 3 545,468

LIABILITIES P
Accounts payable and accrued labilities.....vmmrinenincricssccnnes § 400,609 3 160,126 $ 15,346 § 545,389 :
Due 10 Other fURAS....ccoviimrrermeerert et srsss s e 145 79 145 78

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 400,754 3 160,203 k) 15,491 ] 545,468 T

(Continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANiA
{Expressed in Thouasands)

Balance
July 1, 1997
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
RS ueurisarsrimererenerseressseenesmssreasnestesaamsesansssemnasssmme s tameanntasnerysangansannan $ 1
TempOTary IMVESHTIENIS. .ociviisrcrsrsmssesnressassrsssanssssaaserssasssssanrasssanres 54,222

Receivables, net:
ACCTUEE IIEETES . ceursrriesrransisirsresessesmessrsssessrmrenresseessrsanessssansssssnsns 266

Additions

110,257

56,072

264

Deductions

3 110,257
56,858

260

Balance

—June 36, 1998

53,436

264

TOTAL ASSETS 3 54 489

166,593

$ 167,381

$ 53,701

LIABILITIES
Due t0 other fUNAS......corrvevireiriarresresrierses s sssnrrrs e ssesserssressssrssssase $ 266

Due to other SOVEMMENTS...o.coiitiiiiite vt s smsiers b 54,223
Other HabilItEEs. . ...eoveeeee it s e e eme e ceeseceeee e eeacssreecsene emeeseennane -

264

53,367
70 -

% 266

54,223

$ 264

53,367
70

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 54,489

53,701

$ 54,489

3 53,701

MUNICIPAYL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
L0 T OO OSSO USRI -
TEMPOTATY IMVESINCILS. oeo.vevienscecssraamsssimssimssss st asmrsesmas sessssnanes 125,604
Receivables, net:
Accrued IMErEsh i 607
Due from other funds......ooiniic i 318

278,978
138,025

3,326
289

s 278,977

135,785

3,330
318

b 1
123,344

603
289

TOTAL ASSETS 5 126,529

420,618

$ 422,410

$ 124,737

LIABILITIES

DUE 10 OtNET ZOVEIMITIENTS ... cecuerecerrnsersareresenessesemessesensrsraaseserennen 3 126,529
O NET TE A I8 . cere e e er e et renme e e e e s e emesramse e sanarenenns -

124,574
163

3 126,529

8 124,574
163

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 126,529

124,737

5 126,529

b 124,737

MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS :
L8Rt b b s 3 7,404
TeMPOTary INVESITIENTS. cv.ccne e camcecem e cnn s semeecas e e ceerem et 46,337
Receivables, net:

Accounts.......... 1,908

ACCTUSH INLEIESL...evvecersrrsnsresrresrrrsarrersaresrsserassrssssresarsessrssssanesronee 303
Due from other funds......cimirrcrinrsisrireresesrresrie e snessenns -

706,533

397,764 -

2,630

6,809
12

3 712,910
304,105

1,908
6,467

5 1,027
139,996

2,630

645
12

TOTAL ASSETS 3 35,952

1,113,748

$ 1,025,390

b 144,310

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities......c..creerrecrevcncrrienines 3 8,986
Due to other funds.......cvovrnicc et 73
Due to other govemnments.
Other Habilities. . oveeeeice s eeteeieee e c e ercare e se e 46,284

553
399

11
132,774

3 4,497
73

9

40,830

3 5,072
399

1t

138,828

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 55,952

133,737

5 45,379

3 144,310
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds (continned)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash.......

Tetrporary inVEStMIENtS. .oove et csstrssses sttt
Long-term iNVESTMETITS. . crvuererermee s ecessssssesnr st ssaenen e

Receivables, net:

ACCOUIS. 1o emreeeeeetsrssinsssessrrrarassressesas eanmbarres s smmtb bmis bead s aananb e T v mnn
ACCPUEH INTETESL . eeeeeeererereieeiccssianrirenmasssiosteasamssnsesssanssanssarnnsrntsens
Dte from other fUNdS. .o ee et v e s sanen e s
EHET BSSEISucuareirrnrrerresrresrsmnssmseamesssnms saeearimebt e se et s anbransn pemsaannssnanes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.. ....ooiriernen e
Due t0 other fUnaS.. v erinverecicesinirecresinc s et sarrns Srsss s smeess s

Due 10 Other OVEITIMENIS.cviiirrrarrmceesreresenesesnsonssemrmcais
Oher HabiliEs. .. oo crvisresrsisirnsrrsimsrmsseressesem s st rene

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance

July 1. 1997

$ 3,640
52,328
263

2,763
3,178
147
15,428
4,738

Additions

3 569,548
463,881

7
3,554
922
31,238
9,085

Deduoctions

$ 568,331
474,738
252

2,763
3,178
937
15,428
8,864

Balance
une 1

3 4,357
41471
16

3,554
132
31,238
4,959

$ 82,490

$ 1,078,235

$ 1,074,491

$ 86,234

3 9,702
292

49,201

22,695

$ 7,097
143

479,202

47,940

3 10,530
235

472,589

47,289

$ 6,269
205

56,414

23,346

TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash......

- Cash with fIScal AZENLS..vvvrmeecriiesrsenste et rsrssars s ems e
Temporary INVESTIENS. o rnrerrusrr s cerereronsce e
Long-term iNVESNENTS. ..ot et cib s st

Receivables, net:

TEXES e eirverrrerserrasnsasscessaseas saemtesasseemense e amemebt s enR e st rene s renrarrenan
BLCCOMTIES ..o vviisvvsmerersrmare s ecmmse s neame e samme s emmme s smme s LR R T iE g pamoe s s s

Accrued interest..
[8]1; 1= A

Due from other funds......ooceeciininneserinmnees
ORET ASSEIS . uvarerrareemeeetereseaseenrsesaemeeemsemsbasatsbasesssasesssnssnmsssanssasssnranes

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 82,490

b3 534,387

3 530,643

3 86,234

$ 11,047
17,891

688,167
465,512

2,763
218,600
5,345
165
16,014
319,466

5 2,076,232
9,254

1,291,743
175,298

7
6,184
31,607
38
31,586
32,991

$ 2,080,679
17,885
1,129,920
13,376

2,763
34,809
32,195

165
16,014
3,864

$ 6,600
9,260

849,950

627,434

7
189,975
4,757
38
31,586
343,593

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities. .. vnin i

Due to other funds...........cimvviirinrirees
Due to other ZOVErNMENLS. .......vneireevreneees

Other HaDHTHES . ceeveeeeeeeeeee s rasssrssanresserressascressssssnmsarssnmsnmsssenesaen

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3 1,744,970

3 3,654,940

$ 3,336,670

$ 2,063,240

$ 423,096
849

230,563
1,090,462

s 171,106
947

657,155
404,072

8 33,487
792

653,351
227,380

3 560,715
1,004

234,367
1,267,154

$ 1,744,970

b 1,233,280

3 915,010

$ 2,063,240
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General Fixed Assets
‘Account Group

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GRO
DESCRIPTION -

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for general government purposes. These include all fixed assets except those
accounted for in proprietary and pension trust funds.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . '
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance ) Balance
July 1, June 30,
1997 Additions Retirements 1998 o
CATEGORY ;
Land.. ..cocovrreernriorresireseeseens s nseres $ 248735 $ 7867 - 8. 795 $ 255,807 »
Buildings 2,993,408 96,218 48,691 3,040,935
Improvements other than buildings....... 246,401 11,831 1,801 256,431
Machinery and equipment ........oceeeecens 347619 35914 31.468 552.065 Cd
4,036,163 151,830 82,755 4,105,238 S
Construction i Progress ... s 373.014 144,676 114,544 403,146
Total General Fixed Assets............... § 4409177 $ 296506 _ §$197.299 8 4508384
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
Acquired before July 1, 1986............... $ 1,953,408 b - § 37,779 $ 1,915,629
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from:
General fund ..o 869,545 10,763 18,323 868,985
General obligation bonds.........cccevenns 863,757 99,363 ©12,391 950,729
Federal grants .......cocvmieseenissenneas 32,045 18,058 14,146 35,957
Special revenue funds. 305,707 23,508 7,065 322,150
Local funds ...c.oceurere 31 50 50 31 J
DONALIOTS. v eereemeetrersrennrerseasessiesanens 11,476 88 1 11,563
ConfiSCations «..ccoeeeeersisisiinsiranssnsrreases 194 - - 104
Total SOUTCES. cvrueeerernsererenrassinssasarenss 4,036,163 151,830 82,755 4,105,238
ConStruction in PrOEIeSss ..o eweseressees 373,014 144,676 114,544 403,146
Total Investment in ‘
General Fixed Assets ..oovivrineienees § 4409177 $ 296,506 $197,299 $ 4508384

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired before July 1, 1986 are not available.
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SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1998
-
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION
General GOVEMIIMIETIE ..vvvvvnreerserenresrers rensersnssaneresens 3 9564 & 477,235 § 25,252 $ 42,423 $ 554474
Protection of persons and property .......co.ccceeveeecmene. 16,317 1,328,014 150,277 74,251 1,568,859
Public health and welfare ......ccocovvvvveeeee. 2,801 520,262 15,059 77,830 615,952
Public education ........cceocevereecereeeeeceeenenne. 17,426 607,511 48,749 3,004 676,690
Conservation of natural resources............. 207,070 59,558 10,996 27,736 305,360
Economic development and assistance..... - - - 333 333
THANSPOTEATION c-ceveraeeeeeeencrcrentsreeaeemeienssesnsaeseaenens 2,629 48355 6,098 326488 383,570
Totals Allocated To
FUDGHONS coevevivveerisarecvenas e s esar e s s eseaas § 255807 % 3040935 $ 256,431 $552,065 4,105,238
Constriction in PrOZIeSS. e immesisssreasiarecieseecns 403,146
Total General Fixed ASSets ............cccoooorsreere ' 4508384

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30,
1997 Additions Retirements In Out 1998

General government .......ccocviivesmenarinians $ 577,968 g 7,811 % 47,7798 3§ 25,909 $ 9416 $ 554474
Protection of persons and property ......... 1,459,810 117,039 2,147 306 6,149 1,568,859
Public health and welfare .........ccouceuneee 616,256 1,603 382 26 1,551 615,952
Public education .....c..ccoevveeeereeeerecenereeceans 674,937 1,753 - - - 676,690
Conservation of natural resources........... 301,216 4,242 152 54 - 305,360
Economic development and assistance... 358 - 25 - - 333
TranSPOTEAtOnN ..o veeevee e soreeererere s eeeanaes 405,618 19382 32,251 64 9,243 383,570
4,036,163 151,830 82,755 26,359 26,359 4,105,238
Construction In Progress.......ocovevereenes 373.014 144 676 114,544 - - 403,146
Total General Fixed Assets............ $ 4409177 § 296506 §$ 197299 § 26359 $ 26359 $ 4508384
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA TABLE 2
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

]———- (Expressed in Thousands} —[

For The

Fiscal Year

nded June 30 Net Bonded Debt Population Debt Per Capita
1988 3 4,698,645 11,847 $ 397
1989 4,705,202 11,866 397
1990 4,633,507 11,895 390
1991 4,787,512 11,946 401
1992 4,873,542 11,989 407
1993 5,040,938 12,033 419
1994 5,100,012 ) 12,058 423
1995 5,040,662 12,060 418
1996 - 5,061,530 12,056 420
1997 4,841,729 12,020 403

SOURCE: Popuiation Information -- U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ' - TABLE 3
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT -
TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES :
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

]——— (Expressed in Thousands) -———|

Debt Service
For The Reguirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
Ended June 30 General Fund Expenditures™ %Yo
1989 $ 381,617 $ 13,949,111 2.74
1990 450,752 15,137,774 2.98
1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 521,875 19,540,459 2.67
1983 497,045 19,986,749 2.49
1994 512,094 21,060,058 243
1995 525,889 22,467,672 234
1996 551,133 23,480,336 235
1997 649,759 23,384,414 2.78
1998 624,642 24,891,340 251

O Excludes encumbrances included in “Total Expenditures” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN TABLE 4

As of August 26, 1998
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA '
Average annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five
B FISCAL YEATS ..ecvverrreeereerrarseneeeeseseesereeseneesnsmsassasaseecassesnsnssans § 20,392,050,801
Constitutional TACOT ..covervievererreecr e st X 1.75
Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the :
approval of the electors.........cvieririmnnreceser e 35,686,088,902
Less outstanding net debt (non-electorate approved)........... 3,682,944 258
Legal debt MATZin .......ceuvreresrmerecareeeseesserseeresssssssssrassassenees $ 32,003,144 644

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution,
which provides:

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the
provisions of this section.

(1)

@

@)

)

Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or
natural disaster, or to implement unissued authority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes
having a matutity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the
same fiscal year, and (ii) incur debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures
within the term of the original debt.

Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if
the question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a -
majority of those voting on the question.

Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a
capital budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-
quarters times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified
by the Aunditor General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt
incurred under clauses (1) and (2)(i), or debt incurred under clause (2)(ii) if the original debt would not be
s0 considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the
law authorizing such debt.

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 26, 1998,
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE S ' - TABLE 5
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ®
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscat .
Year Direct Net Revenue — Debt Service Requirements —
Ended Gross Operating Available for
May 31 Revennes Expenses _Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1989 § 245,192 $ 105619 § 139,573 5 4070 5 58,789 5 62,859 2.22
1990 252,373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73,051 196,991 0.70
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 0.94
1992 312,079 113,217 198,862 7,450 76,628 84,078 2.37
1993 329,452 134,844 194,608 11,595 65,600 77,195 2.52
1994 344,617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2.51
1995 375,754 146,325 229,429 15,715 72,548 88,263 2.60
1996 389,774 162,150 227,624 23,500 75,644 99,544 2.29
1997 398,897 158,705 240,192 22,845 74,462 97,307 247
1998 410,266 165,763 244,503 28,240 72,274 100,514 2.43
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ©
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Diirect Net Revenue E— Debt Service Requirements —
Ended Gross Operating Available for
June30 Revenues _Expenses _Debt Service Ertngipal Interest Total - verage
1989 b 29,477 $ 2,223 3 27,254 b 8,505 5 10,584 $ 19,089 1.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 9,873 18,773 1.51
1991 28,963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11,015 19,455 .38
1992 24,592 1,994 22,598 10,645 18,920 28,565 0.76
1993 25,204 2,368 22,336 10,6435 18,595 29,240 0.78
1994 29,802 2,138 27,664 23,085 19,116 42,201 0.66
1995 30,806 2,864 27,942 4,335 20,123 24,458 1.14
1996 30,487 2,898 27,589 10,695 19,747 30,442 0.91
1997 32,963 2,865 30,098 12,955 - 22,314 35,269 0.85
1998 35,967 2,861 33,106 19,380 22,852 42,232 078
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ®
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue — Debt Service Requirements —
Ended Gross Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1989 $ 182,535 3 8,402 $ 174,133 $ 20226 $ 148327 3 168,553 1.03
1990 195,101 9,133 189,968 21,568 157,104 178,672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15
1992 206,991 8,496 198,495 28,118 172,146 200,264 0.99
1993 200,268 9,803 190,465 27,410 166,480 193,890 0.98
1994 194,025 13,325 180,700 29,426 143,904 173,330 1.05
1995 196,023 16,095 179,928 51,406 135,621 191,027 0.94
1996 208,048 16,979 191,069 40,839 146,452 187,291 1.02
1997 222,736 16,7438 205,988 39,463 157,989 197,452 1.04
1998 247,841 17,931 229,910 43,558 172,268 215,826 1.06

@ Excludes interest on notes payable.

®? Discretely Presented Component Unit. 117



ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION TABLE 6
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE. UNITED STATES For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

‘7 (Expressed in Thousands) —l

Calendar Year - United States Pennsylvania %
1988 244,534 11,847 . 4.80 S
1989 246,820 11,866 . 4.80 o
1990 249,398 11,895 4.80
1991 252,106 11,946 4.70
1992 255,011 11,989 470
1993 257,753 12,022 4.66
1994 260,292 12,043 4.63
1995 262,760 12,046 4.58
1996 265,179 - 12,041 4.54
1997 267,636 12,020 4.49

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census .

STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS TABLE 7
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

[——— (Expressed in Thousands) ————I

) Time and C

Calendar Year Demand Deposits Savings Deposits :

1988 $ 6,558,607 $ 50,347,975 .

1989 6,481,900 53,565,427
1990 6,453,740 50,542,812

1991 6,308,495 52,112,591 1

1992 7,150,024 51,434,858 ‘
1993 7,620,397 54,334,637
1994 6,952,868 49,674,200
1995 7,124,441 51,766,777
1996 4,233,735 37,254,292
1997 4,764,449 40,036,785

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking
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TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES _
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME
ili lars) {Dollars)
I {Millions of Dol ———I l———— ———-I
Calendar .
Year Inited States Pennsylvania % United States Pennsylvania %
1988 4,171,650 200,836 4.80 ‘ 17,062 16,954 99.30
1989 4,485,191 216,982 4.80 18,172 18,286 100.60
1990 4,786,293 230,894 4.80 19,191 19,410 101.10
1991 4,963,545 239,478 4.80 19,689 20,047 101.80
1992 5,260,922 252,224 4.80 20,631 21,038 102.00
1993 5,507,657 262,281 4.80 21,368 21,816 102.10
1994 5,774,875 270,925 4.70 22,186 22,496 101.40
1995 6,137,878 285,160 4.70 23,359 23,673 101.30
1996 6,480,031 269211 4.60 24,436 24,851 101.50
1997 6,851,080 313,204 4.60 25,598 26,058 101.80

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10

For the Calendar Year 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

EMPLOYER RANK
Wal-Mart Stores INC....coverirrereneereierereresereresnseesessensseeranns 1
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania........ccccoceveene. 2
Pennsylvania State University ......cccoeeeverrevereenecieeenerecienns 3
K-Matt COrporation .......eoceeereveemrerreesereeesessrsessesssesessssennes 4
US Aif, IACOIPOTALEA oo 5
CoreStates Service COorp ...uinenrnineemrrcreceeieree e reeeeseeenes 6
United Parcel Service INC.....vovveveiccveeecereceeer v 7
Mellon Bank NA ..o iinriecneie s i s s 8
Weis Markets INC ..ot 9
PNC BANK ..ocoeeieeinicirtetei ettt ese e s s s 10
Sears Roebuck and Company ........cccccvvevveiiereeeeincceiennnn. 11
Bell Atlantic ...cecvee ettt 12
University of Pittsburgh.........cocoeeiiiiiciinnieinriiccieisiee. 13
Giant Food Stores, INC ....ovvveeveveeeeeieecieeiectie e 14
JC Penney Company, INC......c.ccoeevveeeicmreceereseeceeeeeneeens 15
AMP Incorporated .....ccooceeeieviericeicreecereneee et 16
Acme Markets INC ...oveeiececeiceierecnrcececererceen e 17
May Department Stores COMIPANY ...occeeerreeeeerierrensarersensceenes 18
Thrift Drug, INC ...vveviieerveeeriseecrecee e cae e snen s evnas 19
Westinghouse Electric COIp ...vcvvvvrvereneiereeeerecreeeecneesaenenns 20
Merck & COINC it ee e seeeenns 21
Hershey Foods Corporation.........c.vuieeinsnncerineseeenanen 22
The Prudential Insurance Co. of America.......c.occoevveeveenennen. 23
Giant Eagle, INC. ..oovovereecceeceeecee ettt ce e 24
Lucent Technologies INC.....cooveceeeeeeerieicer e 25
Highmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield......cccooceevvecinnecieicenee, 26
Thomas Jefferson University ......ccovvvverererrernrecereerueseevernenns 27
PECO Energy Company .......cccceevceerieeerierveeerserssnessesssssernns 28
General Electric Company .........coecrreeernerreenisveerneresieeenens 29
University of Pittsburgh Medical Center .......c..ccovruerverennee. 30

SQURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN :
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMON’WEALTH

TABLE 11

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Advanta Corporation

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Airgas

Alcoa Standard Corporation
Allegheny Teledyne

Aluminum Company of America
AMP Incorporated

Amerisource Health

Aramark

ARCO Chemical

Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Arrow International

Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethiehem Steel Corporation
Betz Laboratories

Centocor

Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
Conrail

CoreStates Financial Corporation
Crown Cork and Seal Company
Dauphin Deposit Corporation
Dentsply International

DQE Corporation

Equitable Resources

Fore Systems

General Nutrition

Glatfelter (P.H.) Company

H.J. Heinz Company

SOQURCE: Fortune, April 1998 and Ward's Business Directory.

Harsco Corporation
Hershey Foods Corporation
Ikon Office Solutions
Integra Financial Corporétion
Intelligent Electronics
Jones Apparel Group
Mellon Bank Corp.
Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Mylan Laboratories

PNC Financial Corperation
PPG Industries, Inc.
PECO Energy

Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.

Pep Boys

Quaker State Corporation
Rhone—Poulenc Rorer”
Rite Aid Corporation
Rohm and Haas Company
Rykoff — Sexton

Sun Cornpany, Inc.
Sungard Data Systems
UGI Corporation
Unisource Worldwide Inc.
Union Pacific Corpofation
UNISYS Corporation
U.8. Healthcare

USX Corporation

VF Corporation

Weis Markets, Incorporated

Westinghouse Electric Corporation

York International
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

June 30, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution
Form of Government

Miles of State Highway

Land Area — in square miles

State Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of State Police

Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
' Community Colleges):
Number of campuses in state

Number of educators

Number of students

Recreation:

Number of State Parks
Area of State Parks
Area of State Forests

December 12, 1787
Legislative-Executive-Judicial
40,243

44,888

90
4,016

236
22,385
636,889

116
282,500 Acres
2,100,113 Acres

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning
Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services
Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Bureau of Forestry
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